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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this anneabrt that are subject to risks and uncertainiéese forwardeoking statemen
include information about possible or assumed &utigsults of our business, financial conditionyikity, results of operations, plans i
objectives. When we use the words “believe,” “expet@nticipate,” “estimate,” “intend,” “should,” thay,” “plans,” “projects,” “will,” or
similar expressions, or the negative of these wowds intend to identify forwartboking statements. Statements regarding the fatig
subjects are forward-looking by their nature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our expected operating results;

« our ability to acquire investments on attractivers;

« the effect of the U.S. Federal Reserve’s and tl& Ureasury’s recent actions on the liquidity ef tapital markets;

« the federal conservatorship of Fannie Mae and keebithc and related efforts, along with any change$aws and regulatiol
affecting the relationship between Fannie Mae ardidie Mac and the U.S. Governme

« mortgage loan modification programs and futurediegive action;

« our ability to access the capital markets;

« our ability to obtain future financing arrangements

« our ability to successfully hedge the interest ratie and prepayment risk associated with our pbatf

« our ability to make distributions to our stockhalslen the future;

« our understanding of our competition and our abttit compete effectively;

« our ability to qualify and maintain our qualificati as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) fog Uederal income tax purposes;

« our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act;

« our ability to maintain the listing of our commatosk on the NYSE MKT;

« market trends;

- changes in interest rates;

« changes in the yield curve;

« changes in prepayment rates;

« changes in market value of our assets;

« changes in business conditions and the generabetgn

« expected capital expenditures; and

« the impact of technology on our operations andrimss.

The forwardlooking statements are based on our beliefs, agsomspand expectations of our future performanaking into account ¢
information currently available to us. You shoulat place undue reliance on these forwkmking statements. These beliefs, assumption
expectations can change as a result of many pessitdnts or factors, not all of which are knowruso Some of these factors are desci
under the caption “Risk Factors” in this Annuakport on Form 10-K and any subsequent QuarterlyoRemn Form 1@. If a chang
occurs, our business, financial condition, liquickind results of operations may vary materiallyrfrthose expressed in our forwdabking
statements. Any forwarliboking statement speaks only as of the date owtwiiiis made. New risks and uncertainties arisenftime to time
and it is impossible for us to predict those evemtéiow they may affect us. Except as requiredawy, lwe are not obligated to, and do
intend to, update or revise any forward-lookingesteents, whether as a result of new informatioturtuevents or otherwise.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Our Company

Orchid Island Capital, Inc., a Maryland corporat{p@rchid,” the “Company,” “we” or “us”)js a specialty finance company that inv
in residential mortgage-backed securities (‘RMB3He principal and interest payments of these RMB&Sgyaaranteed by the Federal Nati
Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”), the FederahtéoLoan Mortgage Corporation, (“Freddie Maof)the Government National Mortge
Association (“Ginnie Mae”) and are backed primably singlefamily residential mortgage loans. We refer to ¢hgges of RMBS as Agen
RMBS. Our investment strategy focuses on, and oufqgdio consists of, two categories of Agency RMRE$ traditional passhrough Agenc
RMBS and (ii) structured Agency RMBS, such as telaized mortgage obligations (“CMOs"), interestyosecurities (“IOs”)jnverse intere:
only securities (“1l0s”) and principal only (“POs”)among other types of structured Agency RMBS. Ourbsite is located
http://www.orchidislandcapital.com Information on our website is not part of thisrAial Report on Form 10-K.

We were formed by Bimini Capital Management, Irsanfetimes referred to herein as “Biminifi) August 2010, commenced operati
on November 24, 2010 and completed our initial jpublifering on February 20, 2013. Bimini is curdgmur largest stockholder. On Febru
14, 2013, we listed our common stock on the NYSETM#d trade under the symbol “ORC.”

Bimini managed our portfolio from our inception digh the completion of our initial public offerirmn February 20, 2013. Up
completion of the offering, we became externallynaged by Bimini Advisors, LLC (“Bimini Advisors,”r¢he “Manager”)Our Manager is ¢
investment advisor registered with the Securitie$ Bxchange Commission (“SEC”). Additionally, ouaNager is a whollypwned subsidial
of Bimini, which has a long track record of managinvestments in Agency RMBS.

We are organized and conduct our operations tafguahd will elect to be taxed, as a real estatestment trust, or “REITfor federa
income tax purposes commencing with our short tiexgdar ended December 31, 2013 upon the filingunffederal income tax return for -
year. We generally will not be subject to incoraeets on our net taxable income to the extent weently distribute our net taxable income
our stockholders and maintain our REIT qualificatio

Our Manager

Upon completion of our initial public offering, wleecame externally managed and advised by Biminiigeds and its experienc
RMBS investment team pursuant to the terms of aagament agreement. Our Manager is a Marylanddiniiability company that is
wholly-owned subsidiary of Bimini. We believe owlationship with our Manager enables us to levemgeManages established portfol
management resources for each of our targeted elassees and its infrastructure supporting thoseurees. Additionally, we have benefil
and expect to continue to benefit from our Managyériance and administration functions, which addregal, compliance, investor relati
and operational matters, including portfolio mamagat, trade allocation and execution, securitidsateon, risk management and informa
technologies in connection with the performanceitefduties. Our Manages’ parent, Bimini commenced active investment maimagy
operations in 2003, as it self-manages its ownfqlat

Our Manager is responsible for administering ouwsitess activities and day-tiay operations. Pursuant to the terms of the mamag
agreement, our Manager provides us with our manageteam, including our officers, along with apptafe support personnel. Our Mang
is at all times subject to the supervision and sigéit of our board of directors (the “Board of RQiters”) and has only such functions
authority as we delegate to it.




Our Investment and Capital Allocation Strategy
Investment Strategy

Our business objective is to provide attractivé&-gsdjusted total returns to our investors over theglterm through a combination
capital appreciation and the payment of regular tiMgndistributions. We intend to achieve this oltjee by investing in and strategice
allocating capital between pafsough Agency RMBS and structured Agency RMBS. $¥ek to generate income from (i) the net int
margin on our leveraged passough Agency RMBS portfolio and the leveragedtiparof our structured Agency RMBS portfolio, ani the
interest income we generate from the unleveragetiopoof our structured Agency RMBS portfolio. Wis@seek to minimize the volatility
both the net asset value of, and income from, outfqio through a process which emphasizes capitatation, asset selection, liquidity
active interest rate risk management.

We fund our pastirough Agency RMBS and certain of our structureggeAcy RMBS, such as fixed and floating rate tranafeCMO:x
and POs, through repurchase agreements. Howevegewerally do not employ leverage on our structudegncy RMBS that have
principal balance, such as IOs and 110s. We magigdea portion of these assets to increase ourlidahce, but we do not intend to invest
cash derived from pledging the assets. Otherwisejanot use leverage in these instances becarisedhrities contain structural leverage.

Our target asset categories and principal assethith we intend to invest are as follows:
Pas«-through Agency RMBS

We invest in pasthrough securities, which are securities securedelsidential real property in which payments oftbiitterest an
principal on the securities are generally made mgnin effect, these securities pass through tloatily payments made by the individ
borrowers on the mortgage loans that underlie ¢leargties, net of fees paid to the issuer or guarasf the securities. Pasisrough certificate
can be divided into various categories based orthlagacteristics of the underlying mortgages, saglthe term or whether the interest ra
fixed or variable.

The payment of principal and interest on mortgaagsghrough securities issued by Ginnie Mae, but netrttarket value, is guarantt
by the full faith and credit of the federal govermh Payment of principal and interest on mortgaagsthrough certificates issued by Far
Mae and Freddie Mac, but not the market valueu@ganteed by the respective agency issuing theigecu

A key feature of most mortgage loans is the abditghe borrower to repay principal earlier thahestuled. This is called a prepaym
Prepayments arise primarily due to sale of the dyitg property, refinancing or foreclosure. Prepants result in a return of principal to pass
through certificate holders. This may result iroaér or higher rate of return upon reinvestmenprirficipal. This is generally referred to
prepayment uncertainty. If a security purchased ptemium prepays at a higher-thexpected rate, then the value of the premium wba
eroded at a faster-than-expected rate. Similaflg, discount mortgage prepays at a lower-tegpected rate, the amortization towards
would be accumulated at a slower-than-expected Taie possibility of these undesirable effectisistimes referred to as “prepayment risk.”

In general, declining interest rates tend to ineeeprepayments, and rising interest rates tendot grepayments. Like other fixed-
income securities, when interest rates rise, ttheevaf Agency RMBS generally declines. The ratpm@fpayments on underlying mortgages
affect the price and volatility of Agency RMBS amdhy shorten or extend the effective maturity ofskeurity beyond what was anticipate
the time of purchase. If interest rates rise, aldings of Agency RMBS may experience reduced nstuf the borrowers of the underlyi
mortgages pay off their mortgages later than graieid. This is generally referred to as extensih r




The mortgage loans underlying pass-through ceatiéie can generally be classified into the followimge categories:

» Fixed-Rate Mortgage:. Fixed+ate mortgages are those where the borrower paydexest rate that is constant throughout the tef
the loan. Traditionally, most fixedite mortgages have an original term of 30 yeacsvé¥er, shorter terms (also referred to as
maturity dates) have become common in recent y8arsause the interest rate on the loan never ckaegen when market inter
rates change, over time there can be a divergestee=bn the interest rate on the loan and curreritehaterest rates. This in turn «
make fixedrate mortgages price sensitive to market fluctuetion interest rates. In general, the longer theairing term on tF
mortgage loan, the greater the price sensitivimtwements in interest rates and, therefore, kediiood for greater price variabilit

« ARMs. ARMs are mortgages for which the borrower payiéarest rate that varies over the term of the.Id@de interest rate usue
resets based on market interest rates, althougddjistment of such an interest rate may be sutgezgrtain limitations. Traditionall
interest rate resets occur at regular intervals€fmmple, once per year). We refer to such ARM%raslitional” ARMs. Because tt
interest rates on ARMs fluctuate based on marketlitons, ARMs tend to have interest rates thahdbdeviate from current marl
rates by a large amount. This in turn can meanARAs have less price sensitivity to interest rated, consequently, are less likel
experience significant price volatilit

« Hybrid Adjustable-Rate Mortgages. Hybrid ARMs have a fixedate for the first few years of the loan, ofterethrfive, seven or t
years, and thereafter reset periodically like ditianal ARM. Effectively, such mortgages are hylsiicombining the features of a
fixed-rate mortgage and a traditional ARM. HybriRiMs have price sensitivity to interest rates simtitathat of a fixed-ate mortgag
during the period when the interest rate is fixed aimilar to that of an ARM when the interest raen its periodic reset stay
However, because many hybrid ARMs are structurel svirelatively short initial time span during whithe interest rate is fixed, e\
during that segment of its existence, the priceitigity may be high

Structured Agency RMBS

We also invest in structured Agency RMBS, whichlude CMOs, IOs, 110s and POs. The payment of ppalciand interest,
appropriate, on structured Agency RMBS issued bynigi Mae, but not the market value, is guarantegetthd full faith and credit of the fede
government. Payment of principal and interest,mgs@priate, on structured Agency RMBS issued bynkeaMae and Freddie Mac, but not
market value, is guaranteed by the respective ggesting the security. The types of structured yeRMBS in which we invest &
described below.

« CMOs. CMOs are a type of RMBS the principal and intexdswhich are paid, in most cases, on a monthlyidhaCMOs may &
collateralized by whole mortgage loans, but areartgpically collateralized by portfolios of mortgagasshrough securities issu
directly by or under the auspices of Ginnie Maesdéie Mac or Fannie Mae. CMOs are structured intdtipte classes, with ea
class bearing a different stated maturity. Montdyments of principal, including prepayments, @&t feturned to investors holdi
the shortest maturity class. Investors holding ldmer maturity classes receive principal only aftee first class has been retii
Generally, fixed-rate mortgages are used to collile CMOs. However, the CMO tranches need nohalle fixedrate coupon
Some CMO tranches have floating rate coupons tjasbased on market interest rates, subjectredonmitations. Such tranchi
often callec* CMO floaters” can have relatively low price sensitivity to intereates

« 10s. 10s represent the stream of interest paymentsmool of mortgages, either fixedte mortgages or hybrid ARMs. Holders of
have no claim to any principal payments. The vallulDs depends primarily on two factors, which prepayments and interest ra
Prepayments on the underlying pool of mortgageaaedhe stream of interest payments going forwlaedce 10s are highly sensit
to prepayment rates. IOs are also sensitive togd®m interest rates. An increase in interessregduces the present value of fu
interest payments on a pool of mortgages. On therdtand, an increase in interest rates has ariepde reduce prepayments, wk
increases the expected absolute amount of futteeesst payment:




« lIOs . 11Os represent the stream of interest payments paol of mortgages, either fixedte mortgages or hybrid ARMs. Holder:
[10s have no claim to any principal payments. Th&g of 110s depends primarily on three factorsjolhare prepayments, LIBC
rates and term interest rates. Prepayments onntierlying pool of mortgages reduce the stream wfrést payments, making Il
highly sensitive to prepayment rates. The couporllOs is derived from both the coupon interest ratethe underlying pool
mortgages and 38ay LIBOR. IIOs are typically created in conjunctiwith a floating rate CMO that has a principaldvade an
which is entitled to receive all of the principayments on the underlying pool of mortgages. Thepoa on the floating rate CMO
also based on 3@ay LIBOR. Typically, the coupon on the floatingga&CMO and the 110, when combined, equal the coupotihe
pool of underlying mortgages. The coupon on thd pbainderlying mortgages typically represents p oaceiling on the combin
coupons of the floating rate CMO and the 110. Actiogly, when the value of 3@ay LIBOR increases, the coupon of the floating
CMO will increase and the coupon on the IO wiltdsase. When the value of 8ay LIBOR falls, the opposite is true. Accordini
the value of [IOs are sensitive to the level ofd23- LIBOR and expectations by market participamtsimre movements in the level
30-day LIBOR. 110s are also sensitive to changes tergst rates. An increase in interest rates redtieepresent value of futt
interest payments on a pool of mortgages. On therdtand, an increase in interest rates has ariepde reduce prepayments, wt
increases the expected absolute amount of futteeest payment:

« POs. POs represent the stream of principal payments pool of mortgages. Holders of POs have no ctaiany interest paymen
although the ultimate amount of principal to beeieed over time is known -t equals the principal balance of the underlyinglpoi
mortgages. What is not known is the timing of tkeeipt of the principal payments. The value of RI®pends primarily on tv
factors, which are prepayments and interest r@epayments on the underlying pool of mortgageslacate the stream of princi|
repayments, making POs highly sensitive to theaatghich the mortgages in the pool are prepaics 8@ also sensitive to change
interest rates. An increase in interest rates reslticze present value of future principal payments ool of mortgages. Further,
increase in interest rates has a tendency to reghepayments, which decelerates, or pushes fuothiein time, the ultimate receipt
the principal payments. The opposite is true winégrest rates declin

Our investment strategy consists of the followinghponents:

« investing in passhrough Agency RMBS and certain structured AgentBS, such as fixed and floating rate tranches ofG&van:
POs, on a leveraged basis to increase returnseorafital allocated to this portfoli

« investing in certain structured Agency RMBS, susH@s and 110s, generally on an unleveraged basisder to (i) increase retul
due to the structural leverage contained in suaturiees, (i) enhance liquidity due to the factaththese securities will
unencumbered or, when encumbered, retain the cash duch borrowings and (iii) diversify portfoliaterest rate risk due to
different interest rate sensitivity these secwsitiave compared to p-through Agency RMBS

« investing in Agency RMBS in order to minimize criedsk;

« investing in assets that will cause us to maintain exclusion from regulation as an investment camypunder the Investme
Company Act of 1940, as amended, (“Investment Company A"); and

« investing in assets that will allow us to qualifydamaintain our qualification as a REIT.

We rely on our Manages’expertise in identifying assets within our taragdet class. Our Manager makes investment desibased ¢
various factors, including, but not limited to, agVe value, expected cash yield, supply and demeosts of hedging, costs of financi
liquidity requirements, expected future interes$é neolatility and the overall shape of the U.S.d&ary and interest rate swap yield curves
do not attribute any particular quantitative sigrdihce to any of these factors, and the weight ive tp these factors depends on me
conditions and economic trends.

Over time, we will modify our investment strategy market conditions change to seek to maximizergh&ns from our investme
portfolio. We believe that this strategy, combinveith our Manager's experience, will enable us tovide attractive longerm returns to ol
stockholders.




Capital Allocation Strategy

The percentage of capital invested in our two asatsgories will vary and will be managed in aroeffo maintain the level of incor
generated by the combined portfolios, the stabdityhat income stream and the stability of theugabf the combined portfolios. Typica
passthrough Agency RMBS and structured Agency RMBS leithaterially different sensitivities to movemeimsinterest rates. Declines
the value of one portfolio may be offset by appa@on in the other, although we cannot assure hatithis will be the case. Additionally,
Manager will seek to maintain adequate liquiditytaglocates capital.

We allocate our capital to assist our interest riate management efforts. The unleveraged portfidties not require unencumbered
or cash equivalents to be maintained in anticipatibpossible margin calls. To the extent more tedjs deployed in the unleveraged portfc
our liquidity needs will generally be less.

During periods of rising interest rates, refinagcapportunities available to borrowers typicallycomse because borrowers are not
to refinance their current mortgage loans with me@rtgage loans at lower interest rates. In sudamtes, securities that are highly sensiti
refinancing activity, such as IOs and IIOs, typigéihcrease in value. Our capital allocation stggtallows us to redeploy our capital into s
securities when and if we believe interest ratdsbgihigher in the future, thereby allowing ushtald securities the value of which we believ
likely to increase as interest rates rise. Alsobbing able to redlocate capital into structured Agency RMBS, sashiOs, during periods
rising interest rates, we may be able to offsetlitedy decline in the value of our patsough Agency RMBS, which are negatively impa
by rising interest rates.

We intend to qualify as a REIT and operate in ameanhat will not subject us to regulation under thvestment Company Act. In or
to rely on the exemption provided by Section 3(Xt» under the Investment Company Act, we must ta@inat least 55% of our asset:
qualifying real estate assets. For purposes oftds structured Agency RMBS are ngualifying real estate assets. Accordingly, while
have no explicit limitation on the amount of oumpital that we will deploy to the unleveraged sturetd Agency RMBS portfolio, we w
deploy our capital in such a way so as to mairmainexemption from registration under the Investit@mmpany Act.

Financing Strategy

We borrow against our Agency RMBS using short tegpurchase agreements. We may use other sourt®geadge, such as secure!
unsecured debt or issuances of preferred stockd®eot have a policy limiting the amount of levexage may incur. However, we gener
expect that the ratio of our total liabilities coaned to our equity, which we refer to as our legergatio, will be less than 12 to 1. Our amq
of leverage may vary depending on market conditandother factors that we deem relevant.

We allocate our capital between two sub-portfoliise passhrough Agency RMBS portfolio will be leveraged geally via repurchas
agreement funding. The structured Agency RMBS pbatfigenerally will not be leveraged. The leveraggo is calculated by dividing our to
liabilities by total stockholders’ equity at thedeaf each period. The amount of leverage will Harection of the capital allocated to the pass
through Agency RMBS portfolio and the amount ofrbaiis required by our lenders on our borrowingsewthe capital allocation to the pass
through Agency RMBS portfolio is high, the leveragdio will be high since more capital is being koifly leveraged and less capital is un:
leveraged. If the haircuts required by our lenaer®ur borrowings are higher, all else being equal,leverage will be lower since our lenc
will lend less against the value of the capitalldged to the pas#irough Agency RMBS portfolio. The allocation ofpdal between the tw
portfolios will be a function of several factors:

e The relative durations of the respective folids — We generally seek to have a combined dmaat or near zero. If our pass
through securities have a longer duration, we alilbcate more capital to the structured securitytfptio to achieve a combin
duration close to zer:

e The relative attractiveness of pass-througgusties versus structured securitiesTe-the extent we believe the expected retur
one type of security are higher than the otherwilieallocate more capital to the more attractieeurities, subject to the caveat"
its combined duration remains at or near z

* Liquidity — We seek to maintain adequate cash and unencumbecedities relative to our repurchase agreemerowings tc
ensure we can meet any price or prepayment retagedin calls from our lenders. To the extent wé peize or prepayment relat
margin calls will be higher/lower, we will allocatess/more capital to the pass-through Agency RNsBfolio. Our passhrougt
Agency RMBS portfolio likely will be our only sougcof price or prepayment related margin calls beease generally will ni
apply leverage to our structured Agency RMBS pdidfd-rom time to time we may pledge a portion af structured securities a
retain the cash derived so it can be used to eehauncliquidity.




Risk Management

We invest in Agency RMBS to mitigate credit riskdditionally, our Agency RMBS are backed by a diVfegd base of mortgage loe
to mitigate geographic, loan originator and otlypes of concentration risks.

Interest Rate Risk Managem:

We believe that the risk of adverse interest rat@aments represents the most significant risk tgpoutfolio. This risk arises because
the interest rate indices used to calculate therést rates on the mortgages underlying our ass®she different from the interest rate ind
used to calculate the interest rates on the reladewings, and (ii) interest rate movements diifigcour borrowings may not be reason
correlated with interest rate movements affectingassets. We attempt to mitigate our interestriskeby using the following techniques:

Agency RMBS Backed by ARM&e seek to minimize the differences between @sterate indices and interest rate adjustment g
our Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and related borrgsinAt the time of funding, we typically align @fe underlying interest rate inc
used to calculate interest rates for our Agency RMiacked by ARMs and the related borrowings andh@ interest rate adjustment peri
for our Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and the interas¢ adjustment periods for our related borrowirgs our borrowings mature ofr i
renewed, we may adjust the index used to calcuitgeest expense, the duration of the reset pedadshe maturities of our borrowings.

Agency RMBS Backed by Fixed-Rate Mortgagesinterest rates rise, our borrowing costs iaseg however, the income on our Age
RMBS backed by fixedate mortgages remains unchanged. Subject to gingliind maintaining a qualification as a REIT, may seek t
limit increases to our borrowing costs through ke of interest rate swap or cap agreements, aptut or call agreements, futures contr.
forward rate agreements or similar financial instemts to effectively convert our floating-rate lmwings into fixed-rate borrowings.

Agency RMBS Backed by Hybrid ARMBuring the fixedrate period of our Agency RMBS backed by hybrid ARNhe security
similar to Agency RMBS backed by fixedte mortgages. During this period, subject to ifgiag and maintaining a qualification as a RE
we may employ the same hedging strategy that wdagnipr our Agency RMBS backed by fixadte mortgages. Once our Agency RN
backed by hybrid ARMs convert to floating rate s#@s, we may employ the same hedging strategwegmploy for our Agency RME
backed by ARMs.

Eurodollar Futures ContractsWe enter into Eurodollar futures contracts to ecoically hedge against the possibility that risirager
may adversely impact our repurchase agreementitie®i Repurchase agreements are structuredtbatlthe rate resets on a short term
and selling Eurodollar futures in a rising rate iemvment works to offset the funding costs assediatith repurchase agreements.




Additionally, our structured Agency RMBS generadiyhibit sensitivities to movements in interest satiéferent than our pagkrougt
Agency RMBS. To the extent they do so, our striedtubgency RMBS may protect us against declinesiégnnharket value of our combir
portfolio that result from adverse interest rateveraents, although we cannot assure you that thibaithe case.

Prepayment Risk Manageme

The risk of mortgage prepayments is another sicgnifi risk to our portfolio. When prevailing intetreates fall below the coupon rate
a mortgage, mortgage prepayments are likely toeas®. Conversely, when prevailing interest ratesease above the coupon rate
mortgage, mortgage prepayments are likely to dserea

When prepayment rates increase, we may not betal&nvest the money received from prepaymentgedds comparable to those
the securities prepaid. Also, some ARMs and hyBfRMs which back our Agency RMBS may bear initisddser’interest rates that are lov
than their fully-indexed interest rates. If thesertgages are prepaid during this “teageetiod, we may lose the opportunity to receiveried
payments at the higher, fulipdexed rate over the expected life of the secufitiditionally, some of our structured Agency RMBS8¢ch as IC
and II0s, may be negatively affected by an incréagaepayment rates because their value is wradhtingent on the underlying mortg:
loans having an outstanding principal balance.

A decrease in prepayment rates may also have arsedeffect on our portfolio. For example, if wedst in POs, the purchase prici
such securities will be based, in part, on an assuevel of prepayments on the underlying mortdage. Because the returns on POs dec
the longer it takes the principal payments on theeulying loans to be paid, a decrease in prepaynaées could decrease our returns on
securities.

Prepayment risk also affects our hedging activit#hen an Agency RMBS backed by a fixede mortgage or hybrid ARM is acqui
with borrowings, we may cap or fix our borrowingst®for a period close to the anticipated averdigef the fixedrate portion of the relat
Agency RMBS. If prepayment rates are different tban projections, the term of the related hedgimgjrument may not match the fixeake
portion of the security, which could cause us tuirlosses.

Because our business may be adversely affectedpbgment rates are different than our projectiargsseek to invest in Agency RM
backed by mortgages with welbcumented and predictable prepayment historiemrdtect against increases in prepayment ratesnwest ir
Agency RMBS backed by mortgages that we believeless likely to be prepaid. For example, we inviesAgency RMBS backed |
mortgages (i) with loan balances low enough suahahborrower would likely have little incentive refinance, (ii) extended to borrowers v
credit histories weak enough to not be eligibleetinance their mortgage loans, (iii) that are newariginated fixedrate or hybrid ARMs or (iv
that have interest rates low enough such that sower would likely have little incentive to refine@ To protect against decrease
prepayment rates, we may also invest in Agency RNbBE&ed by mortgages with characteristics oppdsitéhose described above, wt
would typically be more likely to be refinanced. Wey also invest in certain types of structured igyeRMBS as a means of mitigating
portfolio-wide prepayment risks. For example, certain trapafeCMOs are less sensitive to increases in prapay rates, and we may inv
in those tranches as a means of hedging againsgises in prepayment rates.

Liquidity Management Strategy
Because of our use of leverage, we manage liquidityeet our lenders’ margin calls using the follogvmeasures:

« Maintaining cash balances or unencumbered ass#itswveacess of anticipated margin calls; and
« Making margin calls on our lenders when we havexaess of collateral pledged against our borrowings




We also attempt to minimize the number of margiiscae receive by:

« Deploying capital from our leveraged Agency RMBStfwio to our unleveraged Agency RMBS portfolio;

« Investing in Agency RMBS backed by mortgages thatbslieve are less likely to be prepaid to decréfaseisk of excessive marg
calls when monthly prepayments are announced. PPnegats are declared, and the market value of théetksecurity declines, befi
the receipt of the related cash flows. Prepaymestatations give rise to a temporary collateralaieficy and generally results
margin calls by lender:

« Obtaining funding arrangements which defer or wadkepaymentelated margin requirements in exchange for paysienthe lendt
tied to the dollar amount of the collateral defizig and a predetermined interest rate;

« Reducing our overall amount of leverage.

To the extent we are unable to adequately managéntarest rate exposure and are subjected to aufiet margin calls, we may
forced to sell assets at an inopportune time whchrn could impair our liquidity and reduce owrtowing capacity and book value.

Tax Structure

Upon filing our federal income tax return for ounost taxable year ended December 31, 2013, weeldtit to be taxed as a REIT. (
qualification as a REIT, and the maintenance ohaygalification, will depend upon our ability to eteon a continuing basis, various com|
requirements under the U.S. Internal Revenue Cthike “Code”) relating to, among other things, the sources of gnass income, tt
composition and values of our assets, our disiobuevels and the concentration of ownership af capital stock. We believe that we h
been organized and have operated in conformity thighrequirements for qualification and taxatiormd@®EIT under the Code, and we inten
continue to operate in a manner that will enableureet the requirements for qualification andatepn as a REIT.

As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to Uf&€deral income tax on the REIT taxable income thatcurrently distribute to o
stockholders. Taxable income generated by anybtex@EIT subsidiary (“TRS”"}hat we may form or acquire will be subject to fedestat:
and local income tax. Under the Code, REITs argestito numerous organizational and operationalireqents, including a requirement 1
they distribute annually at least 90% of their REdXable income, determined without regard to tha@udtion for dividends paid and excluc
any net capital gains. If we fail to qualify as &IR in any calendar year and do not qualify fortaier statutory relief provisions, our inco
would be subject to U.S. federal income tax, andmweeld likely be precluded from qualifying for tte@ent as a REIT until the fifth calens
year following the year in which we failed to qfaliEven if we qualify as a REIT, we may still bebgect to certain federal, state and I
taxes on our income and assets and to U.S. feidemhe and excise taxes on our undistributed income

Investment Company Act Exemption

We operate our business so that we are exemptrigistration under the Investment Company Act. g on the exemption provid
by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company,Aghich applies to companies in the business othmsing or otherwise acquiri
mortgages and other liens on, and interests ihe#ate. In order to rely on the exemption progidg Section 3(c)(5)(C), we must maintai
least 55% of our assets in qualifying real estatets. For the purposes of this test, structureehéy RMBS are noualifying real esta
assets. We monitor our portfolio periodically antbpto each investment to confirm that we continaigualify for the exemption. To qual
for the exemption, we make investments so thatadt|55% of the assets we own on an unconsolidhaisid consist of qualifying mortgay
and other liens on and interests in real estategshmie refer to as qualifying real estate asseid, s that at least 80% of the assets we ov
an unconsolidated basis consist of real estatéetblssets, including our qualifying real estasetss




We treat whole-pool pass-through Agency RMBS adifyirag real estate assets based oraeten letters issued by the Staff of the €
In August 2011, the SEC, through a concept releasgiested comments on interpretations of SectQ){3(C). To the extent that the SEC
its staff publishes new or different guidance witlspect to these matters, we may fail to qualifytfes exemption. Our Manager intend:
manage our pass-through Agency RMBS portfolio sthet we will have sufficient whole-pool passough Agency RMBS to ensure
maintain our exemption from registration under timgestment Company Act. At present, we generallyndbexpect that our investment:
structured Agency RMBS will constitute qualifyingal estate assets but will constitute real estdtted assets for purposes of the Invest
Company Act.

Employees

We have no employees. We are externally managddadwised by our Manager pursuant to a managenggaement as discus
below.

Competition

Our net income largely depends on our ability tquiie Agency RMBS at favorable spreads over ourdvang costs. When we invi
in Agency RMBS and other investment assets, we etenwith a variety of institutional investors, inding other REITS, insurance compar
mutual funds, pension funds, investment bankingdirbanks and other financial institutions thaestin the same types of assets, the Fe
Reserve Bank and other governmental entities oegwrentsponsored entities. Many of these investors hagatgr financial resources ¢
access to lower costs of capital than we do. Tl&tence of these competitive entities, as welhaspossibility of additional entities forming
the future, may increase the competition for thguagition of mortgage related securities, resultmyigher prices and lower yields on assets.

Distributions

To maintain a qualification as a REIT, we mustritistte substantially all of our REIT taxable incotfes defined in the Code) to «
stockholders for each year. We plan to continugetdare and pay regular monthly dividends to ¢eckholders.

Available Information

Our investor relations website is www.orchidislaapital.com. We make available on the website urilarancial Information/SE
filings," free of charge, our annual report on FdfiK, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our entrreports on Form B-and any othe
reports (including any amendments to such repagsgoon as reasonably practicable after we eléctdbnfile or furnish such materials to 1
SEC. Information on our website, however, is nat pathis Annual Report on Form 10- All reports filed with the SEC may also be read
copied at the SEG’public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Whagbn, D.C. 20549. Further information regardihg bperation of tt
public reference room may be obtained by calli®00-SEC-0330. In addition, all of our filed remodan be obtained at the SE@Vebsite ¢
WWW.SeC.gov.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks describetblv and all other information contained in this Al Report on Form 16
including our annual financial statements and rethinotes thereto, before making an investmentidaciegarding our common stock. C
business, financial condition or results of opesat could be harmed by any of these risks. Sirgijlénese risks could cause the market prit
our common stock to decline and you might losergfiart of your investment. Our forwatdeking statements in this annual report are sut
to the following risks and uncertainties. Our adttesults could differ materially from those angiated by our forwardeoking statements as
result of the risk factors below.

Risks Related to Our Business

The U.S. Federal Reserge’ecent announcement that it would reduce its higmurchases pursuant to QE3 could impact the etsfid
and value of the Agency RMBS in which we investedisas our net asset value and net interest margin

On September 13, 2012, the U.S. Federal Reserveuaned a third round of quantitative easing (“QE3WVhich is an operende:
program designed to expand the Federal Reservédinge of longterm securities by purchasing an additional $40obilof Agency RMB!
per month until key economic indicators, such as uhemployment rate, show signs of improvemenDd&aember 2012, the U.S. Fed
Reserve announced that it would begin buying $4®biof longterm Treasury bonds each month. On December 1&,20b& U.S. Feder
Reserve announced that it would reduce its purshas&gency RMBS by $5 billion per month and reditsgpurchases of Treasury bond:
$5 billion per month beginning in January 2014. January 29, 2014, the U.S. Federal Reserve anadwmditional $5 billion reductions
its monthly purchases of both Agency RMBS and Tugabonds to take effect in February 2014.

The immediate effect of the announcement of QE3 avafcrease in Agency RMBS prices. Since theahjirice spike, prices for i
securities have receded below the price levelsdRasted before the announcement of QE3. It isearcivhat effect, if any, the incremel
reduction in the rate of the U.S. Federal Ressra@nthly purchases will have on the value of tigecy RMBS in which we invest. Howey
it is possible that the market for such securitibs, price of such securities and, as a resultpetiasset value and net interest margin cot
negatively affected.

Adverse developments in the broader residentialtgage market may materially adversely affect owsifess, financial condition a
results of operations and our ability to pay distriions to our stockholders.

The residential mortgage market in the United States experienced a variety of difficulties andngfeal economic conditions, includ
defaults, credit losses and liquidity concerns dbher past few years. In addition, certain comméitecéaks, investment banks and insur:
companies have announced extensive losses fronsergdo the residential mortgage market. Theseesobave reduced financial indus
capital, leading to reduced liquidity for some ingtons. These factors have impacted investorggaion of the risk associated with real estat
related assets, including Agency RMBS. As a resalyes for RMBS, including some Agency RMBS anteotAAA-rated RMBS assets, he
been negatively impacted at times. Further increbaséatility and deterioration in the broader resitdal mortgage and RMBS markets r
adversely affect the performance and market valdleesoAgency RMBS in which we invest.

We rely on our Agency RMBS as collateral for ouraficings. Any decline in their value, or perceivedrket uncertainty about th
value, would likely make it difficult for us to adih financing on favorable terms or at all or maintour compliance with terms of ¢
financing arrangements already in place. Additignale have elected to account for our investmaerRMBS under the fair value option a
therefore, such investment will be reported on fineincial statements at fair value with unrealizggins or losses included in earning:
market conditions result in a decline in the vadfi®eur Agency RMBS, our business, financial positamd results of operations and our ak
to pay distributions to our stockholders could taemally adversely affected.
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Interest rate mismatches between our Agency RMB®anborrowings may reduce our net interest mamdiming periods of changit
interest rates, which could materially adverselfeaf our business, financial condition and reswfperations and our ability to p
distributions to our stockholders.

Our portfolio includes Agency RMBS backed by ARMgprid ARMs and fixed-ate mortgages, and the mix of these securitid¢ke
portfolio may be increased or decreased over tifsgiglitionally, the interest rates on ARMs and hybAiBRMs may vary over time based
changes in a short-term interest rate index, ottvtiiere are many.

We finance our acquisitions of pass-through AgeRMBS with short-term financing. During periods dding shortterm interest rate
the income we earn on these securities will nohgkgwith respect to Agency RMBS backed by fixate mortgage loans) or will not incre
at the same rate (with respect to Agency RMBS bditke ARMs and hybrid ARMSs) as our related financowsgts, which may reduce our
interest margin or result in losses.

Separate legislation has been introduced in bothsks of the U.S. Congress, which would, among dltiegs, revoke the charters
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which could materiativersely affect us if these proposed laws wereteda

On June 25, 2013, a bipartisan group of senatbrsdnced the Housing Finance Reform and TaxpayeteBtion Act of 2013, whic
may serve as a catalyst for congressional discussinthe reform of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mach® W.S. Senate. On July 11, 2(
members of the House Committee on Financial Sesviteoduced the Protecting American Taxpayerstamgheowners Act to the U.S. Hot
of Representatives.

While the two bills are distinguishable in manypests, they have some notable commonalities. Bitlthdall for the revocation of tt
charters of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and seictease the opportunities for private capitalddtiipate in, and consequently bear the
of loss in connection with, governmegtaranteed mortgage back securities. Both bills la¢ésre considerable support in their respectivesé
of Congress, which suggests that efforts to refanch possibly eliminate Fannie Mae and Freddie Mag be gaining momentum.

The passage of any new legislation affecting Famhé® and Freddie Mac may create market uncertanty reduce the actual
perceived credit quality of securities issued cargnteed by the U.S. government through a new istiegk successor entity to Fannie Mae
Freddie Mac. If the charters of Fannie Mae and @&ieeilac were revoked, it is unclear what effecgnfy, this would have on the value of
existing Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac Agency RMBSs lalso possible that the aboreferenced proposed legislation, if made law, ¢
adversely impact the market for securities issueguaranteed by the U.S. government and the spegaglsich they trade. The foregoing cc
materially adversely affect the pricing, supplguidity and value of our target assets and othenmigterially adversely affect our busin
operations and financial condition.

We cannot predict the impact, if any, on our eagsiror cash available for distribution to our stooktters of the FHFAS propose
revisions to Fannie Mae’s, Freddie Mac’s and GinMae’s existing infrastructures to align the standardsl gractices of the thri
entities.

On February 21, 2012, the FHFA releasedSitategic Plan for Enterprise Conservatorshipshich set forth three goals for the r
phase of the Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac conseslapsr These three goals are to (i) build a nevagtfucture for the secondary mortg
market, (ii) gradually contract Fannie Mae and HiedVac's presence in the marketplace while simplifying ahdnking their operations, a
(iii) maintain foreclosure prevention activitiesdaoredit availability for new and refinanced mogga. On October 4, 2012, the FHFA relei
its white paper entitleBuilding a New Infrastructure for the Secondary kaige Market which proposes a new infrastructure for Fannie
and Freddie Mac that has two basic goals.
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The first such goal is to replace the current, atgd infrastructures of Fannie Mae and Freddie Midlc a common, more efficie
infrastructure that aligns the standards and prestof the two entities, beginning with core fuoct performed by both entities suct
issuance, master servicing, bond administratiofiateral management and data integration. The skgmal is to establish an opera
framework for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac that isstsient with the progress of housing finance rafand encourages and accommoc
the increased participation of private capital$swaning credit risk associated with the secondamtgage market.

The FHFA recognizes that there are a number of dinpents to their goals which may or may not be sumtable, such as the abse
of any significant secondary mortgage market meishasm beyond Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie M@ that their proposals are in
formative stages. As a result, it is unclear if pneposals will be enacted. If such proposals aeeted, it is unclear how closely what is ens
will resemble the proposals from the FHFA White &amr what the effects of the enactment will béeirms of our net asset value, earning
cash available for distribution to our stockholders

Mortgage loan modification programs and future Bgiive action may adversely affect the value off ¢he returns on, our Ager
RMBS, which could materially adversely affect owssibess, financial condition and results of operasi and our ability to p¢
distributions to our stockholders.

During the second half of 2008, the U.S. Governneemimenced programs designed to provide homeowvittraassistance in avoidi
residential mortgage loan foreclosures. The programolve, among other things, the modificationnudrtgage loans to reduce the princ
amount of the loans or the rate of interest payablthe loans, or to extend the payment termseofdans.

In addition, in February 2008, the U.S. Treasumgaamced the Homeowner Affordability and Stabilitaf, or HASP, which is a multi-
faceted plan intended to prevent residential mgedareclosures by, among other things:

« allowing certain homeowners whose homes are encgtdb®y Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac conforming morégai refinance tho
mortgages into lower interest rate mortgages wittiee Fannie Mae or Freddie Me

« creating the Homeowner Stability Initiative, whiishintended to utilize various incentives for baakel mortgage servicers to moc
residential mortgage loans with the goal of redgcmonthly mortgage principal and interest paymefais certain qualifie
homeowners; an

« allowing judicial modifications of Fannie Mae andeBdie Mac conforming residential mortgages loamsindg bankruptc
proceedings

In October 2011, the FHFA announced proposed clatm¢he Home Affordable Refinance Program, or HARRt would expar
access to refinancing for qualified individuals dathilies whose homes have lost value by, amongrdtiings, increasing the HARP loan-to
value ratio above 125%. However, this would onlplgpto mortgages guaranteed by the GSEs. Therenargy challenging issues to t
proposal, notably the question as to whether aatina loan-to-value ratio of 125% qualifies asiartgage or an unsecured consumer loan.

On January 4, 2012, the Federal Reserve issued i@ whper outlining additional ideas with regard refinancings and lo:
modifications. It is likely that loan modificationsould result in increased prepayments on some &g&MBS. As described elsewhe
prepayments could negatively affect the value afAgency RMBS, which could result in reduced eagsir losses and negatively affect
cash available for distribution to our stockholdérkese initiatives, any future loan modificatiorograms and future legislative or regula
actions, including amendments to the bankruptcys)aat result in the modification of outstandingrtgage loans may adversely affect
value of, and the returns on, the Agency RMBS iictvhive invest.

12




We invest in structured Agency RMBS, including CMOs, II0s and POs. Although structured Agency BMiBe generally subject
the same risks as our paggough Agency RMBS, certain types of risks magrenced depending on the type of structured A
RMBS in which we invest.

The structured Agency RMBS in which we invest aeeusitizations (i) issued by Fannie Mae, FreddiecMa Ginnie Mae, (i
collateralized by Agency RMBS and (ii) divided éntarious tranches that have different charactesigsuch as different maturities or differ
coupon payments). These securities may carry greigtethan an investment in paggough Agency RMBS. For example, certain type
structured Agency RMBS, such as IOs, [I0s and R@smore sensitive to prepayment risks than gassigh Agency RMBS. If we were
invest in structured Agency RMBS that were moresiime to prepayment risks relative to other typéstructured Agency RMBS or pass-
through Agency RMBS, we may increase our portfelide prepayment risk.

Increased levels of prepayments on the mortgagderlying our Agency RMBS might decrease net inténesme or result in a net lo:
which could materially adversely affect our bus)dmancial condition and results of operationgdasur ability to pay distributions
our stockholders.

In the case of residential mortgages, theeesaidom any restrictions on borroweadility to prepay their loans. Prepayment r
generally increase when interest rates fall andedase when interest rates rise. Prepayment rasesnady be affected by other fact
including, without limitation, conditions in the tieing and financial markets, governmental acti@megal economic conditions and the rele
interest rates on ARMs, hybrid ARMs and fixed-rab@rtgage loans. With respect to pass-through AgeRBBS, faster-thamxpecte
prepayments could also materially adversely affectbusiness, financial condition and results adragions and our ability to pay distributic
to our stockholders in various ways, including fibiéowing:

« A portion of our passarough Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and hybrid ARMay initially bear interest at rates that are lother
their fully indexed rates, which are equivalenthe applicable index rate plus a margin. If a ghssugh Agency RMBS backed
ARMSs or hybrid ARMs is prepaid prior to or sooneafthe time of adjustment to a fuligdexed rate, we will have held that Age
RMBS while it was less profitable and lost the oppioity to receive interest at the fullgdexed rate over the remainder ol
expected life

« If we are unable to acquire new Agency RMBS toaeelthe prepaid Agency RMBS, our returns on capiay be lower than if v
were able to quickly acquire new Agency RME

When we acquire structured Agency RMBS, we antieighat the underlying mortgages will prepay atejqeted rate, generating
expected yield. When the prepayment rates on th#égages underlying our structured Agency RMBS aghdr than expected, our returns
those securities may be materially adversely agfbdEor example, the value of our IOs and IIOseateemely sensitive to prepayments bec
holders of these securities do not have the rightteive any principal payments on the underlymugtgages. Therefore, if the mortgage I
underlying our 10s and IIOs are prepaid, such sgesrwould cease to have any value, which, in teould materially adversely affect «
business, financial condition and results of openstand our ability to pay distributions to ousdtholders.

While we seek to minimize prepayment risk, we mbefance prepayment risk against other risks andptitential returns of ea
investment. No strategy can completely insulatéars prepayment or other such risks.
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A decrease in prepayment rates on the mortgagesrlyiay our Agency RMBS might decrease net inténesime or result in a net lo:
which could materially adversely affect our bus)dmancial condition and results of operationgdasur ability to pay distributions
our stockholders.

Certain of our structured Agency RMBS may be adbdlgraffected by a decrease in prepayment ratesefample, because POs
similar to zeroeoupon bonds, our expected returns on such sexunitill be contingent on our receiving the printipayments of th
underlying mortgage loans at expected intervalsabaume a certain prepayment rate. If prepaynaées are lower than expected, we will
receive principal payments as quickly as we ardigig and, therefore, our expected returns on texagities will be adversely affected, wh
in turn, could materially adversely affect our mesis, financial condition and results of operatiand our ability to pay distributions to «
stockholders.

While we seek to minimize prepayment risk, we mheftance prepayment risk against other risks andptitential returns of ea
investment. No strategy can completely insulatéars prepayment or other such risks.

Interest rate caps on the ARMs and hybrid ARMs ibgour Agency RMBS may reduce our net interesgmaturing periods of risin
interest rates, which could materially adverselfeaf our business, financial condition and reswfperations and our ability to p
distributions to our stockholders.

ARMs and hybrid ARMs are typically subject to pelimand lifetime interest rate caps. Periodic iaserate caps limit the amount
interest rate can increase during any given petiddtime interest rate caps limit the amount ateiiest rate can increase through the mai
of the loan. Our borrowings typically are not subje similar restrictions. Accordingly, in a peadi@f rapidly increasing interest rates,
financing costs could increase without limitatiohil® caps could limit the interest we earn on thMs and hybrid ARMs backing our Ager
RMBS. This problem is magnified for ARMs and hybAéRMSs that are not fully indexed because such péitnterest rate caps prevent
coupon on the security from fully reaching the sfjed rate in one reset. Further, some ARMs andridyBRMs may be subject to perio
payment caps that result in a portion of the irsebeing deferred and added to the principal oudsta. As a result, we may receive less
income on Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and hybrid ARttlan necessary to pay interest on our relatesbworgs. Interest rate caps
Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and hybrid ARMs coulduee our net interest margin if interest rates vieriecrease beyond the level of
caps, which could materially adversely affect ousibess, financial condition and results of operatiand our ability to pay distributions to
stockholders.

We rely on analytical models and other data to gmalpotential asset acquisition and dispositionarpmities and to manage c
portfolio. Such models and other data may be inedrrmisleading or incomplete, which could causéougurchase assets that do
meet our expectations or to make asset manageraeisi@hs that are not in line with our strategy.

We rely on analytical models, and information atfteo data supplied by third parties. These modadsdata may be used to value as
or potential asset acquisitions and dispositiors ianconnection with our asset management actévitieour models and data prove to
incorrect, misleading or incomplete, any decisiorale in reliance thereon could expose us to palergks.

Our reliance on models and data may induce us itchpse certain assets at prices that are too tugdell certain other assets at pr

that are too low or to miss favorable opportunitéegether. Similarly, any hedging activities tlaae based on faulty models and data
prove to be unsuccessful.
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Some models, such as prepayment models, may b&tpredn nature. The use of predictive models mdmerent risks. For examp
such models may incorrectly forecast future behavi@ading to potential losses. In addition, thedictive models used by us may di
substantially from those models used by other niapkticipants, resulting in valuations based oeséh predictive models that may
substantially higher or lower for certain assetmntactual market prices. Furthermore, becauseqiieglimodels are usually constructed bi
on historical data supplied by third parties, thecess of relying on such models may depend heavilyhe accuracy and reliability of -
supplied historical data, and, in the case of mtedj performance in scenarios with little or natbrical precedent (such as extreme broa
based declines in home prices, or deep economissems or depressions), such models must empéategrdegrees of extrapolation anc
therefore more speculative and less reliable.

All valuation models rely on correct market datput If incorrect market data is entered into esenellfounded valuation model, t
resulting valuations will be incorrect. Howevereavif market data is inputted correctly, “modelcps” will often differ substantially frot
market prices, especially for securities with comxptharacteristics or whose values are particukselysitive to various factors. If our mai
data inputs are incorrect or our model prices digigbstantially from market prices, our businessrfcial condition and results of operati
and our ability to make distributions to our stookters could be materially adversely affected.

Valuations of some of our assets are inherenthettam, may be based on estimates, may fluctuate short periods of time and
differ from the values that would have been usedéady market for these assets existed. As dt rése values of some of our assets
uncertain.

While in many cases our determination of the failue of our assets is based on valuations provigetthirdparty dealers and prici
services, we can and do value assets based upgadmment, and such valuations may differ from ¢hpsovided by thirgparty dealers ar
pricing services. Valuations of certain assetsaften difficult to obtain or are unreliable. In g#al, dealers and pricing services hes
disclaim their valuations. Additionally, dealers ynelaim to furnish valuations only as an accommimtiaind without special compensat
and so they may disclaim any and all liability &y direct, incidental or consequential damagesrayiout of any inaccuracy or incompletet
in valuations, including any act of negligence ogdzrh of any warranty. Depending on the compleaitst illiquidity of an asset, valuations
the same asset can vary substantially from onedealpricing service to another. The valuationcpss has been particularly difficult rece
because market events have made valuations ofrcaedsets more difficult and unpredictable anddisparity of valuations provided by third-
party dealers has widened.

Our business, financial condition and results cérafions and our ability to make distributions to stockholders could be materit
adversely affected if our fair value determinatiaristhese assets were materially higher than theesathat would exist if a ready matr
existed for these assets.

An increase in interest rates may cause a decreasiee volume of newly issued, or investor demandAgency RMBS, which col
materially adversely affect our ability to acquiassets that satisfy our investment objectives amcbasiness, financial condition a
results of operations and our ability to pay distriions to our stockholders.

Rising interest rates generally reduce the demanddnsumer credit, including mortgage loans, a@uthé higher cost of borrowing.
reduction in the volume of mortgage loans may affee volume of Agency RMBS available to us, whaduld affect our ability to acqui
assets that satisfy our investment objectivesnBisiterest rates may also cause Agency RMBS tkat vgsued prior to an interest rate incr
to provide yields that exceed prevailing markeeiast rates. If rising interest rates cause usetarable to acquire a sufficient volume
Agency RMBS or Agency RMBS with a yield that exceedir borrowing costs, our ability to satisfy onvéstment objectives and to gene
income and pay dividends, our business, finandatition and results of operations and our abtlitpay distributions to our stockholders r
be materially adversely affected.
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Because the assets that we acquire might experipadeds of illiquidity, we might be prevented fr@alling our Agency RMBS
favorable times and prices, which could materiatjversely affect our business, financial conditéom results of operations and ¢
ability to pay distributions to our stockholders.

Agency RMBS might experience periods of illiquidiguch conditions are more likely to occur for stamed Agency RMBS becat
such securities are generally traded in marketshnhegs liquid than the pasisrough Agency RMBS market. As a result, we maybable ti
dispose of our Agency RMBS at advantageous timdspgices or in a timely manner. The lack of ligtiydnight result from the absence ¢
willing buyer or an established market for thessets as well as legal or contractual restrictiongasale. The illiquidity of Agency RME
could materially adversely affect our businessatiicial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to o
stockholders.

Our use of leverage could materially adversely @ffeur business, financial condition and resultsop&rations and our ability to p
distributions to our stockholders.

We calculate our leverage ratio by dividing ouatdiabilities by total equity at the end of eadripd. Under normal market conditio
we generally expect our leverage ratio to be lean L2 to 1, although at times our borrowings maghbove or below this level. We incur -
indebtedness by borrowing against a substantidgigpoof the market value of our pagsough Agency RMBS and a portion of our structi
Agency RMBS. Our total indebtedness, however, tsexpressly limited by our policies and will depemw our prospective lendersstimate
of the stability of our portfoli® cash flow. As a result, there is no limit on #mount of leverage that we may incur. We face iglethat we
might not be able to meet our debt service obligetior a lendes’ margin requirements from our income and, to #terg we cannot, we mig
be forced to liquidate some of our Agency RMBS afamorable prices. Our use of leverage could matgradversely affect our busine
financial condition and results of operation and ahility to pay distributions to our stockholdeFar example:

« our borrowings are secured by our p#ssugh Agency RMBS and a portion of our structufegency RMBS under repurchz
agreements. A decline in the market value of thesff@ough Agency RMBS or structured Agency RMBS usedecure these d¢
obligations could limit our ability to borrow orselt in lenders requiring us to pledge additiora@lateral to secure our borrowings
that situation, we could be required to sell AgeRBS under adverse market conditions in ordertitaio the additional collatel
required by the lender. If these sales are magwiegs lower than the carrying value of the AgeRiMBS, we would experien
losses

« to the extent we are compelled to liquidate qualiyreal estate assets to repay debts, our conegliauith the REIT rules regardi
our assets and our sources of gross income coulédeively affected, which could jeopardize oualfication as a REIT. Losing o
REIT qualification would cause us to be subject)t&. federal income tax (and any applicable stattlacal taxes) on all of o
income and would decrease profitability and casdilable for distributions to stockholde

If we experience losses as a result of our usewarage, such losses could materially adversegctéfur business, results of operat
and financial condition and our ability to maketdizutions to our stockholders.

We may incur increased borrowing costs, which caulaterially adversely affect our business, finahdandition and results
operations and our ability to pay distributionsdar stockholders.

Our borrowing costs under repurchase agreementgeaerally adjustable and correspond to stert: interest rates, such as the Lor
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, or a shtatm U.S. Treasury index, plus or minus a marghe margins on these borrowings over or u
short-term interest rates may vary depending upamnaber of factors, including, without limitation:

» the movement of interest rates;
- the availability of financing in the market; and
« the value and liquidity of our Agency RMBS.
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All of our current shorterm borrowings are collateralized borrowings ia thrm of repurchase agreements. If the interéssran thes
repurchase agreements increase, our businesscifiharondition and results of operations and ouilitgbto pay distributions to ot
stockholders could be materially adversely affected

Failure to procure adequate repurchase agreememdrfting, or to renew or replace existing repurchaggeement financing as
matures, could materially adversely affect our hass, financial condition and results of operatiansl our ability to make distributio
to our stockholders.

We intend to maintain master repurchase agreemstitseveral counterparties. We cannot assure lyauany, or sufficient, repurchs
agreement financing will be available to us in fheure on terms that are acceptable to us. Anyigedh the value of Agency RMBS,
perceived market uncertainty about their value, ldroniake it more difficult for us to obtain finangron favorable terms or at all, or main
our compliance with the terms of any financing agements already in place. Additionally, our lesderay have owned or financed RV
that have declined in value and caused the lerdsuffer losses as a result of the recent downtuthe residential mortgage market. If th
conditions persist, these institutions may be fdroe exit the repurchase market, become insolverfudher tighten lending standards
increase the amount of equity capital, or haircrgguired to obtain financing, and in such eveatyld make it more difficult for us to obt:
financing on favorable terms or at all. Additioiyalve may be unable to diversify the credit riskasated with our lenders. In the event
we cannot obtain sufficient funding on acceptalelents, our business, financial condition and resoft®perations and our ability to [
distributions to our stockholders may be materiatiyersely effected.

Furthermore, because we intend to rely primarilysbiortterm borrowings to fund our acquisition of AgenciMBS, our ability tc
achieve our investment objective will depend ndyam our ability to borrow money in sufficient aomts and on favorable terms, but alsi
our ability to renew or replace on a continuousisasir maturing shorterm borrowings. If we are not able to renew orlaep maturin
borrowings, we will have to sell some or all of cassets, possibly under adverse market conditionaddition, if the regulatory capi
requirements imposed on our lenders change, thgybmaequired to significantly increase the costhef financing that they provide to us. !
lenders also may revise their eligibility requirertsefor the types of assets they are willing t@fice or the terms of such financings, base
among other factors, the regulatory environmenttaed management of perceived risk.

Adverse market developments could cause our lengergquire us to pledge additional assets as tetk. If our assets we
insufficient to meet these collateral requirements, might be compelled to liquidate particular dssat inopportune times and
unfavorable prices, which could materially adveysaffect our business, financial condition and tesof operations and our ability
pay distributions to our stockholders.

Adverse market developments, including a sharprolopged rise in interest rates, a change in prneyeay rates or increasing mar
concern about the value or liquidity of one or miyyges of Agency RMBS, might reduce the market @atiour portfolio, which might cau
our lenders to initiate margin calls. A margin cakkans that the lender requires us to pledge additicollateral to restablish the ratio of tl
value of the collateral to the amount of the boirmy The specific collateral value to borrowingioahat would trigger a margin call is not
in the master repurchase agreements and not detmnintil we engage in a repurchase transactioeruthetse agreements. Our fixede
Agency RMBS generally are more susceptible to nmacgils as increases in interest rates tend to megatively affect the market value
fixed-rate securities. If we are unable to satisfy mamgilts, our lenders may foreclose on our collatéFak threat or occurrence of a ma
call could force us to sell either directly or thgh a foreclosure our Agency RMBS under advers&eta@onditions. Because of the signific
leverage we expect to have, we may incur substdontaes upon the threat or occurrence of a margih which could materially advers:
affect our business, financial condition and reswit operations and our ability to pay distribuoto our stockholders. Additionally,
liquidation of collateral may jeopardize our alyilib qualify or maintain our qualification as a RElas we must comply with requireme
regarding our assets and our sources of gross mcbme are compelled to liquidate our Agency RMB& may be unable to comply w
these requirements, ultimately jeopardizing oulitgbio qualify or maintain our qualification asREIT. Our failure to qualify as a REIT
maintain our qualification would cause us to bejetthto U.S. federal income tax (and any applicaltéde and local taxes) on all of our
taxable income.
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Our use of repurchase agreements may give our fendeeater rights in the event that either we oryamf our lenders file fc
bankruptcy, which may make it difficult for us &@over our collateral in the event of a bankrufiting.

Our borrowings under repurchase agreements mayfygé@l special treatment under the bankruptcy ¢ageing our lenders the abili
to avoid the automatic stay provisions of the baptay code and to take possession of and liquidatecollateral under the repurch
agreements without delay if we file for bankruptEyrthermore, the special treatment of repurchgseements under the bankruptcy code
make it difficult for us to recover our pledged etssin the event that any of our lenders files fankruptcy. Thus, the use of repurct
agreements exposes our pledged assets to risk evint of a bankruptcy filing by either our lergder us. In addition, if the lender is a brc
or dealer subject to the Securities Investor Ptmied\ct of 1970, or an insured depository instdntsubject to the Federal Deposit Insur:
Act, our ability to exercise our rights to recowrr investment under a repurchase agreement a@ tmimpensated for any damages rest
from the lender’s insolvency may be further limitegdthose statutes.

If we fail to maintain our relationship with AVM,R. or if we do not establish relationships withert repurchase agreement tradi
clearing and administrative service providers, domsiness, financial condition and results of opierag and our ability to pe
distributions to our stockholders could be matdyiadversely affected.

We have engaged AVM, L.P. to provide us with certa@purchase agreement trading, clearing and asirative services. If we ¢
unable to maintain our relationship with AVM, L.Br we are unable to establish successful relatipasiith other repurchase agreen
trading, clearing and administrative service prev&l our business, financial condition and resaftsoperations and our ability to [
distributions to our stockholders could be matgriativersely affected.

If our lenders default on their obligations to réétbe Agency RMBS back to us at the end of tharodyase transaction term, or if t
value of the Agency RMBS has declined by the endeofepurchase transaction term or if we defaultaur obligations under tt
repurchase transaction, we will lose money on thesesactions, which, in turn, may materially adsely affect our business, financ
condition and results of operations and our abititypay distributions to our stockholders.

When we engage in a repurchase transaction, wallyisell securities to the financial institutiamder one of our master repurct
agreements in exchange for cash, and our countgiigasbligated to resell the securities to ushaténd of the term of the transaction, whic
typically from 24 to 90 days but may be up to 3&¢sior more. The cash we receive when we init@lythe securities is less than the valt
those securities, which is referred to as the haitdany financial institutions from which we maltain repurchase agreement financing |
increased their haircuts in the past and may dagsn in the future. If these haircuts are incrdase will be required to post additional cas
securities as collateral for our Agency RMBS. If counterparty defaults on its obligation to redlel securities to us, we would incur a los
the transaction equal to the amount of the hai@sguming there was no change in the value ofdberiies). We would also lose money ¢
repurchase transaction if the value of the undeglyecurities had declined as of the end of threséetion term, as we would have to repurc
the securities for their initial value but wouldccedve securities worth less than that amount. Aisgés we incur on our repurchase transac
could materially adversely affect our businessatiicial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to o
stockholders.

If we default on one of our obligations under aurghase transaction, the counterparty can termihatéransaction and cease ente
into any other repurchase transactions with ugh&t case, we would likely need to establish aasgyhent repurchase facility with anor
financial institution in order to continue to leage our portfolio and carry out our investmenttstig. There is no assurance we would be
to establish a suitable replacement facility oreatable terms or at all.
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Hedging against interest rate exposure may not detely insulate us from interest rate risk and cbuaterially adversely affect c
business, financial condition and results of opiera and our ability to pay distributions to ounskholders.

To the extent consistent with qualifying and maimtay our qualification as a REIT, we may enteroinhterest rate cap or sw
agreements or pursue other hedging strategiesidimg) the purchase of puts, calls or other opteams futures contracts in order to hedge
interest rate risk of our portfolio. In generalrdwedging strategy depends on our view of our emgortfolio consisting of assets, liabilities .
derivative instruments, in light of prevailing matkconditions. We could misjudge the condition of mvestment portfolio or the market. (
hedging activity will vary in scope based on theeleand volatility of interest rates and principaépayments, the type of Agency RMBS
hold and other changing market conditions. Hedgiay fail to protect or could adversely affect usdese, among other things:

« hedging can be expensive, particularly during msiof rising and volatile interest rates;

« available interest rate hedging may not correspbrettly with the interest rate risk for which pection is sought;

« the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifahe related liability;

« certain types of hedges may expose us to riskssf beyond the fee paid to initiate the hedge;

- the amount of gross income that a REIT may earm foertain hedging transactions is limited by fetlémaome tax provisior
governing REITs

« the credit quality of the counterparty on the hedgsy be downgraded to such an extent that it ilspair ability to sell or assign ¢
side of the hedging transaction; &

« the counterparty in the hedging transaction magulebn its obligation to pay.

There are no perfect hedging strategies, and stteate hedging may fail to protect us from loskeratively, we may fail to propel
assess a risk to our investment portfolio or méytderecognize a risk entirely, leaving us exposetbsses without the benefit of any offset
hedging activities. The derivative financial instrents we select may not have the effect of redusingnterest rate risk. The nature and tin
of hedging transactions may influence the effectass of these strategies. Poorly designed strategienproperly executed transactions c
actually increase our risk and losses. In additi@ulging activities could result in losses if ter® against which we hedge does not occur.

Because of the foregoing risks, our hedging agtieituld materially adversely affect our businegsaricial condition and results
operations and our ability to pay distribution®to stockholders.

Our use of certain hedging techniques may expose csunterparty risks.

If an interest rate swap counterparty cannot parfonder the terms of the interest rate swap, we moayeceive payments due under
swap, and thus, we may lose any unrealized gaiocided with the interest rate swap. The hedgdillitia could cease to be hedged by
interest rate swap. Additionally, we may also tis& loss of any collateral we have pledged to geour obligations under the interest rate <
if the counterparty becomes insolvent or filesidankruptcy. Similarly, if an interest rate cap cuparty fails to perform under the terms of
interest rate cap agreement, we may not receive@ats due under that agreement that wouldeffeur interest expense and then could
a loss for the then remaining fair market valu¢hefinterest rate cap.
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Clearing facilities or exchanges upon which someowf hedging instruments are traded may increasegmarequirements on ol
hedging instruments in the event of adverse ecandenvielopments.

In response to events having or expected to hawversel economic consequences or which create mamkettainty, clearing facilities
exchanges upon which some of our hedging instrusnesich as Eurodollar futures contracts, are tradayl require us to post additio
collateral against our hedging instruments. In o@sp to the U.S. approaching its debt ceiling withresolution and the government shutdc
the Chicago Mercantile Exchange announced on Octble2013 that it would increase margin requiretsidry 12% for all over-theeunte
interest rate swap portfolios that its clearingleogaaranteed. This increase was subsequently Hodleki on October 17, 2013 upon the n
that Congress passed legislation to temporarilpesus the debt ceiling and reopen the governmenthaddlowed time for broader negotiati
concerning budgetary issues. In the event thatrduadverse economic developments or market unogrtaesult in increased mary
requirements for our hedging instruments, it caulterially adversely affect our liquidity positiomsiness, financial condition and result
operations.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectivell dépend on our ability to manage future growtfeefively.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectived @epend on our ability to grow, which will deperid turn, on our Manages’ability
to identify and invest in securities that meet imwestment criteria. Accomplishing this result onasteffective basis largely will be a functi
of our Manages structuring and implementation of the investmmotess, its ability to provide competent, attemtwnd efficient services to
and our access to financing on acceptable terms.Manager has substantial responsibilities, andgroker to grow, needs to hire, tr:
supervise and manage new employees successfulfyfaflore to manage our future growth effectivebutd have a material adverse effec
our business, financial condition and results afrafions and our ability to pay distributions ta stockholders.

We may change our investment strategy, investmedelgnes and asset allocation without notice arckholder consent, which nr
result in riskier investments. In addition, our ctea provides that our Board of Directors may reeodr otherwise terminate our RE
election, without the approval of our stockholders.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to change investment strategy or asset allocation attang without notice to or conse
from our stockholders. To the extent that our itwesnt strategy changes in the future, we may makesiments that are different from,
possibly riskier than, the investments describethis annual report. A change in our investmeratsgly may increase our exposure to int
rate and real estate market fluctuations. Furthezme change in our asset allocation could resubtir allocating assets in a different mai
than as described in this annual report.

In addition, our charter provides that our Boardiafectors may revoke or otherwise terminate outTR&ection, without the appro\
of our stockholders, if it determines that it islooger in our best interests to qualify as a RHIARese changes could materially adversely ¢
our business, financial condition, results of ofierss, the market value of our common stock and ahility to make distributions to @
stockholders.
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Competition might prevent us from acquiring AgeRiyBS at favorable yields, which could materiallweasely affect our busine
financial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

We operate in a highly competitive market for irtwesnt opportunities. Our net income largely deperdsur ability to acquire Agen
RMBS at favorable spreads over our borrowing costsacquiring Agency RMBS, we compete with a varief institutional investor
including other REITSs, investment banking firmsyisgs and loan associations, banks, insurance coiegamutual funds, other lenders, o
entities that purchase Agency RMBS, the FederaéRes other governmental entities and governmseonsored entities, many of which h
greater financial, technical, marketing and othesources than we do. Several other REITs have ttgoatised, or are expected to ra
significant amounts of capital, and may have inwesitt objectives that overlap with ours, which magate additional competition 1
investment opportunities. Some competitors may tsal@ver cost of funds and access to funding sautftat may not be available to us, ¢
as funding from the U.S. Government. Additionaltyany of our competitors are not subject to REITdampliance or required to maintain
exemption from the Investment Company Act. In dddit some of our competitors may have higher riglerances or different ri
assessments, which could allow them to considerdarwariety of investments. Furthermore, compatitfor investments in Agency RMI
may lead the price of such investments to increab&h may further limit our ability to generatesited returns. As a result, we may no
able to acquire sufficient Agency RMBS at favorappeeads over our borrowing costs, which would nietg adversely affect our busine
financial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

Actions of the U.S. Government for the purposealfilizing the financial markets may adversely effeur business, financial conditi
and results of operations and our ability to pagtdbutions to our stockholders.

The U.S. Government, through the Federal ResemeeJtS. Treasury, the SEC, the Federal Housing Aidtnation, or the FHA, tt
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or the Fi] other governmental and regulatory bodies &leentor is considering taking varic
actions to address the recent financial crisis. &ample, on July 21, 2010, President Obama sigmedlaw the Dodd-rank Wall Stres
Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or the DoddikrAct. Many aspects of the Dodftank Act are subject to rulemaking and will t
effect over several years, making it difficult totigipate the overall financial impact on us andyrengenerally, the financial services
mortgage industries. Additionally, we cannot préaibether there will be additional proposed lawsedorms that would affect us, whethe
when such changes may be adopted, how such charayebe interpreted and enforced or how such chamggsaffect us. However, the cc
of complying with any additional laws or regulationould have a material adverse effect on our kasinfinancial condition and results
operations and our ability to pay distribution®to stockholders.

In addition to the foregoing, the U.S. Congress/@ndarious state and local legislatures may endditional legislation or regulatc
action designed to address the current econonsis @i for other purposes that could have a matdieerse effect on our ability to execute
business strategies. To the extent the market doesespond favorably to these initiatives or tldeynot function as intended, our busin
financial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholdexuld be materially adversely affected.
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We are an “emerging growth companyhd we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosaggirements applicable to emerging gro
companies will make our common stock less attra¢tvinvestors.

We are an “emerging growth compangs defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startgp®#2012, or the JOBS Act, and as such
are not required to comply with the auditor attéstarequirements of Section 404 of the SarbandgyO&ct of 2002, or the Sarbanés<ley
Act, we have reduced disclosure obligations regayéixecutive compensation in our periodic repant$ groxy statements, and we are exe
from the requirements of holding a nonbinding adrjisvote on executive compensation and stockhadghroval of any golden parach
payments not previously approved. Although we areemerging growth company under the JOBS Act, wee helected to opt out of t
extended transition period for complying with newrevised accounting standards, and such electidmrévocable. We cannot predic
investors will find our shares of common stock lasisactive because we may rely on these provisibrsome investors find our shares
common stock less attractive as a result, therebpayless active trading market for our sharesoamghare price may be more volatile.

Our obligation to comply with the requirementsioé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 will increase.

As long as we remain an emerging growth companyhasterm is defined in the JOBS Act, we will berpitted to gradually comg
with certain of the on-going reporting and discl@sabligations of public companies pursuant toShebane®©xley Act. We cannot be certi
if the reduced disclosure requirements applicablenerging growth companies will make our ordingtigires less attractive to investors.

Management is required to deliver a report thaessss the effectiveness of our internal controbkr dwancial reporting pursuant
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Section @fOdhe Sarbane®©xley Act may require our auditors to deliver atestation report on tl
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahgieporting in conjunction with their opinion omroaudited financial statements in fut
years. Substantial work on our part is requiretirtplement appropriate processes, document themysténternal control over key proces:
assess their design, remediate any deficienciedifidel and test their operation. This processxjseeted to be both costly and challenging.
cannot give any assurances that material weaknesibest be identified in the future in connectianth our compliance with the provisions
Section 302 and 404 of the Sarbafkedey Act. The existence of any material weaknesscdbed above would preclude a conclusio
management and our independent auditors that watamaed effective internal control over financigporting. Our management may
required to devote significant time and expenseetoediate any material weaknesses that may bewdisa and may not be able to remec
any material weakness in a timely manner. The exig of any material weakness in our internal obrtver financial reporting could al
result in errors in our financial statements thatld require us to restate our financial statemecasise us to fail to meet our repor
obligations and cause investors to lose confidémaair reported financial information, all of whiclould lead to a decline in the trading p
of our common stock.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or waay materially adversely affect our business, rfaial condition and results
operations and our ability to pay distributionsdar stockholders.

We cannot assure you that there will not be furteenorist attacks against the United States or. buSinesses. These attacks or al
conflicts may directly impact the property undemlyiour Agency RMBS or the securities markets inegah Losses resulting from these ty
of events are uninsurable. More generally, anyhe§¢ events could cause consumer confidence andisgdo decrease or result in incree
volatility in the United States and worldwide firal markets and economies. They also could résuticonomic uncertainty in the Unit
States or abroad. Adverse economic conditions coatch the value of the property underlying our AQeRMBS or the securities market:
general, which could materially adversely affect business, financial condition and results of afiens and our ability to pay distributions
our stockholders.
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We are highly dependent on communications andnmdtion systems operated by third parties, and systiilures could significant
disrupt our business, which may, in turn, adverséigct our business, financial condition and réswoif operations and our ability to
distributions to our stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatéors information systems that allow us to monitalue, buy, sell, finance a
hedge our investments. These systems are openatbddparties and, as a result, we have limiteititg to ensure their continued operation
the event of a systems failure or interruption,witt have limited ability to affect the timing argliccess of systems restoration. Any failui
interruption of our systems could cause delaystieeroproblems in our securities trading activitiesluding Agency RMBS trading activitie
which could have a material adverse effect on asiress, financial condition and results of operatiand our ability to pay distributions
our stockholders.

If we issue debt securities, our operations mayestricted and we will be exposed to additionakris

If we decide to issue debt securities in the futitrés likely that such securities will be govednby an indenture or other instrum
containing covenants restricting our operatingifidity. Additionally, any convertible or exchandaa securities that we issue in the future
have rights, preferences and privileges more fdlerthan those of our common stock. We, and indirewr stockholders, will bear the cos
issuing and servicing such securities. Holderseatft decurities may be granted specific rights,uidicig but not limited to, the right to hol
perfected security interest in certain of our asdie right to accelerate payments due undemtenture, rights to restrict dividend payme
and rights to approve the sale of assets. Suchiaadai restrictive covenants and operating restnict could have a material adverse effec
our business, financial condition and results afragions and our ability to pay distributions ta stockholders.

Adoption of the Basel Il standards and other pregab supplementary regulatory standards may nedwtivepact our access
financing or affect the terms of our future finamgiarrangements.

In response to various financial crises and thatiiy of financial markets, the Basel Committee Banking Supervision adopted
Basel Il standards several years ago. The finekgge of Basel Ill reforms was approved by the @&2@ers in November 2010. In Jant
2013, the Basel Committee agreed to delay impleatient of the Basel Ill standards and expanded ¢bpes of assets permitted to be inclt
in a bank’s liquidity measurement.

U.S. regulators have elected to implement substfntill of the Basel Il standards. Financial ingions will have until 2019 to full
comply with the Basel Ill standards, which couldiga an increase in capital requirements for, anddcplace constraints on, the finan
institutions from which we borrow.

Shortly after approving the Basel Il standardsS.Uregulators also issued a notice of proposedmalking calling for enhanc
supplementary leverage ratio standards, which wouftbse capital requirements more stringent thasetof the Basel 1l standards for
most systematically significant banking organizagian the U.S. The enhanced standards are curmatigct to public comment, and there
be no assurance that they will be adopted or,optat, that they will resemble the current propa&dbption and implementation of the Bz
[l standards and the supplemental regulatory stadedproposed by U.S. regulators may negativehaghpur access to financing or affect
terms of our future financing arrangements.
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Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest in Our Relaibnship with Our Manager and Bimini

The management agreement with our Manager was egotiated on an arm’ength basis and the terms, including fees payablé ou
inability to terminate, or our election not to remethe management agreement based on our Mamagedr performance without paying t
Manager a significant termination fee, except fdeamination of the Manager with cause, may noabdéavorable to us as if it were negotie
with an unaffiliated third party.

The management agreement with our Manager was intggbbetween related parties, and we did not hlaedenefit of arm’sengtt
negotiations of the type normally conducted with waraffiliated third party. The terms of the managemagreement with our Manag
including fees payable and our inability to terntéaor our election not to renew, the managemerdesgent based on our Managepoo
performance without paying our Manager a signifidenmination fee, except for a termination of Manager with cause, may not reflect
terms we may have received if it was negotiatedh wit unrelated third party. In addition, as a resfithe relationship with our Manager,
may choose not to enforce, or to enforce less wiggly, our rights under the management agreemagause of our desire to maintain
ongoing relationship with our Manager.

We have no employees, and our Manager is respentblmaking all of our investment decisions. Nofieur or our Manages officers ar
required to devote any specific amount of timeuo lwusiness, and each of them may provide thewices to Bimini, which could result
conflicts of interest.

Our Manager is responsible for making all of owestments. We do not have any employees, and weaanpletely reliant on o
Manager to provide us with investment advisory mes. Each of our and our Managedfficers is an employee of Bimini and none ofm
will devote their time to us exclusively. Each ofedsrs. Cauley and Haas, who will be the initial toera of our Manages’ investmer
committee, is an officer of Bimini and has sigrdfit responsibilities to Bimini. Due to the fact ttteach of our officers is responsible
providing services to Bimini, they may not devotdfisient time to the management of our busineserafions. At times when there
turbulent conditions in the mortgage markets otrélss in the credit markets or other times whenmileneed focused support and assist:
from our executive officers and our Manager, Bimamd its affiliates will likewise require greatasctis and attention from them. In s
situations, we may not receive the level of suppant assistance that we otherwise would likely lraeeived if we were internally manage!
if such executives were not otherwise committegrtavide support to Bimini.

Our Board of Directors has adopted investment duiele that require that any investment transaclietween us and Bimini or a
affiliate of Bimini receive the prior approval ofraajority of our independent directors. Howevers folicy will not eliminate the conflicts
interest that our officers will face in making irstment decisions on behalf of Bimini and us. Furtlhee do not have any agreemen
understanding with Bimini that would give us anyopty over Bimini or any of its affiliates. Acconagly, we may compete for access to
benefits that we expect our relationship with owardger and Bimini to provide.

We are completely dependent upon our Manager antinekey personnel of Bimini who provide servitesus through the managem
agreement, and we may not find suitable replacesnfentour Manager and these personnel if the mameeye agreement is terminated or s
key personnel are no longer available to us.

We are completely dependent on our Manager to adgralur operations pursuant to the management agreBecause we do not hi
any employees or separate facilities, we are rebanour Manager to provide us with the personsetyices and resources necessary to
out our day-today operations. Our management agreement doegquite our Manager to dedicate specific persormelur operations or
specific amount of time to our business. Additibnabecause we are affiliated with Bimini, we mag begatively impacted by an even
factors, including ongoing and potential legal gedings against Bimini and its subsidiaries, tlegfatively impacts or could negatively imf
Bimini's business or financial condition.
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After the initial term of the management agreemetiich expires on February 20, 2016, or upon thgration of any automatic renev
term, our Manager may elect not to renew the mamagée agreement without cause, and without penaityl80-daysprior written notice t
us. If we elect not to renew the management agreemi¢hout cause, we would have to pay a termimatée equal to three times the ave
annual management fee earned by our Manager dtimngrior 24month period immediately preceding the most regeritimpleted calend
quarter prior to the effective date of terminati@uring the term of the management agreement andwio years after its expiration
termination, we may not, without the consent of Manager, employ any employee of the Manager orddnts affiliates or any person w
has been employed by our Manager or any of ita#fs at any time within the twyear period immediately preceding the date on wkie
person commences employment with us. We do not hetemtion agreements with any of our officers. Wadieve that the success
implementation of our investment and financing tegées depends to a significant extent upon themapce of Biminis executive officer
None of these individug' continued service is guaranteed. If the managemgmement is terminated or these individuals leBiv&ni, we
may be unable to execute our business plan.

Legal proceedings involving Bimini and certain tf $ubsidiaries have adversely affected Bimini, mayerially adversely affect Bim’'s anc
our Managers ability to effectively manage our business anddtonaterially adversely affect our reputation, imgss, operations, financ
condition and results of operations and our abititypay distributions to our stockholders.

Bimini and its subsidiaries are currently subjectértain ongoing legal proceedings and could Iestito further legal proceedings
the future. Most of these legal proceedings arige af the mortgage-related operations of Bingnihortgage origination subsidiary t
discontinued operations in 2007. In the past, Biraimd certain of its subsidiaries have been suliesimilar actions, including proceedil
alleging violations of the federal securities laavsl for breach of duty arising from the sale otaiermortgageelated securities, which he
now been satisfactorily resolved. Bimini and itbsidiaries could be subject to similar actionshia future.

We are externally managed and advised by our Mamagsuant to the terms of a Management AgreenBatause our officers are a
officers of Bimini and our Manager, any legal predmgs or regulatory inquiries involving Bimini our Manager, whether meritorious or |
may divert the time and attention of our Managet e@rtain of its key personnel from us and our §tweent strategy and may negatively al
Bimini' s business, operations and financial conditioraddition, due to our relationship with Bimini andraManager, such events could re
in a material adverse effect on our reputationjriass, financial condition and results of operatiand our ability to pay distributions to
stockholders. Furthermore, if these legal procegslimere to result in a bankruptcy of Bimini or danager, we would not be able to termil
the Management Agreement until 30 days after weigeowritten notice of termination to our Manageacould experience difficulty
finding another manager or hiring personnel to emhaur business. Alternatively, a bankruptcy caatld prevent us from exercising s
termination rights, regardless of the provisionshef management agreement.

We, Bimini and other accounts managed by our Managgy compete for opportunities to acquire assetsch are allocated in accordan
with the Investment Allocation Agreement by andragr®mini, our Manager and us.

From time to time Bimini may seek to purchase feelf the same or similar assets that our Managekssto purchase for us, or
Manager may seek to purchase the same or simsatsafor us as it does for other accounts thatlmayanaged by our Manager in the ful
In such an instance, our Manager has no duty twatk such opportunities in a manner that prefagnfavors us. Bimini and our Manag
make available to us opportunities to acquire asett they determine, in their reasonable and daitld judgment, based on our objecti
policies and strategies, and other relevant facaesappropriate for us in accordance with thestment Allocation Agreement.
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Because many of our targeted assets are typicadijadle only in specified quantities and becauseynof our targeted assets are
targeted assets for Bimini and may be targetedsafmeother accounts our Manager may manage ifutihiee, neither Bimini nor our Manag
may be able to buy as much of any given assetopsresl to satisfy the needs of Bimini, us and athepaccount our Manager may manag
the future. In these cases, the Investment Allooafigreement will require the allocation of suclsets to multiple accounts in proportior
their needs and available capital. The InvestmelidcAtion Agreement will permit departure from suptoportional allocation when
allocating purchases of whopmol Agency RMBS, because those securities cammadivided into multiple parts to be allocated amweagou:
accounts, and (ii) such allocation would resulaminefficiently small amount of the security beijmgrchased for an account. In that case
Investment Allocation Agreement allows for a pratbeof allocating assets so that, on an overallfyasich account is treated equitably.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshiwith our Manager and Bimini, which could resultdecisions that are not in the best inter
of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising ofibur relationships with Bimini and our Managéil of our executive officers a
employees of Bimini. As a result, our officers nteve conflicts between their duties to us and ttheiies to Bimini or our Manager.

We may acquire or sell assets in which Bimini eraffiliates have or may have an interest. SinyilaBimini or its affiliates may acqui
or sell assets in which we have or may have armraste Although such acquisitions or dispositionsynpaesent conflicts of interest, -
nonetheless may pursue and consummate such triansaddditionally, we may engage in transactioireally with Bimini or its affiliates
including the purchase and sale of all or a portiba portfolio asset.

Acquisitions made for entities with similar objess may be different from those made on our beliithini may have econorr
interests in or other relationships with others séobligations or securities we may acquire. Iigaar, such persons may make and/or
an investment in securities that we acquire that beapari passu, senior or junior in ranking to imberest in the securities or in which partr
security holders, officers, directors, agents opleyees of such persons serve on the board oftdieor otherwise have ongoing relationst
Each of such ownership and other relationships reaylt in securities laws restrictions on transangiin such securities and otherwise ci
conflicts of interest. In such instances, our Maragay, in its sole discretion, make recommendatemd decisions regarding such secu
for other entities that may be the same as orreiffiefrom those made for us with respect to suchritees and may take actions (or omit to 1
actions) in the context of these other economirésts or relationships that may have consequehesse to our interests.

The officers of Bimini and our Manager devote aimtime to us as our Manager deems appropriate eMenvthese officers may he
conflicts in allocating their time and services amgas, Bimini and our Manager. During turbulentditions in the mortgage industry, distr
in the credit markets or other times when we wiled focused support and assistance from our Masagfficers and Biminis employee
Bimini and other entities for which our Manager nsgyve as a manager in the future will likewiseursgigreater focus and attention, pla
our Manager’s and Bimirg' resources in high demand. In such situationsnaag not receive the necessary support and asséstemcequire (
would otherwise receive if we were internally maeeg

We, directly or through Bimini or our Manager, malytain confidential information about the compardesecurities in which we ha
invested or may invest. If we possess confidemtifrmation about such companies or securitiesietimeay be restrictions on our ability
dispose of, increase the amount of, or otherwike &tion with respect to the securities of sucmganies. Our Manager’'management
other accounts could create a conflict of intetesthe extent our Manager or Bimini is aware of enial nonpublic information concernir
potential investment decisions. We have implementadpliance procedures and practices designedstarethat investment decisions are
made while in possession of material mamlic information. We cannot assure you, howeteat these procedures and practices wi
effective. In addition, this conflict and these gedures and practices may limit the freedom of Manager to make potentially profita
investments, which could have an adverse effecoumoperations. These limitations imposed by actessonfidential information cou
therefore materially adversely affect our busindsgncial condition and results of operations and ability to make distributions to ¢
stockholders.
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John B. Van Heuvelen, one of our independent directowns shares of common stock of Bimini. Mr. Bguour Chief Executiv
Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors,caéerves as Chief Executive Officer and ChairmathefBoard of Directors of Bimini a
owns shares of common stock of Bimini. Mr. Haag, ©hief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Office&ecretary and a member of our B¢
of Directors, also serves as the Chief Financidic®f, Chief Investment Officer and Treasurer ofmBii and owns shares of common stoc
Bimini. Accordingly, Messrs. Van Heuvelen, CauleydaHaas may have a conflict of interest with respe@ctions by our Board of Direct
that relate to Bimini or our Manager.

As of February 21, 2014, Bimini owns approximat&8/1% of our outstanding shares of common stocleviduating opportunities f
us and other management strategies, this may leailanager to emphasize certain asset acquisiti@position or management objecti
over others, such as balancing risk or capital gmedion objectives against return objectives. Tdusld increase the risks or decrease
returns of your investment.

If we elect to not renew the management agreemightwt cause, we would be required to pay our Mamag substantial termination fe
These and other provisions in our management aggaemake non-renewal of our management agreemfficuttiand costly.

Electing not to renew the management agreemenbutittause would be difficult and costly for us. Mihe consent of the majority
our independent directors, we may elect not toweaer management agreement after the initial tefrthe@ management agreement, wi
expires on February 20, 2016, or upon the expmatioany automatic renewal term, both upon 180-dpsisr written notice. If we elect to r
renew the agreement because of a decision by candBi Directors that the management fee is unéair,Manager has the right to renego
a mutually agreeable management fee. If we eleabtaenew the management agreement without cagsare required to pay our Manag
termination fee equal to three times the averagei@mmanagement fee earned by our Manager dura@ribr 24month period immediate
preceding the most recently completed calendartgugrior to the effective date of termination. $berovisions may increase the effec
cost to us of electing to not renew the manageragrtement, thereby adversely affecting our indlimato end our relationship with ¢
Manager even if we believe our Manager's perforredaainsatisfactory.

Our Manager's management fee is payable regardiéssir performance.

Our Manager is entitled to receive a managemenfréee us that is based on the amount of our eqaisydefined in the managem
agreement), regardless of the performance of astment portfolio. For example, we would pay owardger a management fee for a spe
period even if we experienced a net loss duringsttree period. Our Manager’s entitlement to subisifambnperformancéased compensati
may reduce its incentive to devote sufficient tiamed effort to seeking investments that provideaative riskadjusted returns for o
investment portfolio. This in turn could materialiggversely affect our business, financial conditiml results of operations and our abilit
make distributions to our stockholders.
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Our Manager will not be liable to us for any actsamissions performed in accordance with the mansagg agreement, including with resg
to the performance of our investments.

Our Manager has not assumed any responsibilityr alfzan to render the services called for undemtlamagement agreement in g
faith and is not responsible for any action of Board of Directors in following or declining to folv its advice or recommendations, incluc
as set forth in the investment guidelines. Our Mgnand its affiliates, and the directors, officemmployees, members and stockholders ¢
Manager and its affiliates, will not be liable ts, wur Board of Directors or our stockholders fioy acts or omissions performed in accord:
with and pursuant to the management agreementpekgaeason of acts constituting bad faith, williiisconduct, gross negligence or reck
disregard of their respective duties under the mement agreement. We have agreed to indemnify camalgler and its affiliates, and
directors, officers, employees, members and stddkin® of our Manager and its affiliates, with redpto all expenses, losses, dame
liabilities, demands, charges and claims in respéair arising from any acts or omissions of ourridger, its affiliates, and the direct:
officers, employees, members and stockholders oManager and its affiliates, performed in goodhfainder the management agreemen
not constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, gonegligence, or reckless disregard of their seduties. Therefore, our stockholders t
no recourse against our Manager with respect tpé¢nrmance of investments made in accordancethwtimanagement agreement.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Investing in our common stock may involve a higirele of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursimrent objectives may result in a high amount sk when compared to alternal
investment options and volatility or loss of pripai. Our investments may be highly speculative aygressive, and therefore an investme
our common stock may not be suitable for someotie kviver risk tolerance.

There may not be an active market for our commockstwhich may cause our common stock to tradeddd@unt and make it diffic
to sell the common stock you purchase.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE MKT under $gmbol “ORC."Trading on the NYSE MKT does not ensure that ther will
be an actual market for our common stock. Accodglingo assurance can be given as to:

« the likelihood that an actual market for our comnstock will develop, or be continued once developed
« the liquidity of any such market;

« the ability of any holder to sell shares of our coom stock; or

« the prices that may be obtained for our commorkstoc

We have not established a minimum distribution ptntevel, and we cannot assure you of our abititynake distributions to o
stockholders in the future.

We intend to continue to make monthly distributi@@sur stockholders in amounts such that we distei all or substantially all of o
REIT taxable income in each year, subject to cediustments. We have not established a minimginildlition payment level, and our abi
to make distributions might be harmed by the ris&tdrs described in this prospectus. All distribngi will be made at the discretion of
Board of Directors out of funds legally availabetefor and will depend on our earnings, our fim@noondition, qualifying and maintaini
our qualification as a REIT and such other facew®ur Board of Directors may deem relevant frametto time. We cannot assure you tha
will have the ability to make distributions to atockholders in the future. To the extent that weide to pay distributions from the proceec
a securities offerings, such distributions wouldherally be considered a return of capital for Uetleral income tax purposes. A returt
capital reduces the basis of a stockholder’s imrest in our common stock to the extent of suchsbasd is treated as capital gain thereafter.
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Future offerings of debt securities, which wouldskeaior to our common stock upon liquidation, ouiggsecurities, which would dilt
our existing stockholders and may be senior to@mmon stock for the purposes of distributions, heayn the value of our comrr
stock.

In the future, we may attempt to increase our eapésources by making additional offerings of debtequity securities, includil
commercial paper, mediuterm notes, senior or subordinated notes and dasispreferred stock or common stock, as well agamés t
purchase shares of common stock or convertiblepest stock. Upon the liquidation of the Comparoldars of our debt securities and sh
of preferred stock and lenders with respect to robwerowings will receive a distribution of our akedle assets prior to the holders of
common stock. Additional equity offerings by us nahilyte the holdings of our existing stockholderseduce the market value of our comr
stock, or both. Our preferred stock, if issued, ldchave a preference on distributions that coutdtliour ability to make distributions to t
holders of our common stock. Furthermore, our BoafrdDirectors may, without stockholder approval,esnth our charter to increase
aggregate number of our shares or the number oéslod any class or series that we have the atyhorissue, and to classify or reclassify
unissued shares of common stock or preferred s®®ekause our decision to issue securities in atyrduoffering will depend on marl
conditions and other factors beyond our control, agganot predict or estimate the amount, timing ature of our future offerings. C
stockholders are therefore subject to the riskuffature securities offerings reducing the magkaéte of our common stock and diluting tt
common stock.

The market value of our common stock may be velatil

The market value of shares of our common stock b@alyased primarily upon current and expected futash dividends, and the mai
price of shares of our common stock will be infloed by the dividends on those shares relative tdkehanterest rates. Rising interest r:
may lead potential buyers of our common stock feeek a higher dividend rate, which could adverséfgct the market price of shares of
common stock. As a result, the market price ofammmon stock may be highly volatile and subjeatide price fluctuations. In addition, 1
trading volume in our common stock may fluctuate aause significant price variations to occur. Sah¢he factors that could negativ
affect the share price or trading volume of our o@m stock include:

« actual or anticipated variations in our operatiegults or distributions;

« changes in our earnings estimates or publicatioesd#arch reports about us or the real estateegradty finance industry;
« increases in market interest rates that lead pserkaf our common stock to expect a higher divddgeld;

« changes in market valuations of similar companies;

« adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdme incur in the future;

« a change in our Manager or additions or departfr&ey management personnel;

« actions by institutional stockholders;

« speculation in the press or investment communiiy; a

« general market and economic conditions.

We cannot make any assurances that the marketqfraag common stock will not fluctuate or declisignificantly in the future.

Broad market fluctuations could harm the marketemf our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extreme pricevaiume fluctuations in the past that have affedieel market price of mal
companies’ stock in industries similar or relatedtirs and that have been unrelated to these coespaperating performances. These bi
market fluctuations could occur again and coulducedthe market price of our common stock. Furtheemour operating results and prosp

may be below the expectations of public market y@taland investors or may be lower than those afpamies with comparable mar
capitalizations, which could harm the market po€eur common stock.
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Shares of our common stock eligible for future saéy harm our share price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf shares of our common stock, or the avaitghili shares for future sales, on
market price of our common stock. Sales of substhamounts of these shares of our common stockyeperception that these sales ¢
occur, may harm prevailing market prices for oumomon stock. The 2012 Equity Incentive Plan proviftesgrants of up to an aggregate
10% of the issued and outstanding shares of oummmstock (on a fully diluted basis) at the timetloé award, subject to a maxim
aggregate number of shares of common stock thathedgsued under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plaa, 000,000 shares of common st
Bimini currently owns 981,665 shares of our comrstiwtk. If Bimini sells a large number of our setias in the public market, the sale cc
reduce the market price of our common stock andtddawpede our ability to raise future capital.

An increase in market interest rates may cause mahdecrease in the market price of our commimcls

One of the factors that investors may considereiciding whether to buy or sell shares of our commsitmek is our distribution rate a
percentage of our share price relative to markietrést rates. If the market price of our commortlste based primarily on the earnings
returns that we derive from our investments anarime with respect to our investments and our reldtstlibutions to stockholders, and
from the market value of the investments themseltreen interest rate fluctuations and capital madomditions are likely to adversely aff
the market price of our common stock. For instaticearket rates rise without an increase in owtridbution rate, the market price of
common stock could decrease as potential investagsrequire a higher distribution yield on our coomstock or seek other securities pa
higher distributions or interest. In addition, migiinterest rates would result in increased inteegpense on our variable rate debt, the
reducing cash flow and our ability to service muebtedness and pay distributions.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Loss of our exemption from regulation under theebtnent Company Act would negatively affect theevaf shares of our commr
stock and our ability to pay distributions to odoskholders.

We have operated and intend to continue to operatbusiness so as to be exempt from registratigieiuthe Investment Company /£
because we arepfimarily engaged in the business of purchasingtberwise acquiring mortgages and other liens ah iaterests in re
estate.”Specifically, we invest and intend to continuenwoeist so that at least 55% of the assets that weamman unconsolidated basis cor
of qualifying mortgages and other liens and inter@sreal estate, which are collectively refeneas “qualifying real estate assetarid so th:
at least 80% of the assets we own on an unconsatidesis consist of real estagtated assets (including our qualifying real estasets). W
treat Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae wholg- residential mortgage passough securities issued with respect to an uwiteg
pool of mortgage loans in which we hold all of ttegtificates issued by the pool as qualifying essthte assets based onawtion letters issut
by the SEC. To the extent that the SEC publishes oredifferent guidance with respect to these mafteve may fail to qualify for th
exemption.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept el@ds. 1C-29778; File No. SW7-31, Companies Engaged in the Busines
Acquiring Mortgages and Mortgadrelated Instruments) pursuant to which it is rewgawhether certain companies that invest in RMBE
rely on the exemption from registration under Sec8(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act (sustua) should continue to be allowet
rely on such exemption from registration.
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If we fail to qualify for this exemption, we coulg required to restructure our activities in a nearthat, or at a time when, we would
otherwise choose to do so, which could negativéfigcathe value of shares of our common stock amdatility to distribute dividends. F
example, if the market value of our investment€MOs or structured Agency RMBS, neither of whick gualifying real estate assets
Investment Company Act purposes, were to incregsgnbamount that resulted in less than 55% of esets being invested in pabseugt
Agency RMBS, we might have to sell CMOs or struetbAgency RMBS in order to maintain our exemptimnf the Investment Compa
Act. The sale could occur during adverse marketitimms, and we could be forced to accept a pradew that which we believe is acceptable.

Alternatively, if we fail to qualify for this exention, we may have to register under the Investn@arhpany Act and we could beca
subject to substantial regulation with respectubaapital structure (including our ability to usgerage), management, operations, transax
with affiliated persons (as defined in the Investin@ompany Act), portfolio composition, includingstrictions with respect to diversificat
and industry concentration, and other matters.

We may be required at times to adopt less efficrapthods of financing certain of our securitiesgd ave may be precluded frc
acquiring certain types of higher yielding secestiThe net effect of these factors would be teelogur net interest income. If we fail to qua
for an exemption from registration as an investnmgampany or an exclusion from the definition ofiamestment company, our ability to 1|
leverage would be substantially reduced, and weldvoot be able to conduct our business as descrhib#ds prospectus. Our business wil
materially and adversely affected if we fail to tiiysfor and maintain an exemption from regulatipmrsuant to the Investment Company Act.

Failure to obtain and maintain an exemption fromnigeregulated as a commodity pool operator couldhjsct us to addition:
regulation and compliance requirements and mayltésiines and other penalties which could mathyiadversely affect our busine
and financial condition.

The Dodd-Frank Act established a comprehensive negulatory framework for derivative contracts conmiyoreferred to as “swaps.”

As a result, any investment fund that trades inpsaaay be considered a “commodity po@ifiich would cause its operators (in some case
fund’s directors) to be regulated as “commodity Ipmperators” (“CPOs”)Under new rules adopted by the U.S. Commodity Fstdiradin
Commission, (the “CFTC")those funds that become commodity pools solely imzaf their use of swaps must register with th&oNal
Futures Association (the “NFA"). Registration rems compliance with the CFTC's regulations and Mf&\’'s rules with respect to cap
raising, disclosure, reporting, recordkeeping attteiobusiness conduct. However, the CFI Oivision of Swap Dealer and Intermedi
Oversight recently issued a aation letter saying, although it believes that tyage REITs are properly considered commodity paoigoulc
not recommend that the CFTC take enforcement aeijainst the operator of a mortgage REIT who do¢segister as a CPO if, among of
things, the mortgage REIT limits the initial margind premiums required to establish its swapsyréstand other commodity interest posit|
to not more than five percent (5%) of its totaleissthe mortgage REIT limits the net income detiganually from those commaodity intel
positions which are not qualifying hedging trangat to less than five percent (5%) of its grogoime and interests in the mortgage REI1
not marketed to the public as or in a commodityl pomtherwise as or in a vehicle for trading ie tommodity futures, commodity options
swaps markets.

We use hedging instruments in conjunction with imwmestment portfolio and related borrowings to malwr mitigate risks associa
with changes in interest rates, mortgage spreaelsl gurve shapes and market volatility. These eglinstruments include interest rate sw
interest rate futures and options on interestftdtees. We do not currently engage in any spemgaterivatives activities or other ndredging
transactions using swaps, futures or options aurést We do not use these instruments for the garpbtrading in commaodity interests, .
we do not consider our company or its operationse@a commodity pool as to which CPO registratiorampliance is required. We hg
claimed the relief afforded by the above-describeeaction letter. Consequently, we will be restrictedoperating within the paramet
discussed in the no-action letter and will not e hedging transactions covered by theawtion letter if they would cause us to exceet
limits set forth in the no-action letter. Howevtrere can be no assurance that the CFTC will atpatewe are entitled to the rawtion lette
relief claimed.
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The CFTC has substantial enforcement power withaetsto violations of the laws over which it hasigdiction, including their anti-
fraud and anti-manipulation provisions. For examgte CFTC may suspend or revoke the registratfaor the noaction relief afforded to
person who fails to comply with commodities lawsd aegulations, prohibit such a person from tradimgdoing business with registe
entities, impose civil money penalties, requirdiretion and seek fines or imprisonment for crimin#@lations. In the event that the CF
asserts that we are not entitled to theaotien letter relief claimed, we may be obligatedurnish additional disclosures and reports, ar
other things. Further, a private right of actiorisexagainst those who violate the laws over wiihehCFTC has jurisdiction or who willful
aid, abet, counsel, induce or procure a violatibrihose laws. In the event that we fail to complithwstatutory requirements relating
derivatives or with the CFTC's rules thereundecuding the noaction letter described above, we may be subjesigtuificant fines, penalti
and other civil or governmental actions or procegsdj any of which could have a materially adveffeceon our business, financial condit
and results of operations.

Our ownership limitations and certain other prowiss of applicable law and our charter and bylawsymestrict business combinati
opportunities that would otherwise be favorabl®tw stockholders.

Our charter and bylaws and Maryland law contairvigions that may delay, defer or prevent a changmntrol or other transaction t
might involve a premium price for our common stackotherwise be in the best interests of our stolddrs, including business combinai
provisions, supermajority vote and cause requirgséar removal of directors, provisions that vadeacon our Board of Directors may
filled only by the remaining directors, for thelftérm of the directorship in which the vacancy urted, the power of our Board of Director:
increase or decrease the aggregate number of astticmhares of stock or the number of shares ofctags or series of stock, to cause
issue additional shares of stock of any class wesand to fix the terms of one or more classesedes of stock without stockholder apprc
the restrictions on ownership and transfer of docksand advance notice requirements for direcboninations and stockholder proposals.

To assist us in qualifying as a REIT, among otheppses, ownership of our stock by any person gefierally be limited to 9.8%
value or number of shares, whichever is more ste, of any class or series of our stock, ex¢bat Bimini may own up to 35.0% of ¢
common stock so long as Bimini continues to quadifya REIT. Additionally, our charter will prohilldeneficial or constructive ownershig
our stock that would otherwise result in our faéluo qualify as a REIT. The ownership rules in cbarter are complex and may cause
outstanding stock owned by a group of related iindi&ls or entities to be deemed to be owned byindieidual or entity. As a result, the
ownership rules could cause an individual or entityunintentionally own shares beneficially or dpuastively in excess of our owners
limits. Any attempt to own or transfer shares of oammon stock or preferred stock in excess ofawmership limits without the consent
our Board of Directors will result in such sharesnlg transferred to a charitable trust. These gioms may inhibit market activity and
resulting opportunity for our stockholders to reeea premium for their stock that might otherwiséseif any person were to attempt
assemble a block of shares of our stock in excegseeamumber of shares permitted under our chartdrthat may be in the best interests o
security holders.

Our Board of Directors may, without stockholder agyal, amend our charter to increase or decreasagdgregate number of our shi
or the number of shares of any class or seriesvthabave the authority to issue and to classifyeatassify any unissued shares of com
stock or preferred stock, and set the preferemigdds and other terms of the classified or redlessshares. As a result, our Board of Direc
may take actions with respect to our common stackreferred stock that may have the effect of dayr preventing a change in cont
including transactions at a premium over the mapkiee of our shares, even if stockholders belighat a change in control is in their inter
These provisions, along with the restrictions onnerghip and transfer contained in our charter agdaim provisions of Maryland le
described below, could discourage unsolicited agitiom proposals or make it more difficult for arthparty to gain control of us, which co
adversely affect the market price of our securities
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Our rights and the rights of our stockholders tkdaction against our directors and officers amitied, which could limit your recour
in the event of actions not in your best interests.

Our charter limits the liability of our directorsic officers to us and owtockholders for money damages, except for ligbikisulting
from:

« actual receipt of an improper benefit or profiniloney, property or services; or
- a final judgment based upon a finding of active detiberate dishonesty by the director or offideattwas material to the cause
action adjudicatec

We have entered into indemnification agreementé wiir directors and executive officers that obkgas to indemnify them to t
maximum extent permitted by Maryland law. In adwfiti our charter authorizes the Company to obligatdf to indemnify our present a
former directors and officers for actions takentbgm in those and other capacities to the maximxiené permitted by Maryland law. C
bylaws require us, to the maximum extent permiktgd/aryland law, to indemnify each present and farmirector or officer in the defense
any proceeding to which he or she is made, or tbnea to be made, a party by reason of his or &etice to us. In addition, we may
obligated to advance the defense costs incurrezlibglirectors and officers. As a result, we andsiackholders may have more limited rig
against our directors and officers than might otlige exist absent the provisions in our chartelawy and indemnification agreements or
might exist with other companies.

Certain provisions of Maryland law could inhibitahges in control.

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corgorat.aw (the “MGCL”), may have the effect of inhibiting a third partyrfronaking
a proposal to acquire us or impeding a change mifabunder circumstances that otherwise could idmwur stockholders with the opportui
to realize a premium over the then-prevailing magkie of our common stock, including:

» “business combination” provisions that, subjectitoitations, prohibit certain business combinatidetween us and arnntereste
stockholder” (lefined generally as any person who beneficially®@0% or more of the voting power of our outstagdioting stoc
or an affiliate or associate of ours who, at amyetiwithin the twoyear period immediately prior to the date in questiwas th
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powéour theneutstanding stock) or an affiliate of an interest&mtkholder for fiv
years after the most recent date on which the Bdkr became an interested stockholder, and titeregaquire two supermajor|
stockholder votes to approve any such combinatad

« “control share” provisions that provide that a feldf “control sharesdf the Company (defined as voting shares of stdgichy whel
aggregated with all other shares of stock ownedhleyacquiror or in respect of which the acquiroalide to exercise or direct !
exercise of voting power (except solely by virtdeaevocable proxy), entitle the acquiror to ex@®ne of three increasing range
voting power in electing directors) acquired incaritrol share acquisitiontéfined as the direct or indirect acquisition ofn@nship o
control of issued and outstanding “control sharesijject to certain exceptions) generally has ningotights with respect to t
control shares except to the extent approved bystmokholders by the affirmative vote of tildrds of all the votes entitled to be ¢
on the matter, excluding all interested sha

We have elected to optit of these provisions of the MGCL, in the casdhaf business combination provisions, by resolutiboui
Board of Directors (provided that such businesshioation is first approved by our Board of Direcpincluding a majority of our directc
who are not affiliates or associates of such pgrsand in the case of the control share provisigmgsuant to a provision in our byla
However, our Board of Directors may by resolutidace to repeal the foregoing optit from the business combination provisions of
MGCL, and we may, by amendment to our bylaws, opbithe control share provisions of the MGCL iga thture.
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We may be subject to adverse legislative or regeyathanges that could reduce the market priceuofommmon stock.

At any time, laws or regulations, or the admini@interpretations of those laws or regulatighst impact our business and Maryl
corporations may be amended. In addition, the ntafike RMBS and derivatives, including intereseratvaps, have been the subject of int
scrutiny in recent months. We cannot predict wheif any new law, regulation or administrative irgeetation, or any amendment to
existing law, regulation or administrative intergat®n, will be adopted or promulgated or will bewo effective. Additionally, revisions to the
laws, regulations or administrative interpretaticosild cause us to change our investments. We dmulthaterially adversely affected by
such change to any existing, or any new, law, @@ or administrative interpretation, which couddiuce the market price of our comr
stock.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Risks
Your investment has various U.S. federal incomeisks.

This summary of certain tax risks is limited to tteeleral tax risks addressed below. Additional gisk issues may exist that are
addressed in this Form ¥0and that could affect the federal tax treatménisoor our stockholders. This is not intendethéocused and cant
be used by any stockholder to avoid penaltiesrttet be imposed on stockholders under the Code.tWegly urge you to seek advice ba
on your particular circumstances from an independax advisor concerning the effects of federadtestand local income tax law on
investment in common stock and on your individaal $ituation.

Our failure to qualify or maintain our qualificativas a REIT would subject us to U.S. federal inctamewhich could adversely aff
the value of the shares of our common stock anddnsubstantially reduce the cash available for mlsttion to our stockholders.

We believe that commencing with our short taxabdaryended December 31, 2013, we have been orgaaimbdhave operated
conformity with the requirements for qualificatias a REIT under the Code, and we intend to opé@rademanner that will enable us to ir
the requirements for qualification and taxationaaREIT. However, we cannot assure you that we guiklify and remain qualified as
REIT. Moreover, our qualification and taxation@afREIT will depend upon our ability to meet on atiouing basis, through actual anr
operating results, certain qualification testsfegh in the U.S. federal tax laws. Accordinglyyen the complex nature of the rules gover
REITs, the ongoing importance of factual deternmor, including the potential tax treatment of isiveents we make, and the possibilit
future changes in our circumstances, no assuraatde given that our actual results of operatiensafy particular taxable year will sati
such requirements.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any calendar yeae would be required to pay U.S. federal incdame(and any applicable state
local tax), including any applicable alternativenimum tax, on our taxable income at regular corgorates, and dividends paid to
stockholders would not be deductible by us in cotimguour taxable income. Further, if we fail to tifyaas a REIT, we might need to borr
money or sell assets in order to pay any resuliixg Our payment of income tax would decrease theumt of our income available -
distribution to our stockholders. Furthermore, & fail to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we longer would be required under U
federal tax laws to distribute substantially allafr REIT taxable income to our stockholders. Usilear failure to qualify as a REIT w
subject to relief under U.S. federal tax laws, weald not reelect to qualify as a REIT until the fifth calendagar following the year in whi
we failed to qualify.
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If Bimini failed to qualify as a REIT in its 2008rough 2013 taxable years, we would be preventmah felecting to qualify as a RE
under applicable Treasury Regulations.

We were formed by Bimini in August 2010. We beligkiat from the time of our formation until the dlog of the public offering of ol
common stock, we were a “qualified REIT subsidiasf/Bimini. However, under applicable Treasury Regjains, if Bimini failed to qualify ¢
a REIT in its 2009 through 2013 taxable years, ss1RBimini’s failure to qualify as a REIT was subject to felieder U.S. federal tax laws,
would be prevented from electing to qualify as d Rfrior to the fifth calendar year following thegr in which Bimini failed to qualify.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause usregfmor liquidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we must continually satisBrieus tests regarding the sources of our incoheenature and diversification of
assets, the amounts we distribute to our stocki®lgied the ownership of our stock. In order to ntleese tests, we may be required to fo
investments we might otherwise make. Thus, compéamith the REIT requirements may hinder our inwestt performance.

In particular, we must ensure that at the end ohemlendar quarter, at least 75% of the valueuoftatal assets consists of cash,
items, government securities and qualified REIT esdate assets, including Agency RMBS. The renairad our investment in securit
(other than government securities and qualifietl@state assets) generally cannot include more 1h&h of the outstanding voting securitie
any one issuer or more than 10% of the total vafithe outstanding securities of any one issueaddition, in general, no more than 5% of
value of our total assets (other than governmesurgtees, TRS securities, and qualified real essasets) can consist of the securities of an'
issuer, and no more than 25% of the value of otal #ssets can be represented by securities obongre TRSs. Generally, if we fail
comply with these requirements at the end of argnciar quarter, we must correct the failure witBth days after the end of the caler
quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief gisions to avoid losing our REIT qualification abhdcoming subject to U.S. federal income
(and any applicable state and local taxes) on fabus income. As a result, we may be required tpitlate from our portfolio otherwi
attractive investments or contribute such investsxéo a TRS. These actions could have the effeaedficing our income and amot
available for distribution to our stockholders.

Failure to make required distributions would subjas to tax, which would reduce the cash availdbielistribution to our stockholder

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to ourcktmlders each calendar year at least 90% of oull Rixable income (includir
certain items of nomwash income), determined without regard to the dialu for dividends paid and excluding net capifain. To the exte
that we satisfy the 90% distribution requirementt distribute less than 100% of our taxable income,will be subject to federal corpor
income tax on our undistributed income. In additiare will incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax oe #mount, if any, by which @
distributions in any calendar year are less tharstim of:

« 85% of our REIT ordinary income for that year;
« 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thaayeand
« any undistributed taxable income from prior years

We intend to distribute our REIT taxable incometw stockholders in a manner intended to satisfy9®o distribution requirement &
to avoid both corporate income tax and the 4% nduckible excise tax. However, there is no requingintieat TRSs distribute their aftéax
net income to their parent REIT or their stockhadde
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Our taxable income may be substantially differbantour net income as determined based on genatagpted accounting principle:
the United States (“GAAP hecause, for example, realized capital losseshailtieducted in determining our GAAP net income,rbay no
be deductible in computing our taxable income.ddi@on, unrealized portfolio gains and lossesiaotuded in GAAP net income, but are
included in REIT taxable income. Also, we may isivim assets that generate taxable income in exdéesnomic income or in advance of
corresponding cash flow from the assets. As atre$uhe foregoing, we may generate less cash fleam taxable income in a particular y:
To the extent that we generate such nash taxable income in a taxable year, we may inogporate income tax and the 4% nondeduc
excise tax on that income if we do not distributetsincome to stockholders in that year. In th&mtywe may be required to use cash rese
incur debt, sell assets, make taxable distributafrsur stock or debt securities or liquidate rash assets at rates or at times that we reg
unfavorable to satisfy the distribution requiremantl to avoid corporate income tax and the 4% ndunctéble excise tax in that year.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may face othetitdilities that reduce our cash flows.

Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we mag dubject to certain federal, state and local taxesur income and assets, incluc
taxes on any undistributed income, tax on incoramfsome activities conducted as a result of a fosece, and state or local income, prop
and transfer taxes. In addition, any TRSs we forithbve subject to regular corporate federal, seid local taxes. Any of these taxes wi
decrease cash available for distributions to stolcidrs.

The failure of Agency RMBS subject to a repurcteg@ement to qualify as real estate assets woulckraely affect our ability
qualify as a REIT.

We have entered and intend to continue to enterreppurchase agreements under which we will nonyirsalll certain of our Agent
RMBS to a counterparty and simultaneously enter &m agreement to repurchase the sold assets. Ngeebthat for U.S. federal income -
purposes these transactions will be treated asestcebt and we will be treated as the owner ofAthency RMBS that are the subject of
such agreement notwithstanding that such agreemanttransfer record ownership of such assets ta@thaterparty during the term of
agreement. It is possible, however, that the IR8Iccauccessfully assert that we do not own the AgeRMBS during the term of tl
repurchase agreement, in which case we coulddfgjlilify as a REIT.

Our ability to invest in and dispose of contracte tlelayed delivery transactions, or delayed deiiveontracts, including to be
announced”securities, could be limited by the requirementsessary to qualify as a REIT, and we could faijtalify as a REIT as
result of these investments.

We may purchase Agency RMBS through delayed dsligentracts, including “to-be-announcedtward contracts, or TBAs. We m
recognize income or gains on the disposition oagled delivery contracts. For example, rather tla&e delivery of the Agency RMBS subj
to a TBA, we may dispose of the TBA through a “rtdlfansaction in which we agree to purchase simitusties in the future at
predetermined price or otherwise, which may reisulhe recognition of income or gains. The lawnglear regarding whether delayed deli
contracts will be qualifying assets for the 75%eadsst and whether income and gains from dispositdof delayed delivery contracts will
qualifying income for the 75% gross income test.

Until we receive a favorable private letter rulifrgm the IRS or we are advised by counsel thatygeladelivery contracts should
treated as qualifying assets for purposes of tlé @Sset test, we will limit our investment in deddydelivery contracts and any nqualifying
assets to no more than 25% of our total grosssaséhe end of any calendar quarter and will litmi delayed delivery contracts issued by
one issuer to no more than 5% of our total grosetasat the end of any calendar quarter. Furthidil, we receive a favorable private le
ruling from the IRS or we are advised by counsat thcome and gains from the disposition of delagielivery contracts should be treate:
qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gros®ime test, we will limit our income and gains frommbsitions of delayed delivery contre
and any normgualifying income to no more than 25% of our griseome for each calendar year. Accordingly, outitgbio purchase Agent
RMBS through delayed delivery contracts and to aigpof delayed delivery contracts through roll $estions or otherwise, could be limited.
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Moreover, even if we are advised by counsel thédyael delivery contracts should be treated as fyiradi assets or that income ¢
gains from dispositions of delayed delivery consaghould be treated as qualifying income, it isgilnle that the IRS could successfully
the position that such assets are not qualifyirsgtasand such income is not qualifying incomehht event, we could be subject to a pel
tax or we could fail to qualify as a REIT if (i)e¢hvalue of our delayed delivery contracts togethigh our nongualifying assets for the 7&
asset test, exceeded 25% of our total gross aas#te end of any calendar quarter, (ii) the valfieur delayed delivery contracts, includ
TBAS, issued by any one issuer exceeds 5% of dat &ssets at the end of any calendar quarteriiipiogr income and gains from t
disposition of delayed delivery contracts togetivth our nonqualifying income for the 75% gross income testesded 25% of our grc
income for any taxable year.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our @bito hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially limitr ability to hedge. Our aggregate gross incorom fnongualifying hedges, fee
and certain other nogualifying sources cannot exceed 5% of our annwasgyincome. As a result, we might have to limit ose o
advantageous hedging techniques or implement thedges through a TRS. Any hedging income earnead RS would be subject to fede
state and local income tax at regular corporagsrathis could increase the cost of our hedginigities or expose us to greater risks assoc
with changes in interest rates than we would otissrwant to bear.

Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS4 the form will be limited and a failure to complijttwthe limits would jeopardize o
REIT qualification and may result in the applicatiof a 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one oren®RSs. A TRS may earn income that would not kaifying income if earne
directly by the parent REIT. Both the subsidiarg dhe REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsigias a TRS. A corporation (other the
REIT) of which a TRS directly or indirectly owns meothan 35% of the voting power or value of thektwill automatically be treated a
TRS. Overall, no more than 25% of the value of dTR&total assets may consist of stock or securitiesme or more TRSs. A domestic T
will pay federal, state and local income tax atuteg corporate rates on any income that it earnsaddition, the TRS rules limit t
deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a TRSits parent REIT to assure that the TRS is stilifg@n appropriate level of corpor
taxation. The rules also impose a 100% excise ageotain transactions between a TRS and its p&®ERK that are not conducted on an am’
length basis. Any domestic TRS that we may form paly federal, state and local income tax on islde income, and its aftéax net incom
will be available for distribution to us but is meiquired to be distributed to us unless necegsamaintain our REIT qualification.

We may pay taxable dividends in cash and our constumk, in which case stockholders may sell shaf@sir common stock to pay
on such dividends, placing downward pressure omtheket price of our common stock.

We may make taxable dividends that are payabldypartash and partly in our common stock. The HS issued private letter rulir
to other REITs treating certain distributions tha¢ paid partly in cash and partly in stock asd#imds that would satisfy the REIT anr
distribution requirement and qualify for the dividks paid deduction for U.S. federal income tax psgs. Those rulings may be relied u
only by the taxpayers to whom they were issuedwmitould request a similar ruling from the IRS.alkidition, the IRS previously issue
revenue procedure authorizing publicly traded REtdsmake elective cash/stock dividends, but thatemae procedure has expit
Accordingly, it is unclear whether and to what extere will be able to make taxable dividends pagdblcash and common stock. Althol
we have no current intention of paying dividendsour own stock, if in the future we choose to payidends in our common stock, ¢
stockholders may be required to pay tax in excéfiseocash that they receive. If a U.S. stockhotidls the shares that it receives as a divi
in order to pay this tax, the sales proceeds mdgdsethan the amount included in income with resfeethe dividend, depending on the ma
price of our common stock at the time of the sklathermore, with respect to certain ndrs. stockholders, we may be required to with
U.S. federal income tax with respect to such dindte including in respect of all or a portion o€suividend that is payable in common st
If we pay dividends in our common stock and a gigaint number of our stockholders determine to sleires of our common stock in orde
pay taxes owed on dividends, it may put downwaesgure on the trading price of our common stock.
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Our ownership limitations may restrict change ohtrol or business combination opportunities in whaur stockholders might rece
a premium for their stock.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT for each tdeajear after 2013, no more than 50% in value efauistanding stock may be own
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individualduring the last half of any calendar year. “Iidli)als” for this purpose include natural pers:
private foundations, some employee benefit plarktausts, and some charitable trusts. In orderstisaus in qualifying as a REIT, am«
other purposes, ownership of our stock by any peisgenerally limited to 9.8% in value or numbésbares, whichever is more restrictive
any class or series of our stock, except that Bimiy own up to 35.0% of our common stock so losd@amini continues to qualify as a REI

These ownership limitations could have the efféaiscouraging a takeover or other transaction lmictv holders of our common stc
might receive a premium for their common stock aber thenprevailing market price or which holders might beé to be otherwise in th
best interests.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for thduced tax rates available for some dividends.

The maximum tax rate applicable to “qualified didl income’payable to U.S. stockholders that are taxed aviddal rates is lowe
than ordinary income tax rates. Dividends payalyleREITs, however, generally are not eligible foe ttreduced rates on qualified divid
income. The more favorable rates applicable tolezgrorporate qualified dividends could cause itweswho are taxed at individual rate:
perceive investments in REITs to be relatively lagsactive than investments in the stocks of R&fIT corporations that pay dividends, wt
could adversely affect the value of the sharesHIfTR, including our common stock.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or reguyaiax changes that could reduce the market pofoeur common stock.

At any time, the U.S. federal income tax laws agutations governing REITs or the administrativeeiptetations of those laws
regulations may be amended. We cannot predict whéfnany new U.S. federal income tax law, regaatbr administrative interpretation,
any amendment to any existing U.S. federal incamdaw, regulation or administrative interpretationll be adopted, promulgated or becc
effective and any such law, regulation or intergtien may take effect retroactively. We and ouckhmlders could be adversely affectec
any such change in, or any new, U.S. federal incaxéaw, regulation or administrative interpresati

Certain financing activities may subject us to Uesleral income tax and could have negative taxsequences for our stockholders.

We currently do not intend to enter into any tratisas that could result in our, or a portion ofr @ssets, being treated as a tax
mortgage pool for U.S. federal income tax purpolese enter into such a transaction in the futuve,will be taxable at the highest corpo
income tax rate on a portion of the income aridiogn a taxable mortgage pool, referred to as “exaecusion income,that is allocable to tt
percentage of our stock held in record name byudikiied organizations (generally taxempt entities that are exempt from the ta
unrelated business taxable income, such as stasopeplans, charitable remainder trusts and gamen entities). In that case, under
charter, we will reduce distributions to such stoalkiers by the amount of tax paid by us that isbattable to such stockholder’s ownership.
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If we were to realize excess inclusion income, drRf&dlance indicates that the excess inclusion incamgld be allocated among «
stockholders in proportion to our dividends paidcé&ss inclusion income cannot be offset by los$esiostockholders. If the stockholder |
tax-exempt entity and not a disqualified organizatitmen this income would be fully taxable as unralabeisiness taxable income ur
Section 512 of the Code. If the stockholder is reifn person, it would be subject to U.S. fedenabime tax at the maximum tax rate
withholding will be required on this income withaeduction or exemption pursuant to any otherwjggieable income tax treaty.

Our recognition of “phantom” income may reduce ackholder’s after-tax return on an investment im oommon stock.

We may recognize taxable income in excess of oon@unic income, known as phantom income, in the fiears that we hold cert:
investments, and experience an offsetting excessafomic income over our taxable income in latarg. As a result, stockholders at ti
may be required to pay U.S. federal income tax istridutions that economically represent a retufrcapital rather than a dividend. Th
distributions would be offset in later years bytdigitions representing economic income that wdddtreated as returns of capital for |
federal income tax purposes. Taking into accouattitine value of money, this acceleration of U.8lefal income tax liabilities may reduc
stockholder’s after-tax return on his or her inugmht to an amount less than the after-tax returaromvestment with an identical befdse¢
rate of return that did not generate phantom income

Liquidation of our assets may jeopardize our RElaldication.

To qualify and maintain our qualification as a REWe must comply with requirements regarding osetsand our sources of inco
If we are compelled to liquidate our assets to yeplaligations to our lenders, we may be unableammly with these requirements, ther
jeopardizing our qualification as a REIT, or we nimysubject to a 100% tax on any resultant gaiveiell assets that are treated as inve
or property held primarily for sale to customersha ordinary course of business.

Our qualification as a REIT and exemption from Uesleral income tax with respect to certain assedy be dependent on the accul
of legal opinions or advice rendered or given aatetents by the issuers of assets that we acaameb the inaccuracy of any st
opinions, advice or statements may adversely affi@cREIT qualification and result in significanbrporate-level tax.

When purchasing securities, we may rely on opinimnadvice of counsel for the issuer of such séestior statements made in rel:
offering documents, for purposes of determining tivbesuch securities represent debt or equity gexufor U.S. federal income tax purpo:
the value of such securities, and also to whatmttese securities constitute qualified real eststsets for purposes of the REIT asset tes
produce income which qualifies under the 75% ginseme test. The inaccuracy of any such opiniodsjca or statements may adver:
affect our REIT qualification and result in sigodint corporate-level tax.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None .
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We do not own any real property. Our offices arenedvby Bimini, the parent of our Manager, and aeated at 3305 Flamingo Dri
Vero Beach, Florida 32963. We consider this prgptr be adequate for our business as currentigwated. Our telephone number is (i
231-1400.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not party to any material pending legal pedings as described in Iltem 103 of Regulation S-K.
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ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.

40




PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock began trading publicly on the NYSET under the trading symbol "ORC" on February 2813. There was |
established public market for our common stockrpd=ebruary 14, 2013. As of February 14, 2014hae 5,411,665 shares of common s
issued and outstanding which were held by 3,40@fieal holders.

The following table is a summary of historical grionformation and dividends declared and paid petroon share.

Dividends
High Low Close Declared
2013
First quarter (from February 14, 2013 through Ma3&h2013] $ 154C $ 135 $ 13.9¢ $ 0.13¢
Second quarte 14.0( 10.6( 11.2¢ 0.40¢
Third quartel 12.9¢ 10.0z 10.97 0.40¢
Fourth quarte 13.2¢ 10.91 13.0( 0.45(

Dividend Distribution Policy

We intend to continue to make regular monthly caisitributions to our stockholders, as more fullsaied below. To qualify as
REIT, we must distribute annually to our stockhaddan amount at least equal to 90% of our REIThHEx@acome, determined without reg
to the deduction for dividends paid and excludimg aet capital gain. We will be subject to inconag bn our taxable income that is
distributed and to an excise tax to the extent teatain percentages of our taxable income aredisttibuted by specified dates. Income
computed for purposes of the foregoing tax rule$ wat necessarily correspond to our income asrdeted for financial reporting purpos
pursuant to GAAP.

Any additional distributions we make will be autlzed by and at the discretion of our Board of Dioes based upon a variety of fact
deemed relevant by our directors, which may include

. actual results of operatior

. our financial condition

. our level of retained cash flow

. our capital requirement

. the timing of the investment of the net proceedwhisf offering;

. any debt service requiremen

. our taxable income

. the annual distribution requirements under the RiEbivisions of the Codkt
. applicable provisions of Maryland law; a

. other factors that our Board of Directors may deelavant.

We have not established a minimum distribution paytrevel, and we cannot assure you of our abititynake distributions to o
stockholders in the future.

41




Our charter authorizes us to issue preferred dteakcould have a preference over our common stgttkrespect to distributions. v
currently have no intention to issue any prefestntk, but if we do, the distribution preferencetba preferred stock could limit our ability
make distributions to the holders of our commoristo

Our ability to make distributions to our stockhaklevill depend upon the performance of our investnpertfolio, and, in turn, upon c
Managers management of our business. To the extent thratash available for distribution is less than éimeount required to be distribu
under the REIT provisions of the Code, we may atersvarious funding sources to cover any shortiiadlluding selling certain of our assi
borrowing funds or using a portion of the net pest® we receive in this offering or future offeringsd thus all or a portion of st
distributions may constitute a return of capital tbS. federal income tax purposes). We also megtéb pay all or a portion of any distribut
in the form of a taxable distribution of our stamkdebt securities. In addition, our Board of Btogs may change our distribution policy in
future.

Use of Proceeds

On January 16, 2014, the SEC declared effective Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 3383933) relating to o
secondary offering of 1,800,000 shares of commonksbffered at $12.50 per share. The offering deds January 16, 2014 and closet
January 23, 2014. Our offering was underwrittersbyeral underwriters, with Ladenburg Thalmann &,@uc. acting as the representativ:
the underwriters. The underwriters exercised tbegarallotment option in full for an additional 2000 shares on January 29, 2014. We is
a total of 2,070,000 shares of common stock fopneteeds of approximately $24.2 million, net oflerwriting discounts and commission
issuance costs.

We invested the net proceeds of this offering inoadance with our investment objectives and stiasegs described undet$e o
Proceeds” in the prospectus comprising a part@Régistration Statement referenced above.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

In October 2012, our Board of Directors adopted Bidini, then our sole stockholder, approved, 0QL2 Equity Incentive Plan (t
“Incentive Plan”).The Incentive Plan provides for the award of stopkions, stock appreciation rights, stock awardfgsmance units, oth
equity-based awards (and dividend equivalents wétpect to awards of performance units and othaityefjased awards) and incent
awards. The Incentive Plan is administered byGbmpensation Committee of our Board of Directorse@t that our Board of Directors v
administer awards made to directors who are nol@reps of us or our affiliates. The Incentive Pfaavides for awards of up to an aggre
of 10% of the issued and outstanding shares ofcoommmon stock (on a fully diluted basis) at the tioighe awards, subject to a maxirr
aggregate 4,000,000 shares of our common stocknibgtbe issued under the Incentive Plan. To detegwards have been made unde
Incentive Plan.
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The following table provides information as of Ded®er 31, 2013 regarding the number of shares ofhoamstock that may be isst
under our Incentive Plan.

Number of
securities
remaining
Total available for
number of future
securities to Weighted- issuance
be issued average under equity
upon exercise compensatior
exercise of price of plans
outstanding  outstanding (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants and warrants and  reflected in
rights rights column (a))
Plan Category (@) (b)
Equity compensation plans approved
security holder: - - 4,000,000
Equity compensation plans not approvec
security holder(l) - - -
Total - - 4,000,00!
1)  We do not have any equity compensation plans t hot been approved by our stockhold
@ Represents the maximum number of shares remainaitable for future issuance under the terms ofitleentive Plar.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

The Company did not issue or sell equity securitieed were not registered under the Securitiesdiicing the year ended December
2013.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company did not repurchase any shares ofoitk sturing the year ended December 31, 2013.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not Applicable.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial conditiamd results of operations should be read in catiom with the financial stateme
and notes to those statements included in ItemtBi®fForm 10-K. The discussion may contain cerfaiwardiooking statements that invol
risks and uncertainties. Forwalabking statements are those that are not histdaricaature. As a result of many factors, suchhasé set fori
under “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-K, our actugdults may differ materially from those anticipghte such forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company that investsgiency RMBS. Our investment strategy focuses od,aur portfolio consists of, tv
categories of Agency RMBS: (i) traditional pakseugh Agency RMBS and (ii) structured Agency RMBS8ch as CMOs, IOs, 110s and P
among other types of structured Agency RMBS. Froaeption through the closing of the initial pubdifering of our common stock, we wi
managed by Bimini. Upon completion of that offerimge became externally managed by Bimini Advisarsgistered investment adviser v
the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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We were formed by Bimini in August 2010 and comneshoperations on November 24, 2010. At DecembeR@12, Bimini was ot
sole stockholder. We completed our initial publiffeang on February 20, 2013. In that offering maésed gross proceeds of $35.4 million f
the sale of 2,360,000 shares of our common stoak c@npleted a secondary offering in January 20diding net proceeds of approxima
$24.2 million from the sale of 2,070,000 shareswfcommon stock.

Our business objective is to provide attractiv&-adjusted total returns over the long term througlorabination of capital appreciati
and the payment of regular monthly distributionse iWend to achieve this objective by investingumd strategically allocating capital betw
the two categories of Agency RMBS described ab®Ve.seek to generate income from (i) the net intemegrgin on our leveraged pass
through Agency RMBS portfolio and the leveragedtiparof our structured Agency RMBS portfolio, arni the interest income we gener
from the unleveraged portion of our structured AgeRMBS portfolio. We intend to fund our pattseugh Agency RMBS and certain of
structured Agency RMBS through short-term borrowirgjructured as repurchase agreements. tRemsgh Agency RMBS and structu
Agency RMBS typically exhibit materially differesensitivities to movements in interest rates. Dediin the value of one portfolio may
offset by appreciation in the other. The percentafgeapital that we allocate to our two Agency RMBs$set categories will vary and will
actively managed in an effort to maintain the lesincome generated by the combined portfolios, dtability of that income stream and
stability of the value of the combined portfoli®®e believe that this strategy will enhance ouriliity, earnings, book value stability and a
selection opportunities in various interest rateirmments.

We intend to qualify and will elect to be taxedeaREIT under the Code commencing with our shoraltéex year ended December
2013 upon the filing of our federal income tax rattor the year. We generally will not be subjext).S. federal income tax to the extent
we currently distribute all of our REIT taxable ame to our stockholders and maintain our REIT djgalion.

Factors that Affect our Results of Operations and hancial Condition

A variety of industry and economic factors may iripaur results of operations and financial conditibhese factors include:

« interest rate trends;

« prepayment rates on mortgages underlying our Ag&MBS, and credit trends insofar as they affecppyenent rates;
« the difference between Agency RMBS yields and anding and hedging costs;

« competition for investments in Agency RMBS;

« recent actions taken by the Federal Reserve and.®eTreasury; and

« other market developments.

In addition, a variety of factors relating to oursiness may also impact our results of operatioaisfimancial condition. These fact:
include:

 our degree of leverage;

« our access to funding and borrowing capacity;

 our borrowing costs;

 our hedging activities;

« the market value of our investments; and

- the requirements to qualify as a REIT and the mequénts to qualify for a registration exemption emnthe Investment Company Act.

We anticipate that, for any period during whichropes in the interest rates for our adjustableassets do not coincide with interest
changes on the corresponding liabilities, suchtassél reprice more slowly than the corresponding liabifiti€€onsequently, changes
interest rates, particularly short term interestgamay significantly influence our net income.
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Our net income may be affected by a difference betwactual prepayment rates and our projectioepayments on loans and secur
may be influenced by changes in market interessrahd homeowners’ abilities and desires to refiedheir mortgages.

Results of Operations

Described below are the Company’s results of omratfor the year ended December 31, 2013, as aamtpa the Compang’results ¢
operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Net (Loss) Income Summary

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2013 Wa&rdillion, or $0.23 per share. Net income for ylear ended December 31, 2
was $0.5 million, or $0.54 per share. The companefinet (loss) income for the years ended Decer@be013 and 2012, along with
changes in those components are presented intiieeh@low:

(in thousands

2013 2012 Change
Interest incom: $ 9,19¢ $ 2,69t $ 6,501
Interest expens (1,126 (277) (849)
Net interest incom 8,07: 2,421 5,652
Losses on RMBS and Eurodollar futu (7,109 (1,159 (5,949
Net portfolio income 97( 1,267 (297)
Expense: (1,669 (739 (935)
Net (loss) incom $ (69¢) $ 534 $ (1,237)

GAAP and Non-GAAP Reconciliation

To date, the Company has used derivatives, spaltyfi€urodollar futures contracts, to hedge theenest rate risk on repurchi
agreements in a rising rate environment. Each Ellardcontract covers a specific three month pertmgt the Company typically has m:
contracts in place at any point in timeusually covering several years in the aggregate.démpany has not elected to designate its dere
holdings for hedge accounting treatment under tharf€ial Accounting Standards Board, (the “FASBREcounting Standards Codificatic
(“ASC"), Topic 815,Derivatives and HedgingChanges in fair value of these instruments agegnted in a separate line item in the Company
Statements of Operations and not included in istezgpense. As such, for financial reporting pugspénterest expense and cost of fund
not impacted by the fluctuation in value of the @dollar futures contracts. In the future, the Compmay use other derivative instrument
hedge its interest expense and/or elect to degdtsatierivative holdings for hedge accountingttresnt.

For the purpose of computing economic net interesime and ratios relating to cost of funds measUBAAP interest expense has t
adjusted to reflect the realized gains or lossespatific Eurodollar contracts that pertain to epehiod presented. As of December 31, 2
the Company has Eurodollar futures contracts itglhirough 2018. Since the Company has taken glositions on these contracts, w
interest rates move higher the value of our shositipn may increase in value. The opposite wowdrhe if interest rates were to decre
Adjusting our interest expense for the periods gmeed by the gains on all Eurodollar futures wawdd accurately reflect our economic inte
expense for these periods. For each period prasdhte Company has combined the effects of the Elierdpositions in place for tl
respective period with the actual interest expenserred on repurchase agreements to reflect éfaénse for the applicable period. Inte
expense, including the effect of Eurodollar futuceatracts for the period, is referred to as ecananterest expense. Net interest income, v
calculated to include the effect of Eurodollar fietsicontracts for the period, is referred to amenuc net interest income.
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However, under ASC 815, because the Company haslexted hedging treatment, the gains or lossesl @i the Company Eurodolla
futures contracts held during the period are ré&dlgdn our statements of operations. This presient&icludes gains or losses on all contrac
effect during the reporting period — covering thuerent period as well as periods in the future.

The Company believes that economic interest expandeesconomic net interest income provides meaningformation to consider,
addition to the respective amounts prepared inrdecee with GAAP. The no@GAAP measures help the Company to evaluate itsifiad
position and performance without the effects otaiartransactions and GAAP adjustments that areneotssarily indicative of its curr
investment portfolio or operations. The realized! amrealized gains or losses presented in the Coypatatement of operations are
necessarily representative of the total interest eapense that the Company will ultimately realibleis is because as interest rates move
down in the future, the gains or losses the Comp#diiypately realizes, and which will affect the Cpamy’s total interest rate expense in fu
periods, may differ from the unrealized gains @sks recognized as of the reporting date.

The Companys presentation of the economic value of its hedgingtegy has important limitations. First, otheaarket participants m:
calculate economic interest expense and econoniiateeest income differently than the Company gkdte them. Second, while the Comp
believes that the calculation of the economic vabfieour hedging strategy described above helpsrésemt our financial position a
performance, it may be of limited usefulness aswaaytical tool. Therefore, the economic valuetef Companys investment strategy sho
not be viewed in isolation and is not a substifatdnterest expense and net interest income coaaputaccordance with GAAP.

The tables below present a reconciliation of thestthents to interest expense shown for each pegiated to our Eurodollar futures, and the
income statement line item, gains (losses) on Elladfutures, calculated in accordance with GAAR the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 and for each quarter during 2013 and 2012.

Gains (Losses) on Eurodollar Futures Contracts
(in thousands

Recognized
in Attributed to  Attributed to
Income Current Future
Statement Period Periods
(GAAP) (Non-GAAP) (Non-GAAP)
Three Months Ended
December 31, 201 $ 73z % 42 $ 774
September 30, 201 (2,272) (28) (2,249
June 30, 201 6,852 4 6,85¢
March 31, 201! (484) (65) (419
December 31, 201 (@D} (62 61
September 30, 201 (14 (28 14
June 30, 201 Q) (20 9
March 31, 201: (24) (4) (20)
Years Ended
December 31, 201 $ 4,82¢ % (139 $ 4,967
December 31, 201 (40) (104) 64
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(in thousands

Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interestcome

Interest Expense on Repurchase Agreements

Gains
(Losses) on
Eurodollar
Futures
Contracts Net Interest Income
GAAP Attributed Economic GAAP Economic
Interest Interest to Current Interest Net Interest Net Interest
Income Expense Period ® Expense?) Income Income )

Three Months Ended
December 31, 201 $ 2,806 $ 30¢€ % 42 $ 351 % 2497 $ 2,45¢
September 30, 201 2,551 294 (29) 322 2,257 2,22¢
June 30, 201 2,42¢ 322 (4) 32¢ 2,107 2,10¢
March 31, 201 1,41z 201 (65) 26¢€ 1,211 1,14¢
December 31, 201 47z 94 (62 15€ 37¢ 317
September 30, 201 697 58 (28) 86 63¢ 611
June 30, 201 76¢ 74 (10 84 69t 68t
March 31, 201: 75¢ 51 (4) 55 70¢€ 704
Years Ended
December 31, 201 $ 9,19¢ $ 1,12¢ $ (139) $ 1,268 $ 8,07z 7,93¢
December 31, 201 2,69¢ 277 (1049) 381 2,421 2,317

(1) Reflects the effect of Eurodollar futures contriaetiges for only the period presen
(2) Calculated by subtracting the effect of Eurodoladges attributed to the period presented from GhAddtest expens
(3) Calculated by adding the effect of Eurodollar heslgéributed to the period presented to GAAP ngtrgst incom:

Net Interest Income

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we geztef.1 million of net interest income, consistofgh9.2 million of interest incon
from RMBS assets offset by $1.1 million of interegspense on repurchase liabilities. For the coaigarperiod ended December 31, 2012
generated $2.4 million of net interest income, cstitey of $2.7 million of interest income from RMBsets offset by $0.3 million of inter
expense on repurchase liabilities. The increasiggerest income and interest expense for the geded December 31, 2013 primarily refl
the deployment of our IPO proceeds into the RMBB&fpko on a leveraged basis.

On an economic basis, our interest expense onaiease liabilities for the years ended Decembe£B13 and 2012 was $1.3 million ¢
$0.4 million, respectively, resulting in $7.9 milfi and $2.3 million of economic net interest inconespectively.
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The tables below provide information on our poitfchverage balances, interest income, yield ontgsagerage repurchase agreer
balances, interest expense, cost of funds, naesttitncome and net interest spread for each quar2013 and 2012 and for the years el
December 31, 2013 and 2012 on both a GAAP and ecicrimasis.

(dollars in thousands

Average Yield on
RMBS Average Average Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds
Securities Interest RMBS Repurchase GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Agreements
Held @) Income @  Securities @) Basis Basis® Basis Basis®
Three Months Ended
December 31, 201 $ 34150 $ 2,80¢ 32% $ 310,100 $ 30¢ $ 351 0.4(% 0.45%
September 30, 201 335,46 2,551 3.04% 305,19¢ 294 322 0.3%% 0.42%
June 30, 201 349,70« 2,42¢ 2.7¢% 312,59: 322 32€ 0.41% 0.42%
March 31, 201! 237,82( 1,412 2.3¢% 210,19: 201 26€ 0.3¢% 0.51%
December 31, 201 91,09 473 2.08% 80,25¢ 94 15€ 0.47% 0.7¢%
September 30, 201 64,37¢ 697 4.3%% 53,69¢ 58 8€ 0.4%% 0.64%
June 30, 201 73,55¢ 76¢ 4.18% 62,40° 74 84 0.47% 0.54%
March 31, 201. 70,58¢ 75¢ 4.3(% 59,157 51 55 0.34% 0.37%
Years Ended
December 31, 201 $ 316,12: $  9,19¢ 291% $ 28452 $ 1,12¢ $ @ 1,26f 0.4(% 0.44%
December 31, 201 74,90 2,69¢ 3.6(% 63,88( 277 381 0.4%% 0.6(%

(dollars in thousands

Net Interest Income

Net Interest Spread

GAAP Economic GAAP Economic

Basis Basis® Basis Basis®)
Three Months Ended
December 31, 201 $ 2497 % 2,45¢ 2.8%% 2.84%
September 30, 201 2,257 2,22¢ 2.65% 2.62%
June 30, 201 2,107 2,10z 2.31% 2.36%
March 31, 201 1,211 1,14¢ 2.0(% 1.87%
December 31, 201 37¢ 317 1.61% 1.3(%
September 30, 201 63¢ 611 3.9(% 3.65%
June 30, 201 69t 68E 3.71% 3.64%
March 31, 201: 70¢ 704 3.9€% 3.9%
Years Ended
December 31, 201 $ 8,07z $ 7,93¢ 2.51% 2.47%
December 31, 201 2,421 2,317 3.1% 3.0(%

(1) Portfolio yields and costs of borrowings preseniedhe tables above and the tables on pages 4%8nare calculated based on
average balances of the underlying investment pltfepurchase agreement balances and are anne@lfor the quarterly periot
presented. Average balances for quarterly periogscalculated using two data points, the beginrémgl ending balances. Aver:
balances for the year to date periods are calcuats the average of the average quarterly peri

(2) Interest income presented in the table above ireduzhly interest earned on the Comp’'s RMBS investments and excludes int
earned on cash balances, and excludes the impatisebunts or premiums on RMBS investments, asuiise or premiums are r
amortized under the fair value option. Interestome and net portfolio interest income may not agvite the information presented
the statements of operatiol

(3) Economic interest expense and economic net interesine presented in the table above and the tables on pdacludes the effe
of our Eurodollar futures contract hedges for otiig periods presente

(4) Represents interest cost of our borrowings andcetie Eurodollar futures contracts hedges attrilalite the period related to hedgi
activities Divided by Average RMBS He

(5) Economic Net Interest Spread is calculated by sudtitng Average Economic Cost of Funds from Yieldearage RMBS Securitie
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Interest Income and Average Asset Yie

Our interest income for the years ended Decembef@13 and 2012 was $9.2 million and $2.7 millieespectively. We had aver:
RMBS holdings of $316.1 million and $74.9 millioorfthe years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012atdsgly. The yield on our portfol
was 2.91% and 3.60% for the years ended Decemh@03B and 2012, respectively. For the year endsgeBber 31, 2013 as compared tc
year ended December 31, 2012, there was a $6.&mificrease in interest income due to a $241.8aniincrease in average RMBS, partii
offset by a 69 basis point decrease in the yielcaegrage RMBS for the year ended December 31, 2#8th compared to the year en
December 31, 2012. The increase in average RMBi&glthe year ended December 31, 2013 reflectslémdoyment of the proceeds of
initial public offering.

The table below presents the average portfolio, sim®me and yields of our respective qdstfolios, consisting of structured RMBS
pass-through RMBS (“PT RMBS").

(dollars in
thousands
Average RMBS Held Interest Income Realized Yield on Average RMBS
PT Structured PT Structured PT Structured
RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total
Three Months Ended,
December 31
2013 $ 318,99« $ 22,50¢ $ 341,50 $ 2,72¢ $ 80 $ 2,80¢ 3.42% 1.42% 3.2%%
September 3
2013 314,09¢ 21,37 335,46 2,412 13¢ 2,551 3.07% 2.6(% 3.04%
June 30, 201 326,97 22,723 349,70 2,51« (85) 2,42¢ 3.0&% (1.51)% 2.7¢%
March 31,
2013 223,19: 14,62¢ 237,82( 1,41¢ 3) 1,41z 2.54% (0.06)% 2.3¢%
December 31
2012 84,617 6,471 91,09« 597 (129 475 2.82% (7.66% 2.0€%
September 3
2012 56,51¢ 7,85¢ 64,37¢ 41C 287 697 2.9(% 14.5%% 4.3%%
June 30, 201 65,32( 8,23¢ 73,55¢ 59z 17¢€ 76¢ 3.6%% 8.5¢% 4.1%
March 31,
2012 61,93¢ 8,64¢ 70,58¢ 53C 22¢ 75¢ 3.4%% 10.56% 4.3(%
Years Ended,
December 31
2013 $ 29581 $ 20,30¢ $ 316,12« $ 9,067 $ 131 $ 9,19¢ 3.06% 0.65% 2.91%
December 31
2012 67,09¢ 7,80¢ 74,90 2,13( 56¢ 2,69¢ 3.17% 7.27% 3.6(%

Interest Expense and the Cost of Fun

We had average outstanding repurchase agreeme$284f5 million and $63.9 million and total interespense of $1.1 million and $
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 a@il?2 respectively. Our average cost of funds wd9%. and 0.43% for years ent
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Theeava basis point decrease in the average cosindéfand a $220.6 million increast
average outstanding repurchase agreements duengetlr ended December 31, 2013 as compared te#repded December 31, 2012.
increase in average outstanding repurchase agréenediects the deployment of the proceeds of oitial public offering on a leveraged ba:

Our economic interest expense was $1.3 millionhd million for the years ended December 31, 28182012, respectively. There \
a 16 basis point decrease in the average econarsimt funds to 0.44% for the year ended DecemteB813 from 0.60% for the previc
year.

Since all of our repurchase agreements are s$bort; changes in market rates directly affect aterest expense. Our average cost of f
calculated on a GAAP basis was 23 basis pointsabwerage one-month LIBOR and 4 basis points abegeage sixnonth LIBOR for th
quarter ended December 31, 2013. Our average euorost of funds was 28 basis points above avesagenonth LIBOR and 9 basis poil
above average simonth LIBOR for the quarter ended December 31, 2008 average term to maturity of the outstandiegurchas
agreements was 15 days at both December 31, 2@1304r2.
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The tables below presents the average repurchasenagnts outstanding, interest expense and aversjeof funds, and average one
month and sixnonth LIBOR rates for each quarter in 2013 and 281 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and @0bdth a GAAP ar
economic basis.

(dollars in thousands

Average
Balance of Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds
Repurchase GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Agreements Basis Basis Basis Basis
Three Months Ended
December 31, 201 $ 310,100 $ 30¢ % 35C 0.4(% 0.45%
September 30, 201 305,19¢ 294 322 0.3% 0.42%
June 30, 201 312,59: 32z 32€ 0.41% 0.42%
March 31, 201! 210,19: 201 26€ 0.3¢% 0.51%
December 31, 201 80,25¢ 94 15€ 0.47% 0.7¢%
September 30, 201 53,69¢ 58 86 0.4%% 0.64%
June 30, 201 62,401 74 84 0.47% 0.54%
March 31, 201: 59,151 51 55 0.34% 0.37%
Years Ended
December 31, 201 $ 284,52 $ 1,12¢ $ 1,264 0.4(% 0.44%
December 31, 201 63,88( 2717 381 0.45% 0.6(%
Average GAAP Cost of Average Economic Cost 0
Funds Funds
Relative to Average Relative to Average
Average LIBOR One-Month Six-Month One-Month Six-Month
One-Month Six-Month LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
Three Months Ended,
December 31, 201 0.17% 0.3€% 0.25% 0.04% 0.28% 0.0%%
September 30, 201 0.1%% 0.4(% 0.2(% (0.01)% 0.25% 0.02%
June 30, 201 0.2(% 0.45% 0.21% (0.02)% 0.22% (0.01)%
March 31, 201! 0.21% 0.4&% 0.17% (0.10% 0.3(% 0.0%
December 31, 201 0.22% 0.5%% 0.25% (0.19)% 0.5€% 0.1%%
September 30, 201 0.25% 0.7(% 0.2(% (0.27)% 0.41% (0.06)%
June 30, 201 0.24% 0.74% 0.25% (0.279% 0.3(% (0.20%
March 31, 201: 0.2€% 0.7€% 0.08% (0.42)% 0.11% (0.39%
Years Ended
December 31, 201 0.1%% 0.42% 0.21% (0.09)% 0.25% 0.02%
December 31, 201 0.24% 0.7(% 0.1¢% (0.20% 0.36% (0.10%

Gains or Losses

Owing to the increased size of the RMBS portfolim anaterial increases in interest rates in 2018jzexd and unrealized losses on
RMBS portfolio and gains in our Eurodollar futuresntracts were both material and significantly é&rthan those experienced in 2012.
table below presents our gains or losses for thesyended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

(in thousands

2013 2012 Change
Realized losses on sales of RM $ (1,19¢) $ (308 $ (890
Unrealized losses on RME (10,737 (80€) (9,927
Total losses on RMB (12,93) (1,119 (20,817
Gains (losses) on Eurodollar futul 4,82¢ (40) 4,86¢
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During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2B&2Company received proceeds of $409.0 million $t@20.1 million, respectivel
from the sales of RMBS. We do not expect to ssdkts on a frequent basis, but may from time te 88l existing assets to acquire new as
which our management believes might have high&ratjusted returns or to manage our balance shgetraef our asset/liability managem
strategy.

In May and again in June of 2013, the Federal Reskinted to the markets that it would begin toetajps quantitative easing progre
possibly as soon as Fall 2013. The quantitativenggsogram involves the purchase of $40 billioneAgy RMBS and $45 billion US Treas
securities per month by the Federal Reserve. T®dtéasury and Agency RMBS markets reacted stratagllgis news and interest rates |
by approximately 100 basis points from early Mayels in the case of the 10 year US Treasury note.

With the release of improving economic data dutimg remainder of the year, interest rates continaate, with the yield on the 10 yi
US Treasury reaching 3.03% at December 31, 20dPDelcember 2013, the Federal Reserve announced thatld start to taper its bond-
buying program by $10 billion a month beginningJemuary 2014. On January 29, 2014, the U.S. HeReserve announced additional
billion reductions to its monthly purchase of béifpency RMBS and Treasury bonds to take effect iorirary 2014.

This market activity initially had an adverse effen our passhrough portfolio since the prices of RMBS assetaegally move in ¢
inverse relationship to interest rates. Conversaly interest only structured securities roseriogpas the market anticipated slower prepay
rates as a result of higher mortgage rates. Tile telow presents historical interest rate dataéeh quarter end during 2013 and 2012.

15 Year 30 Year
10 Year Fixed-Rate Fixed-Rate
Treasury Mortgage Mortgage
Rate @) Rate @ Rate @
December 31, 201 3.05% 3.48% 4.46%
September 30, 201 2.62% 3.52% 4.4%
June 30, 201 2.4&8% 3.1™% 4.07%
March 31, 201 1.85% 2.7t% 3.5™%
December 31, 201 1.7¢% 2.66% 3.35%
September 30, 201 1.64% 2.7¢% 3.41%
June 30, 201 1.6€% 2.95% 3.6&%
March 31, 201: 2.2:% 3.2(% 3.95%

(1) Historical 10 Year Treasury Rates are obtained frquoted end of day prices on the CB(
(2) Historical 30 Year and 15 Year Fixed Rate Mortg&gges are obtained from Freddie N's Primary Mortgage Market Surve

Expenses

Total operating expenses were $1.7 million and $6illon for the years ended December 31, 2013 202, respectively. The tal
below provides a breakdown of operating expensethéoyears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

(in thousands

2013 2012 Change
Management fee $ 664 $ 24¢ 3 41F
Directors fees and liability insuran 29C - 29C
Legal fees 85 - 85
Other professional fee 33t 17¢ 157
Other direct REIT operating expen: 16¢€ 20C (32
Other expense 12¢€ 10€ 2C
Total expense $ 1,66¢ $ 73 $ 93t
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Under the terms of a management agreement thainvedfect during all of 2012 and through the contipke of our initial public offering
the Company paid Bimini a monthly management feeakbdo 1/12 of 1.50% per annum of the Stockholdé&guity (as defined in t
management agreement) of the Company. In additienCompany paid Bimini a monthly fee of $7,200jch represented an allocatior
overhead expenses for items that included, but wetdimited to, occupancy costs, insurance andiaidtmative expenses. These expe
were allocated based on the ratio of the Compaagsets and Bimirs’ consolidated assets. At the completion of tl@, Re Company enter
into a management agreement with Bimini AdvisorsCl a wholly owned subsidiary of Bimini, which pides for an initial term throug
February 20, 2016 with automatic opear extensions and is subject to certain ternonatights. Under the terms of the new manage
agreement, overhead costs will not be allocatethéoCompany until its Equity, as defined in the agament agreement, equals or exc
$100 million for the first time.

Financial Condition:
Mortgage-Backed Securities

As of December 31, 2013, our RMBS portfolio coresisbf $351.2 million of Agency RMBS at fair valuadahad a weighted avere
coupon on assets of 3.77%. During the year endszb@ber 31, 2013, we received principal repaymen$30.8 million compared to $¢
million for the year ended December 31, 2012. aherage prepayment speeds for the quarters endwmsriber 31, 2013 and 2012 were 9
and 28.6%, respectively.

The following table presents the constant prepaymate (“CPR”) experienced on our structured andFMBS subportfolios, on a
annualized basis, for the quarterly periods prezsenCPR is a method of expressing the prepayraénfor a mortgage pool that assumes t
constant fraction of the remaining principal isgail each month or year. Specifically, the CPRhm ¢hart below represents the three m
prepayment rate of the securities in the respeetbset category. Assets that were not owned &ettitire quarter have been excluded fron
calculation. The exclusion of certain assets dugariods of high trading activity can create ayvsigh, and often volatile, reliance on a st
sample of underlying loans.

Structured
PT RMBS RMBS Total
Three Months Ended, Portfolio (% Portfolio (%)  Portfolio (%)
December 31, 201 5.8 17.¢ 9.¢
September 30, 201 6.5 28.Z 12.¢
June 30, 201 6.5 29.¢ 16.%
March 31, 201! 9.2 33.C 20.C
December 31, 201 1.1 42 28.€
September 30, 201 4.2 38.7 25.C
June 30, 201 0.2 41.4 38.1
March 31, 201. 11.C 31.2 23.¢
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The following tables summarize certain charactessdf the Compang' PT RMBS and structured RMBS mortgage relatedriesuas ¢

December 31, 2013 and 2012:

(in thousands

Weighted Weighted
Percentage Average Average Weighted Weighted
of Weighted Maturity Coupon  Average Average
Fair Entire Average in Longest Resetin Lifetime  Periodic
Asset Category Value Portfolio  Coupon Months  Maturity Months Cap Cap
December 31, 201.
Adjustable Rate RMB: $ 5,33¢ 1.5% 3.92% 247  1-Se-3t 3.71 10.13% 2.00%
Fixed Rate RMB¢ 245,52¢ 69.9% 4.05% 32 1-Dec-43 NA NA NA
Hybrid Adjustable Rate RMB 76,11¢ 21.7% 2.56% 35C 1-Aug-43 109.¢ 7.56% 2.00%
Total Mortgag-backed Pa-through 326,97! 93.1% 3.70% 32&¢ 1-Dec-43 102.6° 7.72% 2.00%
Interes-Only Securities 19,20¢ 5.5% 4.39% 261 25-Nov-4C NA NA NA
Inverse Intere-Only Securities 5,042 1.4% 5.92% 317 15-Dec-4C NA 6.08% NA
Total Structured RMB! 24,24¢ 6.9% 4.71% 272z 15-Dec-4C NA NA NA
Total Mortgage Assel $ 351,22: 100.0% 3.77% 324 1-Dec-43 NA NA NA
December 31, 2012
Adjustable Rate RMB: $ 6,531 5.7% 4.20% 25¢  1-Sef-3t 3.4¢ 10.04% 2.00%
Fixed Rate RMB¢ 43,58¢ 37.8% 3.24% 181 1-Dec-4C NA NA NA
Hybrid Adjustable Rate RMB 59,48t 51.5% 2.69% 357 1-Nov-42 100.5: 7.69% 2.00%
Total Mortgag-backed Pa-through 109,60! 95.0% 3.00% 281 1-Nov-42 90.9! 7.93% 2.00%
Interes-Only Securities 2,88¢ 2.5% 3.52% 151 25-Dec-39 NA NA NA
Inverse Intere-Only Securities 2,891 2.5% 6.13% 30¢ 25-Nov-4C NA 6.34% NA
Total Structured RMB: 5,77¢ 5.0% 4.83% 23C 25-Nov-4C NA NA NA
Total Mortgage Assel $ 115,38( 100.0% 3.09% 27¢  1-Nov-42 NA NA NA
(in thousands
December 31, 201, December 31, 201.
Percentage Percentage
of of
Entire Entire
Agency Fair Value Portfolio Fair Value Portfolio
Fannie Mae $ 211,06: 60.0¢% $ 113,23! 98.14%
Freddie Mac 121,84. 34.6%% 2,14t 1.86%
Ginnie Mae 18,31¢ 5.22% - -
Total Portfolio $ 351,22: 100.0% $ 115,38( 100.0(%
December December
31,2013 31,2012
Weighted Average Pass Through Purchase | $ 105.6( $ 105.6¢
Weighted Average Structured Purchase F $ 1211 % 9.91
Weighted Average Pass Through Current F $ 102.8: $ 105.8:
Weighted Average Structured Current Pi $ 145¢ % 7.8¢
Effective Duratior®) 4.18¢ 1.20¢

() Effective duration of 4.188 indicates that an iefstrrate increase of 1.0% would be expected toecaut188% decrease in the value of
RMBS in the Compa’s investment portfolio at December 31, 2013. Aectfe duration of 1.209 indicates that an inténege increase (
1.0% would be expected to cause a 1.209% decreasge ivalue of the RMBS in the Companyivestment portfolio at December 31, 2!
These figures include the structured securitiethanportfolio.
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The following table presents a summary of portfelgsets acquired during the years ended Decemb2033 and 2012.

(in thousands

2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Total Cost Price Yield Total Cost Price Yield
Pas-through RMBS $ 642,90! 104.9: 24% $ 193,96! 105.1: 1.53%
Structured RMB¢ 44,67¢ 15.44 1.6% 5,11( 7.62 11.95%

Our portfolio of PT RMBS s typically comprised afjustable-rate RMBS, fixed-rate RMBS and hybrigusthblerate RMBS. W
generally seek to acquire low duration assetsdffat high levels of protection from mortgage prgpents provided they are reasonably pr
by the market. Although the duration of an indiatlasset can change as a result of changes ieshrates, we strive to maintain a hedge
RMBS portfolio with an effective duration of ledsan 2.0. The stated contractual final maturityhef inortgage loans underlying our portfi
of PT RMBS generally ranges up to 30 years. Howether effect of prepayments of the underlying magtg loans tends to shorten
resulting cash flows from our investments substdigti Prepayments occur for various reasons, inofydefinancing of underlying mortgac
and loan payoffs in connection with home sales.

The duration of our 10 and 11O portfolios will vagreatly depending on the structural features efsbcurities. While prepayment acti
will always affect the cash flows associated witk tecurities, the interest only nature ofd@iay cause their durations to become extre
negative when prepayments are high, and less negatien prepayments are low. Prepayments affectithations of 110s similarly, but t
floating rate nature of the coupon of [IOs (whishiriversely related to the level of one month LIBQ@Ruse their price movementand mode
duration - to be affected by changes in both premays and one month LIBORbeth current and anticipated levels. As a reshé,duratio
of 110 securities will also vary greatly.

Prepayments on the loans underlying our RMBS cin #ie timing of the cash flows from the undertylpans to us. As a result, we ga
the interest rate sensitivity of its assets by meag their effective duration. While modified dticm measures the price sensitivity of a bor
movements in interest rates, effective durationtwras both the movement in interest rates andabethat cash flows to a mortgage rel.
security are altered when interest rates move. #liegly, when the contract interest rate on a magéggloan is substantially above prevai
interest rates in the market, the effective duratibsecurities collateralized by such loans canuige low because of expected prepayments.

We face the risk that the market value of our PTB8Vassets will increase or decrease at differdas than that of our structured RM
or liabilities, including our hedging instrumensccordingly, we assess our interest rate risk lymeding the duration of our assets and
duration of our liabilities. We generally calculateration using various third party models. Howeeenpirical results and various third p:
models may produce different duration numbersHerdgame securities.
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The following sensitivity analysis shows the estieadaimpact on the fair value of our interest rag@sitive investments and hedge posit
as of December 31, 2013, assuming rates instanialyefall 100 basis points (“bps”jise 100 bps and rise 200 bps, adjusted to reflte
impact of convexity, which is the measure of thas#ésity of our hedge positions and Agency RMBSfective duration to movements
interest rates.

(in thousands

Fair $ Change in Fair Value % Change in Fair Value

RMBS Portfolio Value -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS
Adjustable Rate
RMBS $ 533¢ $ 11 % 42 $ (83) 0.2(% (0.76% (1.56)%
Hybrid Adjustable
Rate RMBS 76,11¢ 3,65¢ (4,955 (10,0749 4.81% (6.5)% (13.29)%
Fixed Rate RMB¢ 245,52¢ 10,40" (15,55() (31,349 4.24% (6.39% (12.7)%
Interes-Only RMBS 19,20¢ (5,59¢) 3,215 4,07¢ (29.19% 16.7%% 21.2%
Inverse Interest-Only
RMBS 5,04 263 (48€) (1,26%) 5.22% (9.64)% (25.05%
Total RMBS Portfolic $ 351,227 $ 8,74z $ (17,816 $ (38,689 2.4% (5.00% (11.02)%
(in thousands

Notional $ Change in Fair Value % Change in Fair Value
Repurchase
Agreement Hedges ~ Amount @ -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS
Eurodollar Futures
Contracts $ 4,375,000 $ (8,599 $ 10,93¢ $ 21,87¢ (0.80)% 1.02% 2.04%

(1) Represents the total cumulative contract/nai@mount of Eurodollar futures contracts outstargli

In addition to changes in interest rates, othetofacimpact the fair value of our interest ramsitive investments, such as the shape
yield curve, market expectations as to future ggerate changes and other market conditions. Aaugly, in the event of changes in ac
interest rates, the change in the fair value ofassets would likely differ from that shown abovel such difference might be material
adverse to our stockholders.

Repurchase Agreemen

As of December 31, 2013, we had established bongWécilities in the repurchase agreement mark#t twelve counterparties which
believe provide borrowing capacity in excess of meeds. None of these lenders are affiliated thighCompany. As of December 31, 2013
had funding in place with nine of the twelve coupteties. These borrowings are secured by the @oyip RMBS and bear interest rates
are based on a spread to LIBOR.

As of December 31, 2013, we had obligations outBtenunder the repurchase agreements of approdyn®&848.6 million with a ne
weighted average borrowing cost of 0.39%. The raimgimaturity of our outstanding repurchase agreasebligations ranged from 3 to
days, with a weighted average remaining maturitl®fdays. Securing the repurchase agreement tibtigaas of December 31, 2013,
RMBS with an estimated fair value, including accturterest, of approximately $337.0 million and eighted average maturity of 328 mon
Through February 21, 2014, we have been able tataiaiour repurchase facilities with comparablenteto those that existed at Decembe
2013 with maturities through May 13, 2014.
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The table below presents information about ourgukeind and average repurchase agreement obligédioeach quarter in 2013 and 20

(dollars in thousands

Difference Between Ending

Ending Average Repurchase Agreement:
Balance Balance and
of of Average Repurchase
Repurchase Repurchase Agreements

Three Months Ended Agreements Agreements Amount Percent
December 31, 201 $ 31855 $ 310,100 $ 8,45( 2.7%
September 30, 201 301,65 305,19¢ (3,539 (1.16%
June 30, 201 308,73! 312,59: (3,85¢6) (1.29%
March 31, 201! 316,44t 210,19 106,25: 50.55% (@)
December 31, 201 103,94: 80,25¢ 23,68: 29.51% ®)
September 30, 201 56,57 53,69¢ 2,87: 5.35%
June 30, 201 50,82¢ 62,40" (11,587) (18.56% ©
March 31, 201. 73,98¢ 59,157 14,83 25.07% @

(@) The higher ending balance relative to the averagkaice during the quarter ended March 31, 2013eef the deployment of
proceeds of the Compée's IPO. During the quarter ended March 31, 2018 Companyg investment in PT RMBS increased $2
million.

(b) The higher ending balance relative to the averagéatice reflects a shift in the portfolio allocatidawards PT RMBS that t
Company funds through the repo market. During qoarter ended December 31, 2012, the Commaitywestment in PT RMI
increased $50.0 millior

(c) The lower ending balance relative to the averageatee reflects a shift in the portfolio allocatibowards Structured RMBS that w
not funded through the repo market. During thertgraended June 30, 2012, the Comparigvestment in PT RMBS decreased $
million.

(d) The higher ending balance relative to the averagkaiice reflects a shift in the portfolio allocatidowards assets that the Comp
funds through the repo market. During the quageded March 31, 2012, the Comp’s investment in PT RMBS increased $
million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is our ability to turn norcash assets into cash, purchase additional invagtmepay principal and interest on borrowingsd
overhead, fulfill margin calls and pay dividend3ur principal immediate sources of liquidity inceudash balances, unencumbered asse
borrowings under repurchase agreements. Our borgoeapacity will vary over time as the market alaf our interest earning as:
varies. Our balance sheet also generates liquaditan ongoing basis through payments of principal and egemwe receive on our RMI
portfolio. Management believes that we currentyé sufficient liquidity and capital resources tadale for (a) the acquisition of additio
investments consistent with the size and natureunfexisting RMBS portfolio, (b) the repayments loorrowings and (c) the payment
dividends to the extent required for our contingedlification as a REIT.

Because our PT RMBS portfolio consists entirelga¥ernment and agency securities, we do not aateipaving difficulty converting o
assets to cash should our liquidity needs evereskoeir immediately available sources of cash. €hurctured RMBS portfolio also consi
entirely of governmental agency securities, althotigey typically do not trade with comparable biask spreads as PT RMBS. However
anticipate that we would be able to liquidate sseburities readily, even in distressed markethpatjh we would likely do so at prices be
where such securities could be sold in a more sstatalrket. To enhance our liquidity even furthee, way pledge a portion of our structt
RMBS as part of a repurchase agreement fundingebain the cash in lieu of acquiring additionaledss In this way we can, at a modest
retain higher levels of cash on hand and decrémskkelihood we will have to sell assets in amissed market in order to raise cash.
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Our master repurchase agreements have no staté@itexp but can be terminated at any time at optiom or at the option of tl
counterparty. However, once a definitive repurchegeement under a master repurchase agreemen¢drmgntered into, it generally may
be terminated by either party. A negotiated teation can occur, but may involve a fee to be pajidthe party seeking to terminate
repurchase agreement transaction.

Under our repurchase agreement funding arrangemeatare required to post margin at the initiatiéhe borrowing. The margin pos
represents the haircut, which is a percentage efnarket value of the collateral pledged. To théemxthe market value of the as
collateralizing the financing transaction declintt®e market value of our posted margin will be ffisient and we will be required to pc
additional collateral. Conversely, if the marketue of the asset pledged increases in value, widwie over collateralized and we woulc
entitled to have excess margin returned to us éytiunterparty. Our lenders typically value owdgled securities daily to ensure the adec
of our margin and make margin calls as neededoased Typically, but not always, the parties agi@e minimum threshold amount
margin calls so as to avoid the need for nuisanaegim calls on a daily basis. At December 31, 2Gh8& weighted average haircut
repurchase agreement counterparties required huadovas approximately 5.50% of the estimatedvalue of the underlying collateral.

As discussed earlier, we invest a portion of oyniteain structured Agency RMBS. We do not funé fhurchase of these investment
the repurchase market but instead purchase diratilyg reducing — but not eliminating - the Companseliance on access to repurcl
agreement funding. The leverage inherent in airedt securities replaces the leverage obtaineaduiring PT securities and funding then
the repurchase market. This structured RMBS gyateas been a core element of the Commrgverall investment strategy sil
inception. However, we have and may continue éalgé a portion of our structured RMBS in orderdise our cash levels, but will not ple:
these securities in order to acquire additionadtass

The following table summarizes the effect on oguidity and cash flows from contractual obligatidios repurchase agreements
interest expense on repurchase agreements.

(in thousands

Obligations Maturing
Within One One to Three Three to Five More than

Year Years Years Five Years Total
Repurchase agreemel $ 318,55 $ - $ - $ - $ 318,55
Interest expense on repurchase agreen(?) 13¢ - - - 13¢
Totals $ 318,69t $ - $ - $ - $ 318,691

@) Interest expense on repurchase agreements is basedirrent interest rates as of December 31, 2048 the remaining term of t
liabilities existing at that date

In future periods, we expect to continue to finapoe activities in a manner that is consistent vaitit current operations via repurch
agreements. As of December 31, 2013, we had aadtcash equivalents of $8.2 million. We generatash flows of $38.9 million fro
principal and interest payments on our RMBS and dna&tage repurchase agreements outstanding of 352@#lion during the year end
December 31, 2013.

Stockholder’ Equity

On February 14, 2013, our Board of Directors detlaa stock dividend whereby 5.37 shares of comrumk svere issued for each shar
common stock then outstanding. The 827,555 shaistsbdted pursuant to the dividend were issuedBimini on February 20, 201
immediately prior to our initial public offering-or the year ended December 31, 2012, the 981 @®Bnon shares, which includes the 154
shares of common stock outstanding at Decembe2@I2 and the 827,555 shares distributed as a sfoitdend, is used for our earnings
share computations, as Bimini was the sole stocldraluring that entire period.
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On February 20, 2013, we completed an initial pubffering of our common stock, issuing 2,360,0B8rses of common stock at a prict
$15.00 per share. The gross proceeds we receivddssale were $35.4 million.

In January 2014, we completed a public offerin@@70,000 shares of our common stock (including,@J® shares sold pursuant to
full exercise of the overallotment option grantedhe underwriters which closed on January 29, P@drdnet proceeds of approximately $z
million after deducting underwriters’ discounts asmnmissions and offering expenses.

Outlook
Regulatory Developments with Respect to Fannie ataeFreddie Mac and the Do-Frank Act

In response to the credit market disruption andd#iteriorating financial conditions of Fannie Mam d&reddie Mac, Congress and the
Treasury undertook a series of actions that cultathavith putting Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac in eownatorship in September 2008. -
Federal Housing Finance Agency (“FHFATw operates Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac as conserirman effort to stabilize the entities. -
FHFA also noted that during the conservatorshigopeit would work to enact new regulations for imim capital standards, prudent sa
and soundness standards and portfolio limits ohiealMae and Freddie Mac.

Although the U.S. Government has committed sigaificresources to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, AgBMBS guaranteed by eitt
Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac are not backed by tHddith and credit of the United States. Moreovbg Secretary of the U.S. Treasury n
that the guarantee structure of Fannie Mae anddigedlac requires examination and that changes énsthuctures of the entities w
necessary to reduce risk to the financial systamch®hanges may involve an explicit U.S. Governnimtking of Fannie Mae and Frec
Mac Agency RMBS or the express elimination of amplied U.S. Government guarantee and, therefoeaticm of credit risk with respect
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac Agency RMBS. Additionadin February 11, 2011, the U.S. Treasury issub¢hde Paper titled Reforming
America’s Housing Finance Marketfiat lays out, among other things, proposals té kimpotentially wind down the role that Fannie éan(
Freddie Mac play in the mortgage market.

On October 4, 2012, the FHFA released a white papétled Building a New Infrastructure for the Secondary kdage Market(the
“FHFA White Paper”). This release follows up on fRdFA’s February 21, 2013trategic Plan for Enterprise Conservatorshipghich se
forth three goals for the next phase of the FaiMae and Freddie Mac conservatorships. These thoals gre to (i) build a new infrastruct
for the secondary mortgage market, (ii) graduatintcact Fannie Mae and Freddie Magresence in the marketplace while simplifying
shrinking their operations, and (iii) maintain fol@sure prevention activities and credit availapifior new and refinanced mortgages.
FHFA White Paper proposes a new infrastructurd-gomie Mae and Freddie Mac that has two basic goals

The first such goal is to replace the current, atgd infrastructures of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mk a common, more efficie
infrastructure that aligns the standards and prestof the two entities, beginning with core fuoct performed by both entities suct
issuance, master servicing, bond administratiofiateral management and data integration. The skgmal is to establish an opera
framework for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac that issezient with the progress of housing finance rafand encourages and accommoc
the increased participation of private capital #swuaming credit risk associated with the secondagtgage market. The FHFA recognizes
there are a number of impediments to their goalelwvinmay or may not be surmountable, such as thenalesof any significant second
mortgage market mechanisms beyond Fannie Mae, ierétiet and Ginnie Mae, and that their proposaldratee formative stages. As a res
it is unclear if the proposals will be enactedsuth proposals are enacted, it is unclear how lglegeat is enacted will resemble the propao
from the FHFA White Paper or what the effects @& émactment will be. As the economy has slowly veoed home prices have increaset
the low levels seen in the aftermath of the finahciisis and a significant portion of the shadowentory of homes that resulted fr
foreclosures are slowly being worked off. The cambon of recovering home prices, attractive ficiag levels -albeit with still tight lendin
standards - and decreasing liquidations of homéoveclosures have resulted in an acceleratiopfinancing activity.
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On June 25, 2013, Senators Bob Corker (R-TN) anckMé&arner (D-VA), with Senators Mike Johanns (R-NE)n Tester (DMT), Dear
Heller (R-NV), Heidi Heitkamp (D-ND), Jerry MorafiR{KS) and Kay Hagan (INC), formally introduced the Housing Finance Refant
Taxpayer Protection Act of 2013 (the “Corker-Wardt”) into the U.S. Senate. While the current ilraf the CorkerWwarner Bill will likely
undergo significant changes as it is debated, éjgected to serve as a basis of discussion fagressional efforts to reform Fannie Mae
Freddie Mac.

As currently drafted, the Corker-Warner Bill hassth key provisions:

i. the establishment of the Federal Mageg Insurance Corporation (the “FMIC");
ii. the creation of a Mortgage Insurafemd (the “Fund”); and
il. the wind-down of Fannie Mae and FiedMac.

The FMIC would be a government guarantor modelést dfie Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ‘@dC”) in that it would collec
insurance premiums and maintain a deposit fundl@mutstanding obligations. Every mortgabaeked security issued through the FMIC wi
have a private investor bearing the first riskasld and holding at least $0.10 in equity capitakfeery dollar of risk. This private capital but
would serve to protect taxpayers from the risk efladlt on the mortgages underlying securities dduethe FMIC. Thus, the ultimate purp
of the FMIC would be to bring in credit investoostiear the risk of default while providing liquigitransparency and access to mortgage t
for the housing finance system.

The FHFA would be abolished after the establishnoérihe FMIC, and all current responsibilities bEtFHFA, as well as its resourc
would be transferred to the FMIC. In particulae thorker-Warner Bill specifies that the FMIC wouh@intain a database of uniform lokavel
information on eligible mortgages, develop standaniform securitization agreements and overseecttramon securitization platfol
currently being developed by the FHFA.

In the event losses due to default on underlyingtgages exceed the first position losses of pricadglit investors in securities issuec
the FMIC, the FMIC would cover such losses outtef Fund. The CorkéWarner Bill specifies that the FMIC would endeavorattain |
reserve balance of 1.25% of the aggregate outstgrutincipal balance of covered securities witlwe fyears of the establishment of the FI
and 2.50% of such amount within ten years of thabdéishment of the FMIC. The Fund would be paidhwitsurance premiums, akin to L
fees, paid by private investors with various rejpgraind transparency requirements.

As currently proposed, the Corkértarner Bill would revoke the charters of Fannie Maml Freddie Mac upon the establishment o
FMIC. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac would wind dowreageditiously as possible while maximizing retutodaxpayers as their assets
sold off.

On July 11, 2013, members of the U.S. House of &amtatives introduced the Protecting American ages and Homeowners /
(“PATH"), a broad financing reform bill that servas a counterpart to the Corkéfarner Bill. PATH would also revoke the charters-afnie
Mae and Freddie Mac and remove barriers to privatestment. However, PATH would maintain the FHR#&d ajive it oversight over a ne
non-government, not-fgorofit National Mortgage Market Utility whose missi would be to develop best practices standardshfoprivat
origination, servicing, pooling and securitizingrobrtgages and operate a publicly accessible seation outlet to match loan originators v
investors. Additional provisions of PATH includeetheduction in size and scope of the Federal Hguaiministration (“FHA”),targeting it
mission specifically to first-time borrowers anavicand moderate- income borrowers except in perdddsgnificant credit contraction.

There is no way to know if either proposal will bewe law or, should one of the proposals become ifagr, how the enacted law w

differ from the current draft of the bill. It is akear how this proposal would impact housing firgrend what impact, if any, it would have
mortgage REITSs.
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The effect of the actions taken and to be takethbyU.S. Treasury, Congress or FHFA remains unicei@iven the public reaction to 1
substantial funds made available to Fannie MaeFaaddie Mac, future funding for both is likely tacke increased scrutiny. New and rece
enacted laws, regulations and programs relatecdtmiE Mae and Freddie Mac may adversely affecptioing, supply, liquidity and value
Agency RMBS and otherwise materially harm our besand operations.

The DoddFrank Act provides for new regulations on finandredtitutions and creates new supervisory and adyibodies, including tt
new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau. The Diedahk Act tasks many agencies with issuing a wanénew regulations, including rul
related to mortgage origination and servicing, séization and derivatives. Because a significamnber of regulations under the DoBdank
Act have either not yet been proposed or not yethkadopted in final form, it is not possible fortospredict how the Dod&rank Act will
impact our business.

Interest Rate

The Federal Reserve has taken a number of stepshaeviast few years to lower both short and leewgr interest rates. In August 2011,
Federal Reserve announced that it expected to anaitite Federal Funds Rate at a low level at mstigh mid2013, and on January 25, 2
it extended that outlook through late 2014. Addititly, on September 21, 2011, the Federal Resemeumced the extension of the matur
of its U.S. Treasury securities portfolio by sedlimpproximately $400 billion in shomrm U.S. Treasury securities and purchasin
equivalent amount of longer-term U.S. Treasury gées. This program, known as “Operation Twiggsted through December 2012. The
of Operation Twist was to lower the yields on lortem U.S. Treasury securities, which the FederaleRe believed would lower inter
rates tied to such yields, such as mortgage ratsnderest rates on commercial loans.

In September 2012, the Federal Reserve announcepeamended program to expand its holdings of lemngy securities by purchasing
additional $40 billion of Agency RMBS per month iinkey economic indicators, such as the unemploym@te, showed signs
improvement. This program, known as “QE3", when bomad with other programs to extend the averageuntyatof the Federal Resens’
holdings of securities and reinvest principal pagtafrom the Federal Reserseholdings of agency debt and Agency RMBS into Ay
RMBS, was expected to increase the Federal Reseimgddings of longerm securities by $85 billion each month. The FedBeserve als
announced that it would keep the target rangetferRederal Funds Rate between zero and 0.25% thratulgast mid2015, which was s
months longer than previously expected.

The Federal Reserve provided further guidance éartarket in December 2012 by stating that it inéehtb keep the Federal Funds |
close to zero while the unemployment rate is ab®®86 and as long as inflation does not rise aboB@62In December 2012, the Fed
Reserve also announced that it would initially belguying $45 billion of longerm Treasury bonds each month and noted that aunciun
may increase in the future. This bond purchaserprogeplaced Operation Twist.

The Federal Reserve Open Market Committee (the “EQMneeting minutes released on April 10, 2013 reve#bed the FOMC he
begun considering when the Federal Reserve shagih hapering the pace of Agency RMBS purchasemsBeptember 2012. The FOI
meeting minutes released on May 22, 2013 annoutimdhe Federal Reserve was considering beginwirigper such purchase as earl
June 2013. In minutes released on June 25, 20&83FOMC stated that the Federal Reserve would begiscale back Agency RME
purchases later in 2013 and that such purchaseklwease entirely when the unemployment rate rehd8é. On October 30, 2013,
FOMC announced that it would continue reinvestimmgpal payments from its holdings of agency debt Agency RMBS into Agen
RMBS and U.S. Treasury securities at the curreoe padefinitely. The FOMC believes that theseatdishould maintain downward pres:
on longerterm interest rates, support mortgage markets,hatgl to make broader financial conditions more awoodative, which in tu
should promote a stronger economic recovery angl ¢ettrol the rate of inflation. The October 3013 announcement provided no additit
guidance as to when tapering might begin.
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Although historically correlated with movementsthre Federal Funds Rate, European ibi@nk lending rates, specifically LIBOR,
independently affected by the fiscal and budgepmnblems of the member countries of the Europeaioirin recent years, the Europ
Central Bank, International Monetary Fund and mangbentries have provided emergency funding medmasito support members facing
inability to raise new debt at acceptable levelglisas Greece, Ireland, Portugal and Spain). Textent this crisis persists or worsens, LIE
may increase substantially.

Although, long-term interest rates are currentiiatorically low levels, they are still high reike to shortterm interest rates. We belie
that the relationship between long and shent interest rates will remain relatively unchashg® long as the U.S. economic recovery
inflation rates remain tepid. If the economic reexgvwere to strengthen or inflation rates increise,Federal Reserve may decide to aba
its current lowinterest rate policies and/or increase intereststailthough an increase in the Federal Funds watgd most likely result in ¢
increase in LIBOR, other European-specific factetsh as a credit disruption in the European ibtak credit market, could cause an incr
in LIBOR independent of movements in the FederaldsuRate.

At its December 18, 2013 meeting, the FOMC indiddteat it saw improvement in economic activity dabdor market conditions. As
result, the FOMC announced that, beginning in JanR814, it would reduce its monthly purchases geAcy RMBS from $40 billion to $:
billion and U.S. Treasury securities from $45 billito $40 billion. The FOMC further stated thatibuld continue reinvesting princiy
payments from its holdings of these securities geicy RMBS and rolling over maturing Treasury boatlauction. On January 29, 2014,
FOMC announced additional $5 billion reductionsit® monthly purchases of both Agency RMBS and Tugadonds to take effect
February 2014. The FOMC expects even the lowerl ley@urchases to maintain downward pressure ogdoterm interest rates, supp
mortgage markets and make broader financial camditmore accommodative, which it believes shoutdnmte economic recovery and con
inflation.

Prepayment Rates, Refinancings and Loan Modifina@imgrams

As a result of the Federal Resewvéhterest rate policy and global economic condgjoprevailing interest rates, especially mort
interest rates, are at historically low levels. &mtly, lower mortgage interest rates leads toeased refinancings and, conseque
prepayments on mortgages and RMBB addition to the proposed reforms and/or chamjdsannie Mae and Freddie Mac suggested b
U.S. Treasury and the FHFA, Congress has to datedunced three legislative proposals that seekrdwige changes to the current hou:
finance infrastructure. However, as a result & tontinuing depressed levels of home prices (dugait to the supply of new and exis
homes for sale, plus the “shadowiventory of homes expected to be on the marke& assult of future foreclosures) and the tig
underwriting standards of lenders, refinancing\gtihas yet to react to prevailing interest rateeintives available to borrowers as me
participants expected.

To further stimulate the level of refinancing aitiy the Obama administration has instituted proggdo assist borrowers struggling v
their mortgage payments or unable to refinance.example, the government has expanded the HARRarggvhich is a program where
eligible borrowers who owe more money on their mage loans than the value of their homes (commiombyvn as being “underwatedh ¢
mortgage loan) can receive assistance refinantieig inortgage loans by loosening the eligibilitguaements for refinancing. On April :
2013, the FHFA extended the HARP program by twayéa December 31, 2015. In response to the exquhRARP program, Fannie M
and Freddie Mac have announced guidelines for damge with the expanded program.

Current programs such as the Home Affordable Modifon Program and the Principal Reduction Alteéuweatire designed to as:
borrowers in modifying their mortgage loans.

Effect on Us

Regulatory developments, movements in interess rael prepayment rates as well as loan modificgtiograms affect us in many wa
including the following:
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Effects on our Asse

A change in or elimination of the guarantee strietf Agency RMBS may increase our costs (if, fearaple, guarantee fees increase
require us to change our investment strategy ategeFor example, the elimination of the guarasteecture of Agency RMBS may caust
to change our investment strategy to focus onAgency RMBS, which in turn would require us to sfggantly increase our monitoring of t
credit risks of our investments in addition to net&t rate and prepayment risks.

Lower longterm interest rates can affect the value of ournrsgeRMBS in a number of ways. If prepayment ratesralatively low (due
in part, to the refinancing problems described a&polower long-term interest rates can increasevidiee of highecoupon Agency RMB!
This is because investors typically place a premiumassets with yields that are higher than mayiattls. Although lower longerm interes
rates may increase asset values in our portfokomay not be able to invest new funds in similgiblding assets.

If prepayment levels increase, the value of our eyeRMBS affected by such prepayments may decliinés is because a princi
prepayment accelerates the effective term of amg&g&MBS, which would shorten the period during ethan investor would receive above
market returns (assuming the yield on the prepagktais higher than market yields). Also, prepaymonceeds may not be able to
reinvested in similayielding assets. Agency RMBS backed by mortgageh high interest rates are more susceptible togyment ris
because holders of those mortgages are most lizgelfinance to a lower rate. 10s and IIOs, hower@y be the types of Agency RMBS n
sensitive to increased prepayment rates. Becaesadlder of an 10 or IO receives no principal payns, the values of IOs and IIOs
entirely dependent on the existence of a prindiaénce on the underlying mortgages. If the prialci@lance is eliminated due to prepayn
IOs and 1IOs essentially become worthless. Althoingheased prepayment rates can negatively affiectalue of our 10s and 110s, they h
the opposite effect on POs. Because POs act li@cmipon bonds, meaning they are purchased at audisto their par value and have
effective interest rate based on the discount haddrm of the underlying loan, an increase in ayament rates would reduce the effective 1
of our POs and accelerate the yields earned o thesets, which would increase our net income.

Because we base our investment decisions on rislageament principles rather than anticipated movésnieninterest rates, in a vola
interest rate environment we may allocate moretabjn structured Agency RMBS with shorter durasipsuch as shoterm fixed and floatin
rate CMOs. We believe these securities have a leemsitivity to changes in lortgrm interest rates than other asset classes. Welway:
attempt to mitigate our exposure to changes in-teng interest rates by investing in 10s and IIOkjol typically have different sensitivities
changes in long-term interest rates than pass-ghrégency RMBS, particularly pass-through Agency B®/backed by fixed-rate mortgages.

We do not believe our investment portfolio will beaterially affected by loan modification programecause Agency RMBS backed
loans that would qualify for such programs (e.griausly delinquent loans) will be purchased byritaMae and Freddie Mac at their par v
prior to the implementation of such programs. Hogre¥f Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were to modifgind their repurchase programs t
the U.S. Government modified its loan modificatiprograms to modify nodelinquent mortgage loans, our investment portfoliald b
negatively impacted.

Effects on our borrowing cos

We leverage our pashrough Agency RMBS portfolio and a portion of atiructured Agency RMBS with principal balances tiylo the
use of shorterm repurchase agreement transactions. The ihtetes on our debt are determined by market lesfelsoth the Federal Fur
Rate and LIBOR. An increase in the U.S. FederadBuRate or LIBOR would increase our borrowing costsich could affect our interest r.
spread if there is no corresponding increase inintexest we earn on our assets. This would be m@stalent with respect to our Agel
RMBS backed by fixed rate mortgage loans becauseéntierest rate on a fixadte mortgage loan does not change even thoughetite
may change.
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In order to protect our net interest margin againsteases in shoterm interest rates, we may enter into interest svaps, whic
effectively convert our floating-rate repurchaseeggnent debt to fixed-rate debt.

Summary

The relatively large spread between short and tengy interest rates has positively affected ourimetrest margin. However, change
prepayment rates could negatively affect our negr@st margin and the value of our assets. Furthiernincreases in the Federal Funds
and LIBOR could significant increase our financowsgts, which could lower our net interest margin.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordantteGAAP. GAAP requires our management to makees@omplex and subjecti
decisions and assessments. Our most critical atiogupolicies involve decisions and assessmentghwhould significantly affect report
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Maregdmas identified its most critical accountingipiek:

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Our investments in Agency RMBS are accounted fadeurthe fair value option. We acquire our Agency B®/for the purpose
generating long-term returns, and not for the sterh investment of idle capital. Changes in the Value of securities accounted for undel
fair value option are reflected as part of ourinebme or loss in our statement of operations,pgp®sed to a component of other comprehe!
income in our statement of stockholders’ equitthéy were instead reclassified as availablestde securities. We elected to account for ¢
our Agency RMBS under the fair value option in arttereflect changes in the fair value of our AgeRMBS in our statement of operatic
which we believe more appropriately reflects theutes of our operations for a particular reportperiod. GAAP requires the use of a three
level valuation hierarchy to disclose the clasaifien of fair value measurements used for detengirihe fair value of our Agency RME
These levels include:

« Level 1 valuations, where the valuation is basedjoated market prices for identical assets or liitds traded in active marke
(which include exchanges and c-the-counter markets with sufficient volum

» Level 2 valuations, where the valuation is baseduwsted market prices for similar instruments tchiteactive markets, quoted pri
for identical or similar instruments in markets ttleme not active and modb&sed valuation techniques for which all signifi
assumptions are observable in the market,

» Level 3 valuations, where the valuation is generfitem modelbased techniques that use significant assumptioinsliservable in tt
market, but observable based on Company- spedifia. @hese unobservable assumptions reflect thep@uoyis own estimates f
assumptions that market participants would useriting the asset or liability. Valuation techniquiypically include option pricin
models, discounted cash flow models and similanrigies, but may also include the use of markeeprof assets or liabilities t
are not directly comparable to the subject asskaloitity.

Our Agency RMBS are valued using Level 2 valuatj@msl such valuations currently are determineduryntanager based on the ave
of thirdparty broker quotes and/or by independent priciogrees when available. Because the price estinméssvary, our manager mi
make certain judgments and assumptions about fh®aqiate price to use to calculate the fair valudternatively, our Manager could opt
have the value of all of our positions in Agency B8¥determined by either an independent third-partyo so internally.
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In managing our portfolio, Bimini Advisors emplotfe following fourstep process at each valuation date to determinfaithvalue of ot
Agency RMBS:

« First, our Manager obtains fair values from sulpgn-based independent pricing sources. These pricassareby both our Manag
as well as many of our repurchase agreement cquamtgron a daily basis to establish margin requéets for our borrowings

« Second, our Manager requests non-binding quotes dmee to four brokedealers for each of its Agency RMBS in order tddetk th
values obtained by the pricing service. Our Managguests these quotes from brolleslers that actively trade and make marke
the respective asset class for which the quotegseasted

« Third, our Manager reviews the values obtainedheypricing source and the broker-dealers for ctersty across similar assets.

« Finally, if the data from the pricing services am@kerdealers is not homogenous or if the data obtaiseiddonsistent with o
Managers market observations, our Manager makes a judgtoesiétermine which price appears the most comgistih observe
prices from similar assets and selects that pfioghe extent our Manager believes that none opthes are consistent with obser
prices for similar assets, which is typically treese for only an immaterial portion of our portfodiach quarter, our Manager may u
third price that is consistent with observed prif@sidentical or similar assets. In the case dets that have quoted prices suc
Agency RMBS backed by fixethte mortgages, our Manager generally uses theedumt observed market price. For assets su
Agency RMBS backed by ARMs or structured Agency R3Bur Manager may determine the price based oyi¢he or spread th
is identical to an observed transaction or a sinaitset for which a dealer mark or subscrij-based price has been obtain

Management believes its pricing methodology to tiesistent with the definition of fair value desetbin FASB ASC 820Fair Value
Measurement.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has entered into Eurodollar futuredraots to manage interest rate risk, facilitateetiability strategies and manage o
exposures, and it may continue to do so in theréuthe Company has elected to not treat any afetivative financial instruments as hed
FASB ASC Topic 815Derivatives and Hedging requires that all derivative instruments be eafrat fair value. Changes in fair value
recorded in earnings for each period.

Repurchase Agreements

We finance the acquisition of a portion of our AgerRMBS through repurchase transactions under masprirchase agreemel
Repurchase transactions are treated as collagdlafimancing transactions and are carried at tbentractual amounts, including accr
interest.

In instances where we acquire Agency RMBS throwgglurchase agreements with the same counterpartyviitom the Agency RME
were purchased, we account for the purchase comamitmnd repurchase agreement on a net basis aodi racforward commitment
purchase Agency RMBS as a derivative instrumenheéf transaction does not comply with the criteiaFASB ASC 860,Transfers an
Servicing, for gross presentation. If the transaction coeplvith the criteria for gross presentation, weseneé the assets and the rel
financing on a gross basis in our statements anfifal condition, and the corresponding interesttine and interest expense in our stateme
operations. Such forward commitments are recordéairavalue with subsequent changes in fair vakeognized in income. Additionally, \
record the cash portion of our investment in AgeR&4BS as a mortgage related receivable from thetesparty on our balance sheet.
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Income Recognition
Since we commenced operations, we have electesttauat for all of our Agency RMBS under the faituaoption.

All of our Agency RMBS are either pa#isrough securities or structured Agency RMBS, idolg CMOs, 10s, 1I0s or POs. Income
passthrough securities, POs and CMOs that contain ratdbalances is based on the stated interestafathe security. As a result
accounting for our RMBS under the fair value optipremium or discount present at the date of puwelis not amortized. For IOs, 110s
CMOs that do not contain principal balances, incasaccrued based on the carrying value and ttectefé yield. The difference betwe
income accrued and the interest received on th&iggcs characterized as a return of investment sgrves to reduce the assetarrying value
At each reporting date, the effective yield is atia prospectively from the reporting period basedhe new estimate of prepayments, cu
interest rates and current asset prices. The nfagtiek yield is calculated based on the carryimfug at the end of the previous repor
period, the new prepayment estimates and the aia#daterms of the security. Changes in fair vadfi@ll of our Agency RMBS during tl
period are recorded in earnings and reported asalined gains (losses) on mortgdggeked securities in the accompanying statemel
operations. For 11O securities, effective yield andome recognition calculations also take intoocat the index value applicable to
security.

Capital Expenditures
At December 31, 2013, we had no material commitsémtcapital expenditures.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
At December 31, 2013, we did not have any off-badasheet arrangements.
Dividends
To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetwlsur stockholders of at least 90% of our REITatal® income, determined withq

regard to the deduction for dividends paid andudiolg any net capital gains. We intend to pay ragoionthly dividends to our stockhold
and have declared the following dividends sincectirapletion of our initial public offering.

Per Share

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Amount Total

March 8, 201: March 25, 201 March 27, 201 $ 0.13¢ 451,12!
April 10, 2013 April 25, 2013 April 30, 2013 0.13¢ 451,12!
May 9, 201z May 28, 201 May 31, 201: 0.13¢ 451,12!
June 10, 201 June 25, 201 June 28, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
July 9, 201z July 25, 201z July 31, 201: 0.13¢ 451,12!
August 12, 201: August 26, 201. August 30, 201: 0.13¢ 451,12!
September 10, 201 September 25, 201 September 30, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
October 10, 201 October 25, 201 October 31, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
November 12, 201 November 25, 201 November 27, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
December 11, 201 December 26, 201 December 30, 201 0.18C 601,50(
January 9, 201 January 27, 201 January 31, 201 0.18( 925,50
February 11, 201 February 25, 201 February 28, 201 0.18( 974,10(
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Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are enést rate sensitive in nature. As a result, isterates and other factors influence
performance far more so than does inflation. Changenterest rates do not necessarily correlatd wiflation rates or changes in inflat
rates. Our financial statements are prepared iordaace with GAAP and our distributions will be elebined by our Board of Directc
consistent with our obligation to distribute to atiockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable ine@mn an annual basis in order to mair
our REIT qualification; in each case, our activatiand balance sheet are measured with referenuisttwical cost and/or fair market va
without considering inflation.

Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012

We are an “emerging growth company” as definechan Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012“@8S Act”). The JOBS Ac
permits emerging growth companies to take advantdigen extended transition period to comply witlwner revised accounting stande
applicable to public companies. We have electetbpd out” of this provision and, as a result, we will be regd to comply with new «
revised accounting standards as required whenateegdopted. The decision to opt out of the exddnthnsition period under the JOBS At
irrevocable.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not Applicable.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Orchid Island Capital, Inc.
Vero Beach, Florida

We have audited the accompanying balance she&scbid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Companyd¥ of December 31, 2013 and 2012 ans
related statements of operations, stockholdegsity, and cash flows for each of the two yearthaperiod ended December 31, 2013. T
financial statements are the responsibility of @empanys management. Our responsibility is to exprespinion on these financ
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to haes, were we engaged to perform, an audit of iterial control over financi
reporting. Our audits included consideration dkinal control over financial reporting as a bdeis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverdthe Company' internal control ow
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express notsopinion. An audit also includes examining, orest basis, evidence supporting the amc
and disclosures in the financial statements, aggpfise accounting principles used and signifiesttmates made by management, as w:
evaluating the overall financial statement pregéria We believe that our audits provide a reabtmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® financial position of the Company

December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results aipgsations and its cash flows for each of the teary in the period ended Decembel
2013, in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

West Palm Beach, Florida /s/ BDO USA, LLF
February 21, 2014 Certified Public Accountan
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 and 201.

2013 2012

ASSETS:
Mortgagebacked securities, at fair val

Pledged to counterparti $335,774,98 $109,604,55

Unpledgec 15,447,53 5,775,01
Total mortgag-backed securitie 351,222,51 115,379,57
Cash and cash equivalel 8,169,40: 2,537,25
Restricted cas 2,445,62! 449,00!
Accrued interest receivab 1,559,43 440,87
Due from affiliates - 45,12¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 179,07: 9,127
Total Assets $363,576,04 $118,860,95
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Repurchase agreemel $318,557,05 $103,941,17
Accrued interest payab 91,46: 54,08«
Due to affiliates 81,92¢ -
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and 80,26( 140,72:
Total Liabilities 318,810,70 104,135,98
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 steuthorized; no shares isst
and outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and neshathorized as of December 31, 2 - -
Common Stock, $0.01 par value; 500,000,000 sharte®azed, 3,341,66
shares issued and outstanding as of December 33,a82@ 1,000,000 shares authoriz
154,110 shares issued and outstanding as of Dec&thp2012 33,41% 1,541
Additional paic-in capital 46,115,96 15,409,45
Accumulated defici (1,384,03) (686,02
Total Stockholders' Equity 44,765,34 14,724,97
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $363,576,04 $118,860,95

See Notes to Financial Stateme
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 20

2013 2012

Interest incomt $ 9,198,85 $ 2,697,92
Interest expens (1,126,20) (277,320
Net interest income 8,072,65: 2,420,59
Realized losses on mortg-backed securitie (1,198,161 (307,79)
Unrealized losses on mortg«-backed securitie (20,732,69) (805,93)
Gains (losses) on Eurodollar futures contri 4,828,28! (39,72Y
Net portfolio income 970,09: 1,267,14;
Expenses:

Management fee 664,10( 2438,90!
Directors' fees and liability insuran 290,23: -
Audit, legal and other professional fe 419,99¢ 177,90t
Direct REIT operating expens 167,98¢ 199,97¢
Other administrativi 125,77¢ 106,01
Total expenses 1,668,09! 732,79!
Net (loss) income $ (698,000 $ 534,34:
Basic and diluted net (loss) income per shai $ (0.23) $ 0.54
Weighted Average Shares Outstandini 3,011,91: 981,66!

See Notes to Financial Stateme
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 20

Additional
Common Paid-in Accumulated
Stock Capital Deficit Total

Balances, January 1, 20 $ 1,50C $ 14,99850 $ (1,220,36) $ 13,779,63
Net income - - 534,34: 534,34:
Issuance of common stock to repay amount

to Bimini Capital Management, In 41 410,95! - 411,00(
Balances, December 31, 20 1,541 15,409,45 (686,025 14,724,97
Net loss - - (698,00¢6) (698,001)
Cash dividends declared, $1.395 per sl - (4,661,62) - (4,661,62)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public oftg 23,60( 35,376,40 - 35,400,00
Issuance of common stock pursuant to stock divic 8,27¢ (8,276 - -
Balances, December 31, 20 $ 33,417 $ 46,11596 $ (1,384,03) $ 44,765,34

See Notes to Financial Stateme
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 20

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) incom $ (698,000 $ 534,34
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to mshcprovided by operating activitie
Realized and unrealized losses on mort-backed securitie 11,930,85 1,113,72
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accrued interest receivab (1,118,561 (66,317)
Prepaid expenses and other as (129,776 791
Accrued interest payab 37,37% 42,58¢
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and (60,467) 126,14(
Due to affiliates 127,05: 127,81:
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,098,47 1,879,08!

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
From mortgag-backed securities investmen

Purchase (687,584,18) (199,077,87)

Sales 408,981,98 129,068,51

Principal repayment 30,778,23 9,517,69!
Increase in restricted ca (1,996,62) (358,25()
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (249,820,58) (60,849,91)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from repurchase agreem 3,319,670,06 581,462,51
Principal payments on repurchase agreen (3,105,054,18) (521,846,33)
Cash dividend (4,661,62) -
Proceeds from issuance of common sl 35,400,00 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 245,354,25 59,616,17
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT¢ 5,632,14! 645,34
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the ye 2,537,25 1,891,91.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the ye:

$ 8,169,40. $ 2,537,25

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH FINANCING ACTIV ITIES:
Issuance of common shares to Bimini Capital Managgninc. pursuant to stock divide
Issuance of common shares to repay amount duerimBCapital Management, In

$ 1,088,82 $

$ 8,27¢ $

234,74(

411,00(

See Notes to Financial Stateme
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING P OLICIES
Organization and Business Description

Orchid Island Capital, Inc., (“Orchid” or the “Cormapy”), was incorporated in Maryland on August 17, 201Qfierpurpose of creating ¢
managing a leveraged investment portfolio congjstihresidential mortgage-backed securities (“‘RMB3rom incorporation to February !
2013 Orchid was a wholly owned subsidiary of Bim@apital Management, Inc. (“Bimini”)Orchid began operations on November 24, .
(the date of commencement of operations). Fromrparation through November 24, 2010, Orchidhly activity was the issuance of comr
stock to Bimini.

On February 20, 2013, Orchid completed the infialic offering (“IPO”) of its common stock in which it sold approximat@ly million
shares of its common stock and raised gross preaae®35.4 million.

Orchid completed a secondary offering of 1,800,60imon shares on January 23, 2014. The undersvetaarcised their overallotmi
option in full for an additional 270,000 sharesJamuary 29, 2014. The net proceeds to Orchid aepeoximately $24.2 million which we
invested in Agency RMBS securities on a leveragesish

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements are prepametie accrual basis of accounting in accordantie adcounting principles genere
accepted in the United States (“GAAPThe preparation of financial statements in confeymith GAAP requires management to m
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosuafingent assets and liabilities at the da
the financial statements and the reported amountsvenues and expenses during the reporting pefiotial results could differ from thc
estimates. The significant estimates affecting dheompanying financial statements are the faiueslof RMBS and Eurodollar futu
contracts.

Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

In accordance with the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard’s Accounting Standards Codification (“FASESC”) Topic 220
Comprehensive Incomea statement of comprehensive income has not inetuded as the Company has no items of other cehgmsiv
income. Comprehensive income (loss) is the sanmetisicome (loss) for the periods presented.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depitkifinancial institutions and highly liquid invesents with original maturities of thr

months or less. Restricted cash, of approximat2|¢46,000 at December 31, 2013, represents cadhblied broker as margin on Eurodc

futures contracts. Restricted cash, totaling apprately $449,000 at December 31, 2012, represeaagh beld on deposit as collateral \
repurchase agreement counterparties.

73




The Company maintains cash balances at three banllsat times, balances may exceed federally eédslimits. The Company has |
experienced any losses related to these balandkeso#interest bearing cash balances were fully insuteBexember 31, 2012 due t
temporary federal program in effect from Decembkr2010 through December 31, 2012. Under the progtiaere was no limit to the amo
of insurance for eligible accounts. Beginning Janug 2013, insurance reverted to $250,000 per slegroat each financial institution.
December 31, 2013, the Compasygash deposits exceeded federally insured linyigproximately $7.4 million. Restricted cash bakmar
uninsured, but are held in separate customer atsobat are segregated from the general fundseottiunterparty. The Company belie
that it is not exposed to any significant credikron cash and cash equivalents or restrictedlzalances.

Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company invests primarily in mortgage passtthho(“PT") certificates, collateralized mortgageigations, and interest only (“1Q”
securities and inverse interest only (“1IO”) seties representing interest in or obligations backgdpools of mortgagbacked loar
(collectively, “RMBS”). These investments meet tieguirements to be classified as available for sater ASC 320-10-2%)ebt and Equit
Securitiegwhich requires the securities to be carried atvaiue on the balance sheet with changes in &irevcharged to other comprehen
income, a component of stockholdeesjuity). However, the Company has elected to adcfurits investment in RMBS under the fair ve
option. Electing the fair value option allows ti@mpany to record changes in fair value in theestant of operations, which,
managemens view, more appropriately reflects the resultsoaf operations for a particular reporting periodd a8 consistent with tt
underlying economics and how the portfolio is maathg

The Company records RMBS transactions on the toede. Security purchases that have not settledf dise balance sheet date
included in the RMBS balance with an offsettindliy recorded, whereas securities sold that hasesettled as of the balance sheet dat
removed from the RMBS balance with an offsettingereable recorded.

The fair value of the Comparg/investments in RMBS is governed by FASB ASC 824y Value Measurement. The definition of
value in FASB ASC 820 focuses on the price thatldidne received to sell the asset or paid to trarske liability in an orderly transacti
between market participants at the measurement déte fair value measurement assumes that theattion to sell the asset or transfer
liability either occurs in the principal market fihre asset or liability, or in the absence of agpal market, occurs in the most advantag
market for the asset or liability. Estimated famlues for RMBS are based on the average of tamtly broker quotes received ant
independent pricing sources when available.

Income on PT RMBS securities is based on the statetest rate of the security. Premiums or dist®pnesent at the date of purchase
not amortized. For 10 securities, the income israed based on the carrying value and the effegtigll. The difference between inco
accrued and the interest received on the secwritharacterized as a return of investment and sdoveeduce the assettarrying value. /
each reporting date, the effective yield is adjdigteospectively from the reporting period basedhm new estimate of prepayments anc
contractual terms of the security. For 11O secasitieffective yield and income recognition caldola also take into account the index v.
applicable to the security. Changes in fair valbRBBS during each reporting period are recordedamings and reported as unrealized ¢
or losses on mortgage-backed securities in thenaganying statements of operations.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company has entered into Eurodollar futuresraots to manage interest rate risk, facilitatee#bability strategies and manage o
exposures, and it may continue to do so in theréuthe Company has elected to not treat any afetivative financial instruments as hed

FASB ASC Topic 815Derivatives and Hedging requires that all derivative instruments be eafrat fair value. Changes in fair value
recorded in earnings for each period.
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Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 825Financial Instruments requires disclosure of the fair value of finahastruments for which it is practicable to estirn
that value, either in the body of the financiatstaents or in the accompanying notes. RMBS anddslier futures contracts are accountec
at fair value in the balance sheet. The methodsagedmptions used to estimate fair value for tiresteuments are presented in Note 10 o
financial statements.

The estimated fair value of cash and cash equitgleestricted cash, accrued interest receivabbngid expenses and other assets
from/to Bimini Capital Management, Inc., repurchaggeements, accrued interest payable, accountblegayaccrued expenses and ot
generally approximates their carrying values aBetember 31, 2013 and 2012 due to the short-tetarenaf these financial instruments.

Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of the majarftits PT RMBS through the use of repurchase egents under master repurck
agreements. Pursuant to ASC Topic 8B@nsfers and Servicingthe Company accounts for repurchase transactisunsllateralized financi
transactions, which are carried at their contrd@o®ounts, including accrued interest, as specifigtie respective agreements.

Manager Compensation

The Company is externally managed by Bimini AdwsdrLC, a Maryland limited liability company and wlly-owned subsidiary
Bimini (“the Manager” or “Bimini Advisors”). The Qupanys management agreement with the Manager providethéopayment to tt
Manager of a management fee and reimbursementrigfic@perating expenses, which are accrued andnsea during the period for wh
they are earned or incurred. Refer to Note 11Hertérms of the management agreement.

Earnings Per Share

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 2Barnings Per ShareBasic earnings per share (“EP&'calculated as net inco
or loss attributable to common stockholders divithydthe weighted average number of shares of comstaek outstanding or subscrit
during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated ughwy“if converted’method for common stock equivalents, if any. Howetlee common stot
equivalents are not included in computing dilutétSHf the result is anti-dilutive.

Income Taxes

Bimini has elected to be taxed as a real estatestiment trust (“REIT")under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ame(tte
“Code”). Until the closing of its IPO on Februa2®, 2013, Orchid was a “qualified REIT subsidiaof’Bimini under the Code. Beginni
with its short tax period commencing on FebruaryZil3 and ended December 31, 2013, Orchid wititelad intends to qualify to be taxec
a REIT. REITs are generally not subject to fedaredme tax on their REIT taxable income provideat they distribute to their stockholder
least 90% of their REIT taxable income on an anbaals. In addition, a REIT must meet other praovisiof the Code to retain its tax status.

Orchid measures, recognizes and presents its aitdex positions in accordance with FASB ASC 7#@ome Taxes Under the
guidance, Orchid assesses the likelihood, basdbeintechnical merit, that tax positions will hgstained upon examination based on the 1
circumstances and information available at the @helach period. All of Orchid’ tax positions are categorized as highly certaimere is n
accrual for any tax, interest or penalties relatedrchid’s tax position assessment. The measurement oftaimcéax positions is adjust
when new information is available, or when an evemurs that requires a change.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsuflo(“FASB”) issued Accounting Standard Update ((8$2013-11,Income Taxe
(Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Taxé8i¢ When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a ifsimrax Loss, or a Tax Cre(
Carryforward Exists. This new standard requires the netting of unremegl tax benefits against a deferred tax assetftoss or othe
carryforward that would apply in settlement of tinecertain tax positions. Under the new standardeaognized tax benefits will be net
against all available samerisdiction loss or other tax carryforwards thadbuld be utilized, rather than only against caryfards that ai
created by the unrecognized tax benefits. The ASHffective beginning January 1, 2014 on eitherasgective or retrospective basis.
guidance represents a change in financial statepresentation only and the Company does not exppattthis ASU will have a mater
impact on its financial results.

In June 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-B8)ancial Services +nvestment Companies (Topic 946): Amendments toStiope
Measurement, and Disclosure Requireme. The amendments in this Update modify the guiddocedetermining whether an entity is
investment company, update the measurement regemtsnfior noncontrolling interests in other investineompanies and require additic
disclosures for investment companies under US GAARe amendments in the Update develop attered approach for the assessmel
whether an entity is an investment company whicjuires an entity to possess certain fundamentabctexistics while allowing judgment
assessing other typical characteristics. The aments in this Update also revise the measuremadagce in Topic 946 such that investn
companies must measure noncontrolling ownershgrésts in other investment companies at fair vaktber than applying the equity met
of accounting to such interests. The new guidasedfective for an entitg interim and annual reporting periods in fiscangethat begin aft
December 15, 2013. Earlier application is prokithit The Company does not expect that this ASUhaille a material impact on its finan
statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Digbilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting frodoint and Several Liabili
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the @attion Is Fixed at the Reporting Date ("ASU 2-04") . The objective of the amendme
in this update is to provide guidance for the redtign, measurement, and disclosure of obligatimsulting from joint and several liabil
arrangements for which the total amount of thegattion within the scope of this guidance is fixédhee reporting date, except for obligati
addressed within existing GAAP. The amendments 8UA201304 are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within those yeai
beginning after December 15, 2013, and should tresectively applied to all prior periods presenfier those obligations resulting from jc
and several liability arrangements within the ASEepe that exist at the beginning of an entitigsaf year of adoption. Early adoptior
permitted. The Company does not expect that thig A8l have a material impact on its financial staients.

NOTE 2. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES
The following table presents the Company’s RMBSfptio as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

(in thousands

2013 2012

Pas«-Through RMBS Certificates:

Hybrid Adjustabl-rate Mortgage $ 76,11¢ $ 59,48!
Adjustablerate Mortgage 5,33¢ 6,531

Fixec-rate Mortgage 245,52: 43,58¢
Total Pas-Through Certificate 326,97! 109,60!
Structured RMBS Certificates:

Interes-Only Securities 19,20¢ 2,88¢

Inverse Intere-Only Securities 5,04z 2,891
Total Structured RMBS Certificatt 24,24 577¢
Total $ 351,220 $ 115,38
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The following table summarizes the CompaniRMBS portfolio as of December 31, 2013 and 2@t2prding to the contractual maturi
of the securities in the portfolio. Actual matweiiof RMBS investments are generally shorter thated contractual maturities and are affe
by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgageeriodic payments of principal, and prepaymehtwincipal.

(in thousands

2013 2012
Greater than five years and less than ten $ 1521 $ 12,98(
Greater than or equal to ten ye 349,70: 102,40(
Total $ 351,22 $ 115,38(

NOTE 3. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had outstgndipurchase obligations of approximately $318.8iani with a net weighte
average borrowing rate of 0.39%. These agreememt® collateralized by RMBS with a fair value, uding accrued interest,
approximately $337.0 million. As of December 3Q12, the Company had outstanding repurchase ololigabf approximately $103.9 millis
with a net weighted average borrowing rate of 0.49%ese agreements were collateralized by RMB®& wifair value, including accru
interest, of approximately $109.9 million, and cas¢ddged to the counterparties of approximately $aillion.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Companysroase agreements had remaining maturities as atinad below:

(in thousands

BETWEEN
OVERNIGHT BETWEEN 2 31 GREATER
(1 DAY OR AND AND THAN
LESS) 30 DAYS 90 DAYS 90 DAYS TOTAL

December 31, 201,
Fair market value of securities pledged, incluc

accrued interest receivat $ - $ 326,34t % 10,65 $ - 8 336,99¢
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated

these securitie $ - $ 30840: $ 10,158 $ - $ 318,55
Net weighted average borrowing ri - 0.35% 0.37% 0.3%
December 31, 201.
Fair market value of securities pledged, incluc

accrued interest receivat $ - $ 109,86: $ - 8 - % 109,86:
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated

these securitie $ - 8 103,94: $ - % - $ 103,94
Net weighted average borrowing ri - 0.4<% - - 0.4<%
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If, during the term of a repurchase agreementnddefiles for bankruptcy, the Company might exgece difficulty recovering its pledg
assets, which could result in an unsecured claiainagthe lender for the difference between thewamtmaned to the Company plus inte
due to the counterparty and the fair value of thiéateral pledged to such lender, including theraed interest receivable and cash poste
the Company as collateral. At December 31, 2018 Gbmpany had a maximum amount at risk (the diffezebetween the amount loane
the Company, including interest payable, and thevaue of securities and cash pledged, includicgrued interest on such securities
approximately $18.3 million. Summary informaticegarding the Company’amounts at risk with individual counterpartiesager than 10'
of the Company’s equity at December 31, 2013 anceBéer 31, 2012 is as follows:

(in thousands

Weighted
Average
Amount Maturity
Repurchase Agreement Counterpartie: at Risk (in Days)
December 31, 201
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $ 5,48 11
December 31, 201.
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $ 3,714 18
South Street Securities, LL 1,80z 7

NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In connection with its interest rate risk manageistrategy, the Company economically hedges a @onf the cost of its repurch:
agreement funding by entering into derivative ficiahinstrument contracts. The Company has natetehedging treatment under GAAP,
as such all gains or losses (realized and unrefllae these instruments are reflected in earniagalf periods presented.

As of December 31, 2013, such instruments were cgep entirely of Eurodollar futures contracts.ratlollar futures are cash setl
futures contracts on an interest rate, with gamesses credited or charged to the Compsiagcount on a daily basis and reflected in eas
as they occur. A minimum balance, or “margiig’,required to be maintained in the account on iy dmsis. This margin represents
collateral the Company has posted for its opentijposi and is recorded on the balance sheet a®pastricted cash. The Company is exp:
to the changes in value of the futures by the arnotimargin held by the broker.

The table below presents information related toGoeenpanys Eurodollar futures positions at December 31, 2048 of December 3
2012, the Company had no outstanding futures positi

(in thousands

Average
Weighted Contract
Average Notional Open
Expiration Year LIBOR Rate Amount Equity 1
2014 0.4(% 262,50( (189)
2015 0.8(% 275,00( (14€)
2016 1.9(% 250,00( 1,367
2017 3.02% 250,00( 2,291
2018 3.71% 250,00( 1,57¢
2.02% $ 4,89¢
Cash posted as collateral, included in restrictesh $ 2,44¢

(1) Open equity represents the cumulative gains (I9ssesrded on open futures positiol
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The table below presents the effect of the Compadgtivative financial instruments on the statemeffbperations for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

(in thousands

2013 2012
Eurodollar futures contracts (short positio $ 4,82¢ $ (4C)

NOTE 5. CAPITAL STOCK

At December 31, 2012, the Company had the authtwitgsue 1,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value canstazk. In connection with t
Company’s IPO in February 2013, the Compargharter was amended to increase the authorizgthlcstock to 600,000,000 shares, of wi
(i) 500,000,000 shares are designated as commoh atal (i) 100,000,000 shares are designatedeferped stock, each with a par valu
$0.01 per share. Holders of shares of the commaoeck ggenerally have no preference, conversion, exghasinking fund, redemption
appraisal rights and have no preemptive rightsibseribe for any securities of the Company. Sulifethe provisions of our charter regarc
restrictions on ownership and transfer of our statlkholders of shares of the common stock wiltdhaqual liquidation and other rights.

Our charter authorizes our Board of Directors, withstockholder approval, to reclassify any unigssieares of our common stock i
other classes or series of stock and to estaliissimimber of shares in each class or series aset the preferences, conversion or other ri
voting powers (including voting rights exclusive Buch class or series), restrictions (includingthaat limitation, restrictions ¢
transferability), limitations as to dividends ohet distributions, qualifications and terms andditons of redemption for each such clas
series.

Our charter authorizes our Board of Directors, withstockholder approval, to classify any unissakdres of preferred stock anc
reclassify any previously classified but unissubdrss of any class or series of preferred stodkr Bw issuance of shares of each clas
series, our Board of Directors is required by Mamngl law and our charter to set the preferences/ecsion or other rights, voting pow
(including voting rights exclusive to such classseries), restrictions (including, without limitai, restrictions on transferability), limitations
to dividends or other distributions, qualificatioaad terms and conditions of redemption for eadh stlass or series. Thus, our Boar
Directors could authorize the issuance of shargweferred stock that have priority over our comrstatk with respect to dividends or rig
upon liquidation or with terms and conditions whiobuld have the effect of delaying, deferring oeyanting a transaction or a chang
control of the Company that might involve a premiprite for holders of our common stock or othervisen their best interests. No share
preferred stock have been issued, therefore n@neustanding.

Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

In order to qualify as a REIT under the Code fochetaxable year beginning after December 31, 20L8,shares of stock must
beneficially owned by 100 or more persons durinteast 335 days of a taxable year of 12 monthsuongd a proportionate part of a sho
taxable year. Also, for our taxable years beginmfigr December 31, 2013, no more than 50% of #hgevof our outstanding shares of cay
stock may be owned, directly or constructively fivg or fewer individuals (as defined in the Codericlude certain entities) during the sec
half of any calendar year.

Because the ComparsyBoard of Directors believes it is at present mt$akfor us to qualify as a REIT, our charter pd®s that, subject
certain exceptions, no person or entity may beiadfffcor constructively own, or be deemed to ownviryue of the attribution provisions of 1
Code, more than 9.8% in value or in number of shamdichever is more restrictive, of the outstagdshmares of any class or series of
capital stock, or the ownership limit, except tBanini may own up to 35.0% of our common stock @og as Bimini continues to qualify a
REIT.
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The Company’s charter also prohibits any persomf(g) beneficially or constructively owning or trsfierring shares of the Compaay’
capital stock if such ownership or transfer wowdduit in the Company being “closely helatider Section 856(h) of the Code (without rega
whether the ownership interest is held during &st half of a taxable year) or otherwise causeCthmpany to fail to qualify as a REIT and
transferring shares of the Company’s capital sibauch transfer would result in the Compamyapital stock being beneficially owned
fewer than 100 persons (determined under the pleriof Section 856(a)(5) of the Code). Any peradio acquires or attempts or intend
acquire beneficial or constructive ownership ofrekaof the Compang’ stock that will or may violate any of the foregmirestrictions a
transfer and ownership, or who is the intendedsfiexee of shares of the Compasgtock which are transferred to the trust (as rieex
below), will be required to give written notice inediately to the Company or in the case of a prapposattempted transaction, to give at |
15 days’prior written notice, and provide the Company wstiich other information as the Company may requesirder to determine t
effect, if any, of such transfer on the Compangtatus as a REIT. The foregoing restrictionsransfer and ownership will not apply if -
Company’s Board of Directors determines that itadonger in the Companybest interests to attempt to qualify, or to curgito qualify, as
REIT, or that compliance with the restrictions camsfer and ownership is no longer required forGbepany to qualify as a REIT.

The Companys Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, magmpt (prospectively or retroactively) a persomfroertain of the limil
described above and may establish or increase @pted holder limit for such person. The persorkisgean exemption must provide to
Board of Directors any such representations, cavsnand undertakings as the Board of Directors desm appropriate in order to concl
that granting the exemption and/or establishintnoreasing an excepted holder limit, as the casgleawill not cause the Company to fai
qualify as a REIT. The ComparsyBoard of Directors may also require a ruling frihra IRS or an opinion of counsel in order to deiee tha
granting the exemption will not cause the Companiose its qualification as a REIT. In connectioithwgranting a waiver of the owners
limit or creating an excepted holder limit or ayather time, the CompargBoard of Directors may from time to time increaselecrease tl
ownership limit, subject to certain restrictions.

Common Stock Issuances

During July 2012, Bimini acquired 4,110 shares @fmon stock of the Company in satisfaction of aroam due to Bimini at June {
2012 of approximately $411,000 for prior manageniees, overhead allocations and direct expensebregsements.

On February 20, 2013, Orchid completed the IPQotommon stock in which it sold 2,360,000 shafeissoccommon stock and rais
gross proceeds of $35,400,000.

Orchid completed a secondary offering of 1,800,66mon shares on January 23, 2014 at a price 06@X#r share. The underwrit
exercised their overallotment option in full for auditional 270,000 shares on January 29, 2014 iét proceeds to Orchid w
approximately $24,200,000. These shares and neeeds are not reflected in our balance sheetarbieer 31, 2013.

Stock Dividend

On February 14, 2013, Orch&gBoard of Directors declared a stock dividend whgr5.37 shares of common stock were issued fd

share of common stock outstanding. The 827,555eshdistributed pursuant to this dividend were idstee Bimini on February 20, 201
immediately prior to the Company’s IPO.
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Cash Dividends

The table below presents the cash dividends dettarédhe Company’s common stock since its IPO.

Per Share

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Amount Total

March 8, 201 March 25, 201! March 27, 201! $ 0.13¢ 451,12!
April 10, 2013 April 25, 2013 April 30, 2013 0.13¢ 451,12!
May 9, 201z May 28, 201 May 31, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
June 10, 201 June 25, 201 June 28, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
July 9, 201z July 25, 201 July 31, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
August 12, 201! August 26, 201: August 30, 201: 0.13¢ 451,12!
September 10, 201 September 25, 201 September 30, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
October 10, 201 October 25, 201 October 31, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
Novembeil2, 201¢ November 25, 201 November 27, 201 0.13¢ 451,12!
December 11, 201 December 26, 201 December 30, 201 0.18( 601,50(
@ January 9, 201 January 27, 201 January 31, 201 0.18( 925,50!
(1) February 11, 201 February 25, 201 February 28, 201 0.18( 974,10!

(1 The effect of the dividends declared during 201dadsreflected in the Company's financial statemeastof December 31, 201
NOTE 6. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In October 2012, the Company’s Board of Directatsed and Bimini, then the Compasysole stockholder, approved, the Orchid Is
Capital, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Intee Plan”)to recruit and retain employees, directors andratkevice providers, includil
employees of the Manager and other affiliates. Heentive Plan provides for the award of stock ami stock appreciation rights, st
award, performance units, other equity-based awgndd dividend equivalents with respect to awardpesformance units and other equity-
based awards) and incentive awards. The InceRiae is administered by the Compensation Commétebe Companys Board of Directol
except that the Compars/full Board of Directors will administer awards deato directors who are not employees of the Compmanits
affiliates. The Incentive Plan provides for awaoflsip to an aggregate of 10% of the issued anstanding shares of our common stock (
fully diluted basis) at the time of the awards, jsabto a maximum aggregate 4,000,000 shares o€tmpanys common stock that may
issued under the Incentive Plan. To date, no asMaaste been made under the Incentive Plan.

NOTE 7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company may become involiredarious claims and legal actions arising in trdinary course of busine
Management is not aware of any reported or unregardntingencies at December 31, 2013.

NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES

As discussed in Note 1, the Company will elect emeinds to qualify to be taxed as a REIT. As aRHie Company will generally not
subject to federal income tax on its REIT taxahleime to the extent that it distributes its REIXatsle income to its shareholders and sati
the ongoing REIT requirements, including meetingaie asset, income and stock ownership tests.EATRnust generally distribute at le
90% of its REIT taxable income to its shareholdefswhich 85% generally must be distributed withie taxable year, in order to avoid
imposition of an excise tax. The remaining balamzg be distributed up to the end of the followtagable year, provided the REIT elect
treat such amount as a prior year distribution aregts certain other requirements. It is genetthily Companys policy to distribute to i
shareholders all of the Company’s REIT taxable ineo
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REIT taxable income (loss) is computed in accordamith the Code, which is different than the Compariinancial statement net inco
(loss) computed in accordance with GAAP. All ok t&ompanys estimated REIT taxable income or loss prior t® tompletion of th
Company’s IPO is included in the consolidated &am of Bimini.

The Company has elected to treat approximately 80lion of the January 2014 dividend as havingrbeaid with respect to 2013
order to reduce REIT taxable income for 2013 t@zekccordingly, no income tax provision was re@atdor 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, Orchid had approximatély $nillion of capital loss carryforwards that dam utilized to offset future capi
gains.

In general, common stock dividends declared by Goenpany will be considered ordinary income to shmi#ters for income t:
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capital gainstorn of capital. For the tax per
ended December 31, 2013, all income distributettienform of dividends declared is considered charaed as ordinary income.

NOTE 9. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
The table below reconciles the numerator and dematmi of EPS for the years ended December 31, 26d2012.

(in thousands, except f-share information

2013 2012

Basic and diluted EPS per common share
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS per commones

Net (loss) incom+ Basic and dilute $ (69¢) $ 534
Weighted average common shal

Common shares outstanding at the balance shee 3,34z 154

Common shares to be distributed as a stock divi - 82¢

Effect of weighting (330 -
Weighted average sha-basic and dilute: 3,01~ 982
(Loss) income per common sha

Basic and dilutes $ (0.2%9) $ 0.54

On February 14, 2013, OrchgBoard of Directors declared a stock dividend whegr5.37 shares of common stock were issued fd
share of common stock outstanding. The 827,555%shdistributed as the dividend were issued to BimmnFebruary 20, 2013, immediat
prior to Orchids IPO. For the year ended December 31, 2012,8hg65 common shares, which includes the 154,14afestof common sto
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and the 827,5&f%sluistributed as a stock dividend, is usedHerBPS computation, as Bimini has t
the sole stockholder during the entire period
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NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE

Authoritative accounting literature establishesaafework for using fair value to measure assetdiabdities and defines fair value as
price that would be received to sell an asset @ fmatransfer a liability (an exit price) as oppddo the price that would be paid to acquire
asset or received to assume the liability (an eptige). A fair value measure should reflect theuasptions that market participants would
in pricing the asset or liability, including thesasnptions about the risk inherent in a particuluation technique, the effect of a restrictior
the sale or use of an asset and the risk ofpefermance. Required disclosures include stratific of balance sheet amounts measured
value based on inputs the Company uses to deiliivedime measurements. These stratifications are:

« Level 1 valuations, where the valuation is basedjoated market prices for identical assets or liitds traded in active marke
(which include exchanges and c-the-counter markets with sufficient volum

« Level 2 valuations, where the valuation is baseduwsted market prices for similar instruments tchiteactive markets, quoted pri
for identical or similar instruments in markets tttae not active and modbased valuation techniques for which all signifi
assumptions are observable in the market,

« Level 3 valuations, where the valuation is generfitem modelbased techniques that use significant assumptioinsliservable in tt
market, but observable based on Company-specifi. ddese unobservable assumptions reflect the @oygpown estimates f
assumptions that market participants would useriting the asset or liability. Valuation techniquigpically include option pricin
models, discounted cash flow models and similanrigies, but may also include the use of markeeprof assets or liabilities t
are not directly comparable to the subject asskaloitity.

The Companys RMBS are valued using Level 2 valuations, and statuations currently are determined by the Comdzased on tt
average of thirgsarty broker quotes and/or by independent pricoyyces when available. Because the price estinmaagsvary, the Compal
must make certain judgments and assumptions abewgpropriate price to use to calculate the falues. Alternatively, the Company co
opt to have the value of all of our positions in B8determined by either an independent third-partyo so internally.

RMBS and Eurodollar futures contracts were recoradtethir value on a recurring basis during the yearded December 31, 2013
2012. When determining fair value measurementsCtirapany considers the principal or most advantagegarket in which it would transi
and considers assumptions that market participaotsid use when pricing the asset. When possible, Gompany looks to active &
observable markets to price identical assets. Wihentical assets are not traded in active markbés Company looks to market observi
data for similar assetsThe following table presents financial assets aabilities measured at fair value on a recurringibas of Decemb
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

(in thousands

Quoted
Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs
Measurement: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 2013
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 351,220 $ - $ 351220 % -
Eurodollar futures contrac 2,44¢ 2,44¢ - -
December 31, 201,
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 115,38( $ - $ 115,38( $ =

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2042 were no transfers of financial assets oilili@s between levels 1, 2 or 3.
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NOTE 11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

The Company entered into a management agreememtBiitini, which provided for an initial term throngDecember 31, 2011 w
automatic ongrear extension options. The agreement was extendedr the option to December 31, 2013, but was itexted at th
completion of the Company’IPO on February 20, 2013. At the completionhaf PO, the Company entered into a managementragre
with the Manager, which provides for an initialrtethrough February 20, 2016 with automatic geer extensions and is subject to ce
termination rights. Under the terms of the manag@nagreement, Bimini Advisors will be responsitdeadministering the business activi
and day-to-day operations of the Company. Bimidvidors will receive a monthly management fee smmdmount of:

« One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million ofélCompany’s equity, as defined in the managemeaeeaent,
« One-twelfth of 1.25% of the Company’s equity thegreater than $250 million and less than or etgu@b00 million, and
« One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s equity ttagreater than $500 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse Bimini Adviséor any direct expenses incurred on its behalfaddition, once the Compay’
Equity, as defined in the management agreementeelsc$100 million for the first time, Bimini Advisowill begin allocating to the Compa
it's pro rata portion of certain overhead costs amel@fin the management agreement. Should the QonfEminate the managem
agreement without cause, it shall pay to Bimini &dvs a termination fee equal to three times tlexrage annual management fee, as defin
the management agreement, before or on the lagifdhg initial term or automatic renewal term.

The Company was obligated to reimburse Bimini fsrcosts incurred under the original managemergesgent. In addition, the Comp:
was required to pay Bimini a monthly fee of $7,2@Mich represents an allocation of overhead exgefmeitems that include, but are
limited to, occupancy costs, insurance and adnmatise expenses. These expenses were allocated baghe ratio of the Comparsyasse
and Bimini's consolidated assets. Total expenses recordedgdilme years ended December 31, 2013 and 201hdomanagement fee ¢
costs incurred was approximately $679,000 and $885 respectively.

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, theammtunt due (to) from affiliates was approximaté®g2,000) and $45,0C
respectively.

Payment of Certain Offering Expenses

Bimini Advisors has paid, or has reimbursed Orcliad, all offering expenses in connection with thengpanys IPO. During the ye
ended December 31, 2012, these expenses were apately $0.2 million. During the year ended DecemB1, 2013, Bimini Advisors pe
additional expenses related to this offering of ragpnately $3.0 million. In addition, during the areended December 31, 2012, Bir
Advisors paid certain expenses totaling approxilpa$®.8 million on behalf of the Company associateth a failed merger attempt. T
Company has no obligation or intent to reimburs@iBi Advisors, either directly or indirectly, fohé offering costs or attempted merger c
therefore they are not included in the Companyaricial statements.
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Board Memberships

John B. Van Heuvelen, one of our independent direcbminees, owns shares of common stock of Bintobert Cauley, our Chi
Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Bies, also serves as Chief Executive Officer ahdithan of the Board of Directors
Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Biminuniter Haas, our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Istraent Officer, Secretary ant
member of our Board of Directors, also serves asthief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officamnd Treasurer of Bimini and owns shi
of common stock of Bimini.

Consulting Agreement

In September 2010, the Company entered into a ttomswgreement with W Coleman Bitting, who becaore of the Company’
independent directors in February 2013. The terinth® consulting agreement provided that Mr. Bgtiwould advise the Company w
respect to financing alternatives, business stiedéegnd related matters as requested during the @érthe agreement. In exchange for
services, the consulting agreement provided tratGbmpany pay Mr. Bitting an hourly fee of $150 aminburse him for all out-gfocke
expenses reasonably incurred in the performanddso$ervices. During years ended December 31, 20832012, the Company paid |
Bitting approximately $3,800 and $30,400, respetyiv under this agreement. Mr. Bittirgy’consulting agreement was terminated |
completion of the Company’s IPO. The total comp&nsaMir. Bitting received under the consulting agreent was approximately $115,000.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

We had no disagreements with our Independent RegtPublic Accounting Firm on any matter of acamgnprinciples or practices
financial statement disclosure .

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this refiwet “evaluation date”)ve carried out an evaluation, under the superviaimhwith th:
participation of our management, including our Chixecutive Officer (the “CEQ”) and Chief Financi@fficer (the “CFO”), of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of oseldsure controls and procedures, as defined ie R3&15(e) under the Securities Excha
Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange AcBpased on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concludedlisclosure controls and procedure:
designed and implemented, were effective as ottaduation date (1) in ensuring that informatiogamreling the Company and its subsidie
is accumulated and communicated to our managefimehiding our CEO and CFO, by our employees, asgpiate to allow timely decisio
regarding required disclosure and (2) in providiegsonable assurance that information we mustadisdin its periodic reports under
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegmited within the time periods prescribed by$eC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There were no significant changes in the Camyjs internal control over financial reporting th@ccurred during the Comparsymos
recent fiscal quarter that have materially affectmdare reasonably likely to materially affecte tGompanys internal control over financ
reporting.

Management’s Report of Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for astabfy and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting. Intern
control over financial reporting is defined in Rall@3al5(f) under the Securities Exchange Act as a psocksigned by, or under
supervision of, the Company’s principal executived gorincipal financial officers and effected by tl@®mpanys board of director
management and other personnel to provide reasmaablrance regarding the reliability of financggorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and ttetuthose policies and procedures that:

« pertain to the maintenance of records that in meaisle detail accurately and fairly reflect the sartions and dispositions of
assets of the Compar

» provide reasonable assurance that transactionee@reded as necessary to permit preparation ofiiahstatements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, &nat receipts and expenditures of the Company afegbmade only i
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the Company; al

- provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiagimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of th
Compan’s assets that could have a material effect onitlaadial statement
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. As a result, e
systems determined to be effective can provide amlgsonable assurance regarding the preparation paeskbntation of financi
statements. Moreover, projections of any evalumatid effectiveness to future periods are subjecth® risks that controls may becc
inadequate because of changes in conditions othtbategree of compliance with the policies or pthoes may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveh¢se Companys internal control over financial reporting as ofd@mber 3:
2013. In making this assessment, the Company’sagenent used criteria set foititernal Control—Integrated Framework (1998%ued b
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadivay Commission .

Based on management’s assessment, the Company&yamaent believes that, as of December 31, 20&3Ctmpanys internal contre
over financial reporting was effective based orsthoriteria.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE
The information required by this Item 10 and ndtestvise set forth below is incorporated hereindfgnrence to the Company's definitive
Proxy Statement relating to the Company’s 2014 AhiMeeting of Stockholders to be held on June 0142which the Company expects to
file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comroisspursuant to Regulation 14A, not later than d2¢s after December 31, 2013 (the
"Proxy Statement").
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Iltem 11 is incagted herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is incagted herein by reference to the Proxy Statemeht@Part Il, Item 5 of this Form 1K-
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incagted herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incagted herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

a. Financial Statements. The financial statementh®fGompany, together with the report of Indepen@agistered Public Accounti
Firm thereon, are set forth in Par-ltem 8 of this Form 1-K and are incorporated herein by referet

The following information is filed as pairftthis Form 10-K:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféing 68
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2013 and 69
Statements of Operations for the years ended Deze®ih 2013 and 201 70
Statements of Stockhold’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013 an@ 71
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Dese®ih 2013 and 201 72
Notes to Financial Statemer 73

b. Financial Statement Schedul
Not applicable.

c. Exhibits.
Exhibit No.

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Qrdsliand Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to tBempanys Registration Statement
Amendment No. 1 to Form-11 (File N0.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporieein by reference

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Orchid Islaapital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the CompaniRegistration Statement on
Amendment No. 1 to Form-11 (File N0.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporaieein by reference

4.1 Specimen Certificate of common stock of Ordkldnd Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to tBempany’s Registration Statement on
Amendment No. 1 to Form-11 (File N0.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporaieein by reference

10.1 Form of Management Agreement between Oraéshdl Capital, Inc. and Bimini Advisors, LLC (fileds Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Amendment No.Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538 ) filed on Now®m28, 2012 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.2 Form of Investment Allocation Agreement byl @among Orchid Island Capital, Inc., Bimini AdvisptLC and Bimini Capital
Management, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Camgs Registration Statement on Amendment No.Haion S-11 (File No. 333-
184538) filed onNovember 28, 201and incorporated herein by referen

10.3 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhitit3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on fdmeent No. 1 to Form S-11 (File
No0.33:-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporakein by reference;

10.4 Form of Indemnification Agreement by and bestw Orchid Island Capital, Inc. and Indmnitee fites Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbi $rile N0.333-184538) filed on November 28, 2@12l incorporated herein
by reference)’
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10.5 Form of Master Repurchase Agreement (filed as Exbih5 to the Company’s Registration Statemenforendment No. 1 to Form
S-11 (File No0.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporiemin by reference
23.1 Consent of BDO USA, LLP*
31.1 Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chiefdextive Officer and President of the Registrantspant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.**
31.2 Certification of G. Hunter Haas, 1V, Chighancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant tet®s 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 .**
32.1 Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chiefdextive Officer and President of the Registrantspant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002.***
32.2 Certification of G. Hunter Haas, 1V, Chighancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll8.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuar
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**
Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document ***!
Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document *
Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document*
Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created***!
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document *
Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documtit

*  Represents a management contract or compensagrppharrangemer
**  Filed herewith

*** Furnished herewitt

**x*x Submitted electronically herewit
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 186{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenthedregistrant has duly caused
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

Orchid Island Capital, Inc .
Registran

Date: February 21, 2014 By: /s/ Robert E. Caule

Robert E. Cauley
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairmaithef Boarc

Date: February 21, 2014 By: /s/ G. Hunter Haas I
G. Hunter Haas IV
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investrn@&fficer and Director (Principal
Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpihe following persons on behalf of
Company and in the capacities and on the datesatatl.

/sl Robert E. Caule Chairman of the Board, Director, Chief Febyi2t, 2014

Robert E. Caule Executive Officer, and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ G. Hunter Haas, I Chief Financial Officer, Chief February 21,120

G. Hunter Haas, I\ Investment Officer, and Direct
(Principal Financial Officer

/sl Jerry Sinte Treasurer February 21, 2014
Jerry Sinte: (Principal Accounting Officer
/sl W Coleman Bitting Independent Director February 21, 2014

W Coleman Bitting

/s/ John B. Van Heuvele Independent Director February 21, 2014
John B. Van Heuvele

/sl Frank P. Filipps Independent Director February 21, 2014
Frank P. Filipps

/sl Ava L. Parker Independent Director February 21, 2014
Ava L. Parkel




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriinm

Orchid Island Capital, Inc.
Vero Beach, Florida

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No.-B38632) of our report dated Febru
21, 2014, relating to the financial statements afi@l Island Capital, Inc. which appears in thisriro 10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
West Palm Beach, Florida
February 21, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert E. Cauley, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ céimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | agsponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and praesdaor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b)  designed such internal control over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbis report our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in thgesteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationteyhal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material Weess in the design or operation of internal cdrver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefmaincial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ises management or other employees who have disagttirole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 21, 201

/s/ Robert E. Caule
Robert E. Caule
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer ddrdsiden




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, G. Hunter Haas IV, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ céimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | agsponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and praesdaor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b)  designed such internal control over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbis report our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in thgesteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationteyhal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material Weess in the design or operation of internal cdrver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefmaincial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ises management or other employees who have disagttirole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 21, 201

/s/ G. Hunter Haas I
G. Hunter Haas I\
President and Chief Financial Offic




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fKOechid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) fdret period ended December 31, 2012 to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio or about the date hereof (the "Report”), Ib&t E. Cauley, Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certjjursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934

February 21, 2014 /s/ Robert E. Caule
Robert E. Cauley,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fKOechid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) fdret period ended December 31, 2012 to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio or about the date hereof (the "Report”), IHanter Haas 1V, Chief Financial Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 90éhefSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. SedR’s0, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangedh 1934

February 21, 2014 /s/ G. Hunter Haas I'

G. Hunter Haas 1V,
Chief Financial Office




